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NOTICE is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Mee�ng of the Members of TGV SRAAC 
LIMITED (CIN:L24110AP1981PLC003077) will be held through VC (Video Conference) / OAVM (Other 

Audio Visual Means) Mode on Saturday, the September 27, 2025 at 11.30 A.M to transact the 
following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss for the year ended and other annexures together with the Reports of Directors and the Auditors 
a�ached thereto.

2) To appoint a Director in place of Sri Srinivasa Babu Chappidi (DIN:09266926) who re�res by rota�on 
and being eligible offers himself for re‐appointment.

3) To appoint a Director in place of Sri Karunakar Rao Kamise�y (DIN:02031367) who re�res by rota�on 
and being eligible offers himself for re‐appointment.

4) To declare final dividend on Equity Shares for the financial year ending March 31, 2025 and in this 
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following Resolu�on 
as an Ordinary Resolu�on.

“RESOLVED THAT final dividend at the rate of Rs. 1/‐ (Rupee One only) per Equity Share of Rs. 10/‐ 
(Rupees Ten) each fully paid‐up of the company, as recommended by the Board of Directors, be and is 
hereby declared for the financial year ending March 31, 2025 and the same be paid out of the profits of the 
company for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

5)  Ra�fica�on for Appointment of Sri Ramaiah Elluru (DIN:11054179) as Director (Mechanical) for a 
period of 3 (three) years and restructure of total remunera�on payable.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special 
Resolu�on.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 196, 197 and 198 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to required statutory approval as may 
be necessary, the Members of the Company hereby approve and ra�fy the Board recommenda�on for 
Appointment of Sri Ramaiah Elluru (DIN:11054179) with re‐designa�on as Director (Mechanical) [earlier 
designate as Execu�ve Director (Mechanical)] for a period of three years i.e., from 30‐06‐2025 to             
29‐06‐2028 in its mee�ng held on 27.05.2025 and 08.08.2025 upon the recommenda�on of Nomina�on 
and Remunera�on Commi�ee Mee�ng held on 19.05.2025 and 07.07.2025 on the following 
remunera�on.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sri Ramaiah Elluru will be paid total remunera�on of Rs.1,84,741/‐ per month 
i.e., Rs.1,63,391/‐ per month as Salary + Rs.21,350/‐ per month as allowances and perquisites (valued, 
reviewed and revised as per the Rules of the Company) for the period from 30‐06‐2025 to 30‐09‐2025.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the restructured remunera�on payable from 01.10.2025 to 29.06.2028 will 
be total remunera�on of Rs.2,00,000/‐ per month divided into Rs.1,63,391/‐ per month as Salary + 
Rs.36,609/‐ per month as allowances and perquisites (valued, reviewed and revised as per the rules of the 
company.

N O T I C E
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the members noted that the posi�on of Sri Ramaiah Elluruas Director is 
subject to re�re by rota�on pursuant to Ar�cles of Associa�on of the company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the members noted that the company has received a proposal from a 
member proposing the candidature of Sri Ramaiah Elluru as Director of the company to comply with 
statutory provisions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of Profits in any financial year the 
aforesaid remunera�on shall be treated as minimum remunera�on in pursuance to Schedule‐V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and any amendment thereof from �me to �me.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sri Radhakrishna Murthy Vemula, CGM and Company Secretary is hereby 
authorized to file Form MGT‐14, Form DIR‐12, Form MR‐1 and other related forms with MCA/ROC and to 
digitally sign the same to comply with statutory formali�es.”

6) Prior approval of Members for Appointment of Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l (DIN:11054163) as 
Director (Quality Assurance) for a period of 3 (three) years and fixa�on of total Remunera�on.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special 
Resolu�on.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 196, 197 and 198 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to required statutory approval as may 
be necessary, the Members of the Company hereby approve the Board recommenda�on for appointment 
of Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l (DIN:11054163) as  Director (Quality Assurance) for a period of three years 
i.e., from 01.10.2025 to 30.09.2028 in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025, upon the recommenda�on of 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee Mee�ng held on 07.07.2025 on the following total 
remunera�on.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the members noted that Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l is above 72 years of age 
on the date of appointment and hence prior approval is accorded by way of Special Resolu�on to comply 
with statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l will be paid total remunera�on of Rs.2,00,000/‐ 
per month (i.e., Rs.1,63,391/‐ per month as salary + allowances and perquisites of Rs.36,609/‐ per month 
(valued, reviewed and revised as per the Rules of the Company).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the members noted that the posi�on of Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l as 
Director is subject to re�re by rota�on. pursuant to Ar�cles of Associa�on of the company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the members noted that the company has received a proposal from a 
member proposing the candidature of Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l as Director of the company to comply 
with statutory provisions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of Profits in any financial year the 
aforesaid remunera�on shall be treated as minimum remunera�on in pursuance to Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and any amendment thereof from �me to �me.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sri Radhakrishna Murthy Vemula, CGM and Company Secretary is hereby 
authorized to file Form MGT‐14, Form MR‐1 and other related forms with MCA/ROC and to digitally sign 
the same to comply with statutory formali�es.”
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7) Appointment of Dr Asha Reddy Mora (DIN:07328122) as a Director and as an Independent Director 
of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special 
Resolu�on.

“RESOLVED THAT Dr. Asha Reddy Mora (DIN:07328122), who was appointed as an Addi�onal Director in 
the category of Non‐Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company with effect from 08.08.2025 by the 
Board of Directors in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025 based on recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee (07.07.2025), and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General 
Mee�ng of the Company under Sec�on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') [including any 
statutory modifica�on(s) or re‐enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force] and Ar�cles of the Ar�cles 
of Associa�on of the Company and who is eligible for appointment and who has consented to act as a 
Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a no�ce in wri�ng under 
Sec�on 160(1) of the Act from a Member proposing her candidature for the office of Director of the 
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, under the Act (including any statutory modifica�on or re‐enactment thereof for the �me 
being in force) read with Schedule IV  to the Act and the Companies(Appointment and qualifica�on of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, Regula�ons 17, 25 and other applicable provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange 
Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('SEBI Lis�ng 
Regula�ons'), as amended from �me to �me, the appointment of Dr Asha Reddy Mora, who has submi�ed 
a declara�on that she meets the criteria for independence as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of the Act read 
with the Rules framed thereunder and Regula�on 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LORD) Regula�ons, 2015 and who 
is eligible for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to re�re by rota�on, for a 
term of five (5) consecu�ve years, i.e., from 08.08.2025 to 07.08.2030 be and is hereby approved.”

8)  Appointment of Sri. Mahadev Tirunagari, Prac�cing Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor and fix 
his remunera�on.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an 
Ordinary Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regula�on 24A and other applicable provisions of the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015 (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”) read with Circulars issued thereunder from �me to �me and Sec�on 204 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), Mr. Mahadev 
Tirunagari, Prac�cing Company Secretary (CP No. 7350) be and is hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor 
of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) consecu�ve years, from April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030 ('the 
Term'), at such remunera�on as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company 
and the Secretarial Auditor in addi�on to applicable taxes, reimbursement of all out‐of‐pocket expenses as 
may be incurred in connec�on with the secretarial audit of the Company.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members is hereby accorded to the Board to avail or obtain 
from the Secretarial Auditor, such other services or cer�ficates or reports which the Secretarial Auditor 
may be eligible to provide or issue under the applicable laws.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby 
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or 
incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolu�on.”

9)   Ra�fica�on for Re‐appointment and Remunera�on payable to Cost Auditor.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following Resolu�on as an 
Ordinary Resolu�on.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 148 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifica�on(s) or re‐enactment thereof, for the �me being in force), the appointment of M/s. Aruna 
Prasad & Co., (Regn.No.100883) Proprietrix : Aruna Prasad as Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board 
of Directors of the Company in its mee�ng held on 27.05.2025 (upon the recommenda�on of Audit 
Commi�ee in its mee�ng held on 27.05.2025) on a remunera�on of Rs.2,00,000/‐ plus GST and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 
Financial Year ending March 31, 2026, be and is hereby ra�fied.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all 
acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolu�on.”

10)  Approval for Material Related Party Transac�ons.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following Resolu�on as an 
Ordinary Resolu�on.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 188 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Mee�ngs of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014 and Regula�on 23 of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, (including any amendment, modifica�on, varia�on or re‐enactment to 
any of the foregoing), and subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanc�ons of other 
authori�es as may be necessary, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
the Board of Directors of the Company (hereina�er referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed 
to include any Commi�ee of the Board), to approve the company proposal and to enter into new/further 
contracts/arrangements/agreements/transac�ons with related party i.e. M/s. Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐
Strength Hypo Limited (SRHHL) to the aggregate value of Rs.425 Cr (tenta�vely divided into Sales Rs.200Cr 
+ Purchase Rs.200Cr + Others Rs.25 Cr which are subject to interchange if required) es�mated for the year 
2025‐26 clearly men�oned in the explanatory statement (including any modifica�ons, altera�ons or 
amendments thereto), in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis or on agreed values 
basis with 'Related Par�es' within the meaning of the Act and the Securi�es Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, as more par�cularly enumerated in 
the explanatory statement to the No�ce and on such terms and condi�ons as may be agreed between the 
Company and related par�es.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolu�on, the Board or any of its 
authorised official be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things and execute 
all such deeds, documents and wri�ngs, as an ongoing basis, as may be necessary, proper or expedient for 
the purpose of giving effect to the above resolu�on.”

11) Ra�fica�on/approval for Crea�on of Security in favour of Consor�um of Banks viz., The Federal Bank 
Ltd., Indian Bank, Punjab Na�onal Bank and IDBI Bank Limited.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on, the following Resolu�on which is 
proposed as a Special Resolu�on. 

“RESOLVED THAT the consent by way of ra�fica�on and (or) approval of the members is hereby accorded 
to the Company in terms of Sec�on 180 (1) (a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for crea�on/to be created of mortgage and/charge by the Board of Directors of the Company of 
“Specific charge on capital goods (brought by availing the said financial assistance) of the Company 
wheresoever situate, present and future, and the whole of undertaking of the Company together with 
power to take over the management of the business and concern of the Company in certain events, to or in 
favour of following Banks for crea�on of security on specific charge basis as under.

(availed)
(to be availed)
(to be availed)
(to be availed)

Name of Bank (Rs. in Crs) Status

The Federal Bank Limited 
The Federal Bank Limited              
Indian Bank  
IDBI Bank Limited                                    

25.00           
75.00           
45.00
50.00

On Working Capital Limits : “1st paripassu charge basis on current assets and 2nd paripassu charge basis 
on the fixed assets of the company (excluding specific charges created) in favour of the following Banks.”

Working Capital Facili�es

(availed)
(availed)
(availed)

Name of Bank (Rs. in Crs) Status

LC Limits ‐ Indian Bank
Funded Limits ‐ Indian Bank 
Funded Limits ‐ Punjab Na�onal Bank

50.00
6.45
4.30

together with interest thereon at the respec�ve agreed rates, compound interest, addi�onal interest, 
liquidated damages, premia on prepayment or on redemp�on, costs, charges, expenses and other 
moneys payable by the company to the Lenders under their Loan agreements in respect of the said 
financial assistance.”

Capex LC Facility :

Place : Hyderabad
Date  : 8th August, 2025

By order of the Board of Directors
Sd/‐

CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY
CGM & COMPANY SECRETARY



NOTES :

1. Explanatory statement as required under sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

2. The Board in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025 has approved the company's proposal to conduct         
43rd Annual General Mee�ng through (Video Conference) VC / OAVM (Other Audio Visual Means) 
instead of physical Annual General Mee�ng in compliance of MCA General Circular No.2/2022 dated 
05.05.2022 and General Circular No.10/2022, dated 28.12.2022 read with SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD‐2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 05.01.2023,SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD‐2/P/CIR/2023/167 
07.10.2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD‐2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 03.10.2024 and a�er due 
examina�on, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due 30.09.2025, or become 
due in the year 2025, to conduct their AGMs on or before 30.09.2025, in accordance with the 
requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA circular 
no. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and General Circular No.2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 read with 
January 05, 2023,General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and General Circular 
No.09/2024 dated September 19, 2024. 

3. Further, it has been decided that physical copies of Annual Reports will not be sent by post to Members 
and instead only so� copy of Annual Report (including No�ce of AGM) will be sent to Registered 
email_ids of shareholders in pursuance to MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 & May 12, 
2020 and S E B I  Circular No.S E B I/H O/C F D/C M D/C I R/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD21/CIR/P/2022/162 dated 13.05.2022 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD‐
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 05.01.2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD‐2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 
03.10.2024 Shareholders can view so� copy of the Annual Report on company's website 
www.tgvgroup.com and BSE Website and also on RTA Website.

 Since the company has opted for convening Annual General Mee�ng through VC/OAVM, there will not 
be any provision for physical ballot vo�ng. Members who have par�cipated in Annual General Mee�ng 
through VC/OAVM mode can cast their vote through e‐vo�ng at the �me of Annual General Mee�ng 
(provided that he has not cast his vote through remote e‐vo�ng).

4. Pursuant to Sec�on 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 42 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on the 
record date i.e., 19.09.2025.

5. SAKSHAM NIVESHAK – MANNER OF REGISTERING KYC INCLUDING  BANK DETAILS FOR 
RECEIVING DIVIDEND

Pursuant to the MCA Circular dated July 16, 2025, TGV SRAAC Ltd., has ini�ated a  100 days 
campaign for upda�on of KYC and other related details of members including bank details to 
prevent transfer of unpaid/unclaimed dividends to IEPF.  Details of unpaid/unclaimed dividend 
lying with the company are available on h�p://www.tgvgrou.com.  For claiming the 
unpaid/unclaimed dividends, the members are requested to update their KYC as given below.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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Shareholders who have not registered their email_ids are requested to register / update 
immediately to enable the company to send so� copy of Annual Report of the ensuing Annual 
General Mee�ng and for future communica�on.

The members holding shares in Physical form – with the Company's registrars at Aarthi 
Consultants Private Limited, Unit : TGV SRAAC Limited, 1‐2‐285, Domalguda, Hyderabad – 500 029, 
Telangana.  The forms for upda�ng the same are available at h�ps:\\www.aarthiconsultants.com 

For shares held in dematerialized form – with the Depository Par�cipant (DP) where the demat 
account is maintained as per the process advised by DP.

Upon upda�on of KYC & bank details, members are requested to in�mate the same to the RTA, so 
that the unpaid/unclaimed dividend can be credited to their bank account.

6.    SPECIAL WINDOW FOR RE‐LODGEMENT OF TRANSFER REQUESTS OF PHYSICAL SHARES 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated July 02, 2025, members who had lodged their transfer deeds of 
physical shares prior to April 01, 2019 which were rejected/returned/not a�ended due to 
deficiency in the documents/process or otherwise are granted one more opportunity for re‐
lodgment of transfer requests �ll January 06, 2026.  The transfer deed along with other 
documents may be sent at the following address:

Aar� Consultants Private, Unit : TGV SRAAC Limited, 1‐2‐285, Domalguda, Hyderabad – 500 029, 
Telangana

7.    With effect from April 01, 2024, dividend to shareholders (holding shares in physical form), shall be paid 
only through electronic mode.  Such payment shall be made upon folio being KYC compliant i.e., the 
PAN, contact details including mobile no., Bank Account details and specimen signature are registered 
with the RTA/Company [ SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD=1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 
07, 2024, read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD‐1/P/CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024].

8.    Non‐resident and Resident Indian Shareholders are requested to inform us immediately :

 a)  the change in Residen�al Status on return to India for permanent se�lement.

 b) Important Request :the par�culars of Bank/NRE Account, if not furnished earlier to enable the    
company for credi�ng dividend amount to their respec�ve accounts.

9.  Mandatory upda�on of PAN, KYC, Bank details, Specimen signature and Nomina�on details prior to   
processing the payment of Dividend: 

Pursuant to SEBI Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ POD‐1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024 
issued to the Registrar and Transfer Agents and SEBI Circular no. SEBI/ HO/MIRSD/POD‐
1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated November 17, 2023 and SEBI Circular No.SEBI/HO/MIRSD/PoD‐
1/P/CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024, as amended, SEBI has mandated that, with effect from April 1, 
2024, dividend to the security holders holding shares in physical mode “shall be paid only through 
electronic mode”. Such payment to the eligible shareholders holding physical shares shall be made 



only a�er they have furnished their PAN, Contact Details (Postal Address with PIN and Mobile 
Number), Bank Account Details, Specimen Signature, etc., for their corresponding physical folios with 
the Company or its RTA. Relevant FAQs have been published by SEBI in this regard. The FAQs and the 
abovemen�oned SEBI Master Circular and SEBI Circular are available on SEBI's website and the 
website of the Company at www.tgvgroup.com

The forms for upda�on of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomina�on viz. Forms ISR‐1, ISR‐2, ISR‐3 and 
SH‐13 are available on our website at  h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/investors.html.  In view of the 
above, we urge Members holding shares in physical form to submit the required forms duly filled up 
and signed,  along with the suppor�ng documents at  the earl iest  to the R TA at 
www.aarthiconsultants.com .  Towards this, the Company has sent vide its le�er dtd.04.03.2024 to the 
Members holding shares in physical form, in rela�on to applicable SEBI Circular(s). Members who hold 
shares in dematerialised form and wish to update their PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomina�on, are 
requested to contact their respec�ve DPs.  Further, Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to ensure that their PAN is linked to their Aadhar Card.

Upda�on of mandate for receiving dividend directly in bank account through Electronic Clearing 
System or any other means in a �mely manner:

Shares held in physical form: Members are requested to send the following details/documents to the 
Company's RTA, viz. M/s. Aarthi Consultants Private Limited, 1‐2‐285, Domalguda, Hyderabad –      
500 029 (Telangana).

» Form No. ISR‐1 duly filled and signed by the holders, sta�ng their name, folio number, complete 
address with pin code, and the following details rela�ng to the bank account in which the dividend is 
to be received: 

(I Name of Bank and Bank Branch; 

(ii) Bank Account Number; 

(iii) 11‐digit IFSC Code; and 

(iv) 9‐digit MICR Code. 

The said form is available on the website of the Company at h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com /investors. 
html  and on the website of the RTA at www.aarthiconsultants.com

» Cancelled cheque in original, bearing the name of the Member or first holder (in case shares are held 
jointly). In case, name of the shareholder is not available on the cheque, kindly submit the following 
documents: 

 (i)  Cancelled cheque in original and;

 (ii) Bank a�ested legible copy of the first page of the Bank Passbook/Bank Statement bearing the 
names of the account holders, address, same bank account number and type as on the cheque leaf 
and full address of the bank branch. 
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 »  Self‐a�ested copy of the PAN Card; and

 » Self‐a�ested copy of any document (such as Aadhar Card, Driving Licence, Elec�on Iden�ty Card, 
Passport) in support of the address of the Member as registered with the Company. The PAN Card 
shall be linked to the Aadhar Card. Members are requested to refer to detailed process by accessing 
the link on www.aarthiconsultants.com  and proceed accordingly.

10.     Nomina�on facility:

As per the provisions of Sec�on 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomina�on is available to the 
Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 
nomina�ons are requested to register the same by submi�ng Form No. SH‐13. If a Member desires 
to opt‐out or cancel the earlier nomina�on and record a fresh nomina�on, the Member may submit 
the requisite applica�on in Form ISR‐3 or Form SH‐14, as the case may be. 

The said forms can be downloaded from the Company's website at h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/ 
investors.html as well as from the RTA's website at www.aarthiconsultants.com.  Members are 
requested to submit the said form to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to 
the  RTA at csg‐unit@linkin�me.co.in in case the shares are held in physical form,  quo�ng  their  
folio no(s).

11.  In accordance with Regula�on 40 of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, as amended, any fresh transfer 
requests for securi�es shall be processed in demat  /electronic form only. Members holding shares of 
the Company in physical form are requested to kindly get their shares converted into demat / 
electronic form to get inherent benefits of dematerialisa�on.

12.    Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/ P/CIR/ 
2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securi�es in demat form 
only, while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securi�es cer�ficate, claim from 
Unclaimed Suspense Account, Renewal/Exchange of securi�es cer�ficate, Endorsement, Sub‐
division/Spli�ng of securi�es cer�ficate, Consolida�on of securi�es cer�ficates/ folios, 
Transmission and Transposi�on. Accordingly, Shareholders are requested to make service requests 
by submi�ng a duly filled and signed Form ISR‐4. It may be noted that any service request can be 
processed only a�er the folio is KYC compliant.

13.  During FY2023‐24, SEBI has established a common Online Dispute Resolu�on Portal ('ODR 
Portal') for resolu�on of disputes arising in the Indian Securi�es Market. Pursuant to this, post 
exhaus�ng the op�on to resolve their grievance with the RTA/Company directly and/or through 
the SEBI SCORES pla�orm, the investors can ini�ate dispute resolu�on through the ODR Portal 
(h�ps://smartodr.in/login) and the same can also be accessed through the Company's website 
at h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com

14.   Payment of Dividend through electronic means 

 To avoid loss of dividend warrants in transit and undue delay in receipt of dividend warrants,      
the Company provides the facility to the Members for remi�ance of dividend directly in electronic 
mode through Na�onal Automated Clearing House (NACH). Members holding shares in physical

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

10 Annual Report 2024-25



TGV SRAAC LIMITED

11 Annual Report 2024-25

form and desirous of availing this facility of electronic remi�ance are requested to provide their 
latest bank account details (Core Banking Solu�ons Enabled Account Number, 9‐digit MICR and 
11‐digit IFS Code), along with their Folio Number and original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the 
name of the first‐named shareholder as account holder, to the Company's Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent – Aarthi Consultants Pvt Ltd.

 Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank par�culars registered 
against their respec�ve depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The 
Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding 
shares in electronic form for any change of bank par�culars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be 
advised only to the respec�ve Depository Par�cipant of the Members. 

 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of address immediately 
to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in electronic form must 
send the advice about change in address to their respec�ve Depository Par�cipant only and not to the 
Company or the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

 Members may note that the Income‐tax Act, 1961, (“the IT Act”) as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, 
mandates that dividends paid or distributed by a company a�er April 1, 2020 shall be taxable in the 
hands of members. The Company shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source ("TDS") at the 
�me of making the payment of final dividend. In order to enable us to determine the appropriate TDS 
rate as applicable, members are requested to submit relevant documents, as specified in the below 
paragraphs, in accordance with the provisions of the IT Act:

 For Resident Shareholders, taxes shall be deducted at source under Sec�on 194 of the IT Act as 
follows:

Members having valid Permanent Account 
Number ("PAN") 
Members not having PAN / valid PAN

10% or as no�fied by the Government of India 

20% or as no�fied by the Government of India 

However, no tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable to a resident individual if the total dividend to 
be received by them during financial year 2023‐24 does not exceed Rs.5,000/‐ and also in cases where 
members provide Form 15G / Form 15H (Form 15H is applicable to individuals aged 60 years or more) 
subject to condi�ons specified in the IT Act. Resident shareholders may also submit any other document 
as prescribed under the IT Act to claim a lower / nil withholding tax. PAN is mandatory for members 
providing Form 15G / 15H or any other document as men�oned above.

For Non‐Resident Shareholders, taxes are required to be withheld in accordance with the provisions of 
Sec�on 195 and other applicable sec�ons of the IT Act, at the rates in force. The withholding tax shall be at 
the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) or as no�fied by the Government of India on the 
amount of dividend payable. However, as per Sec�on 90 of the IT Act, non‐resident shareholders have the 
op�on to be governed by the provisions of the Double Tax Avoidance Agreement (“DTAA”), read with 



Mul�lateral Instrument (“MLI”) between India and the country of tax residence of the member, if they 
are more beneficial to them. For this purpose, i.e. to avail the benefits under the DTAA read with MLI, 
non‐resident shareholders will have to provide the following:

‐  Copy of the PAN card allo�ed by the Indian income tax authori�es duly a�ested by the Member or 
details as prescribed under rule 37BC of Income‐tax Rules, 1962. 

‐  Copy of Tax Residency Cer�ficate for financial year 2024‐25 obtained from the revenue authori�es of  
the country of tax residence, duly a�ested by member.

‐  Self‐declara�on in Form 10F. 

‐   Self‐declara�on by the member of having no permanent establishment in India in accordance with the 
applicable tax treaty.

‐  Self‐declara�on of beneficial ownership by the non‐resident shareholder. 

‐  Any other documents as prescribed under the IT Act for lower withholding of taxes if applicable, duly 
a�ested by the member.

In case of Foreign Ins�tu�onal Investors / Foreign Por�olio Investors, tax will be deducted under Sec�on 
196D of the IT Act @ 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) or the rate provided in relevant DTAA, read 
with MLI, whichever is more beneficial, subject to the submission of the above documents.

The aforemen�oned documents can be downloaded from Company's website at h�ps:// 
www.tgvgroup.com on general tab and are required to be send at our RTA's e‐mail id 
info@aarthiconsultants.comon or before 5 pm (IST),19th September, 2025 to enable the Company to 
determine the appropriate TDS/ withholding tax rate applicable. Incomplete and/ or unsigned forms and 
declara�ons will not be considered by the Company. Any communica�on on the tax determina�on/ 
deduc�on received a�er 5:00 pm (IST) 19th September, 2025 shall not be considered. All 
communica�ons/ queries in this respect should be addressed to our RTA, M/s.Aarthi Consultants Private 
Limited to its email address at info@aarthiconsultants.com or Company's e‐mail address at 
sralkalies@tgvmail.net. 

The Company will send through email a so� copy of the TDS Cer�ficate at the shareholders registered 
email ID post payment of the said Final Dividend. Shareholders will also be able to see the credit of TDS in 
Form 26AS, which can be downloaded from their e‐filing account at h�ps://incometaxindiaefiling.gov.in.

 Members holding shares in physical form are advised to furnish, on or before 9th September, 2025 
par�culars of their bank account, if not done already or if it has changed, to the Company to 
incorporate the same in the dividend warrants/ payment instruments.

  Sec�on 72 of the Act provides for Nomina�on by the Members of the Company in the prescribed Form 
No. SH‐13 for shares held in physical form. Blank forms will be supplied by ACPL on request. Members 
holding shares in dematerialized form may contact their respec�ve Depository Par�cipants for 
recording of nomina�on

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 124 of the Act, Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund Authority 
(Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”) read with the relevant circulars 
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and amendments thereto, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven 
years from the due date is required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund 
(“IEPF”), cons�tuted by the Central Government.

Members who have not encashed dividend declared by the Company during previous years, are advised to 
write to the Company immediately at  sralkalies@tgvmail.net

E‐Vo�ng:

The Company is pleased to provide E‐Vo�ng facility through Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) for all members of the Company to enable them to cast their votes electronically on the resolu�ons 
men�oned in the no�ce of 43rd Annual General Mee�ng of the Company dated 08th August, 2025. The 
Company has appointed Mr M. Nirmal Kumar Reddy, B.Com., F.C.A., I.S.A, I.R.M., Prac�cing Chartered 
Accountant as the Scru�nizer for conduc�ng and comple�ng the E‐vo�ng coun�ng process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

The E‐vo�ng rights of the Shareholders / beneficial owners shall be reckoned on the equity shares held by 
them as on 19th September, 2025. The instruc�ons for Members for vo�ng electronically are as under :

CDSL e‐Vo�ng System – For Remote e‐vo�ng and Joining Virtual mee�ngs e‐vo�ng during AGM / EGM  

1. As you are aware, in view of the situa�on arising due to COVID‐19 global pandemic, the general 
mee�ngs of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated 
April 13, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and General Circular No.2/2022 dated 
05.05.2022,  General Circular No.10/22 dated December 28, 2022, General Circular No.09/2023 
dated September 25, 2023 and General Circular No.09/2024 dated September 19, 2024and SEBI 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD /CIR/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD‐2/P/CIR/ 2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD‐
2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 03, 2024. The forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held through 
video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can a�end and 
par�cipate in the ensuing AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regula�on 44 of SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars 
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020, May 05, 2022, December 28, 2022, September 25, 
2023 and September 19, 2024 the Company is providing facility of remote e‐vo�ng to its Members in 
respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilita�ng 
vo�ng through electronic means, as the authorized e‐Vo�ng's agency. The facility of cas�ng votes by a 
member using remote e‐vo�ng as well as the e‐vo�ng system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be 
provided by CDSL.

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a�er the 
scheduled �me of the commencement of the Mee�ng by following the procedure men�oned in the 
No�ce. The facility of par�cipa�on at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to
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atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Ins�tu�onal Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to a�end the 
EGM/AGM without restric�on on account of first come first served basis.

4. The a�endance of the Members a�ending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Sec�on 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 read with Circular No.02/2022 dated May 
05, 2022, the facility to appoint proxy to a�end and cast vote for the members is not available for this 
AGM/EGM. However, in pursuance of Sec�on 112 and Sec�on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
representa�ves of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body 
corporate can a�end the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e‐vo�ng.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 
No�ce calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.tgvgroup.com. The No�ce can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 
Limited and Na�onal Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com 
respec�vely.  The AGM/EGM No�ce is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing 
the Remote e‐Vo�ng facility and e‐vo�ng system during the AGM/EGM) i.e. www.evo�ngindia.com.

7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular 
No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, Circular 
No.02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, MCA Circular No.09/2023 dated September 25, 2023andMCA 
Circular No.09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD 
/CIR/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, SEBI Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD‐2/P/ 
CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD‐2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 
October 03, 2024.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E‐VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS 
UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e‐Vo�ng system in case of individual shareholders  
holding shares in demat mode. 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e‐Vo�ng system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and 
non‐individual shareholders in demat mode.

(i)  The vo�ng period begins on 22‐09‐2025 at 9.00 A.M and ends on 26‐09‐2025 at 5.00 P.M. During this 
period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut‐off date (record date) of 19‐09‐2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e‐vo�ng 
module shall be disabled by CDSL for vo�ng therea�er.

(ii)  Shareholders who have already voted prior to the mee�ng date would not be en�tled to vote at the 
mee�ng venue.
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(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD‐PoD/2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 03.10.2024,under 
Regula�on 44 of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, listed en��es are required to provide remote e‐vo�ng facility to its 
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolu�ons. However, it has been observed that the  
par�cipa�on by the public non‐ins�tu�onal shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.   
Currently, there are mul�ple e‐vo�ng service providers (ESPs) providing e‐vo�ng facility to listed 
en��es in India. This necessitates registra�on on various ESPs and maintenance of mul�ple user IDs 
and passwords by the shareholders.  In order to increase the efficiency of the vo�ng process, pursuant 
to a public consulta�on, it has been decided to enable e‐vo�ng to all the demat account holders, by 
way of a single login creden�al, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 
Par�cipants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again 
with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilita�ng seamless authen�ca�on but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of par�cipa�ng in e‐vo�ng process. 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e‐Vo�ng system in case of individual shareholders 
holding shares in demat mode. 

(iv)  In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on           
e‐Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat 
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Par�cipants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e‐Vo�ng facility.

  Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e‐Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ngs for 
Individual shareholders holding securi�es in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi�es in 
Demat mode with CDSL 
Depository

Type of shareholders Login Method

1)  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their exis�ng user id and password. Op�on will be made available to 
reach e‐Vo�ng page without any further authen�ca�on. The URL for 
u s e r s  t o  l o g i n  t o  E a s i  /  E a s i e s t  a r e  h � p s : / / w e b . 
cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  www.cdslindia.com and 
click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) A�er successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e‐
Vo�ng op�on for eligible companies where the evo�ng is in progress as 
per the informa�on provided by company. On clicking the e‐vo�ng 
op�on, the user will be able to see e‐Vo�ng page of the e‐Vo�ng service 
provider for cas�ng your vote during the remote e‐Vo�ng period or 
joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng. Addi�onally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e‐Vo�ng Service 
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL, so that the user can visit the e‐Vo�ng service 
providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available 
at h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registra�on/ EasiRegistra�on
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Type of shareholders Login Method

4)  Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e‐Vo�ng page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e‐Vo�ng link available 
on  www.cdslindia.com home page or click on h�ps://evo�ng. 
cdslindia.com/ Evo�ng/Evo�ngLogin The system will authen�cate 
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the Demat Account. A�er successful authen�ca�on, user will be 
able to see the e‐Vo�ng op�on where the e‐vo�ng is in progress and 
also able to directly access the system of all e‐Vo�ng Service 
Providers.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi�es in 
demat mode with NSDL 

1)  If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 
e‐Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e‐Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 
is available under 'IDeAS' sec�on. A new screen will open. 

Depository 1)  You will have to enter your User ID and Password. A�er successful 
authen�ca�on, you will be able to see e‐Vo�ng services. Click on 
“Access to e‐Vo�ng” under e‐Vo�ng services and you will be able to 
see e‐Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e‐Vo�ng service 
provider name and you will be re‐directed to e‐Vo�ng service 
provider website for cas�ng your vote during the remote e‐Vo�ng 
period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e‐Services, op�on to register is 
available at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or clic at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/ SecureWeb/ 
Ideas Direct Reg.jsp

3)  Visit the e‐Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e‐Vo�ng system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
'Shareholder/Member' sec�on. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as 
shown on the screen. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be
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 redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e‐Vo�ng 
page. Click on company name or e‐Vo�ng service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e‐Vo�ng service provider website for 
cas�ng your vote during the remote e‐Vo�ng period or joining 
virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securi�es in 
demat  mode)  log in 
t h r o u g h  t h e i r 
Depository Par�cipants 
(DP)

  You can also login using the login creden�als of your demat account 
through your Depository Par�cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e‐Vo�ng facility.  A�er Successful login, you will be able to see e‐
Vo�ng op�on. Once you click on e‐Vo�ng op�on, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site a�er successful 
authen�ca�on, wherein you can see e‐Vo�ng feature. Click on 
company name or e‐Vo�ng service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e‐Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng your vote 
during the remote e‐Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & 
vo�ng during the mee�ng.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi�es in 
Demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi�es in 
Demat mode with NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at or contact at helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 – 4886 7000 
and 022 – 2499 7000

Step 2 :  Access through CDSL e‐Vo�ng system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and 
non‐individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v)  Login method for e‐Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ngs for Physical shareholders and shareholders 
other than individual holding in Demat form.

 1) The shareholders should log on to the e‐vo�ng website www.evo�ngindia.com.

 2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
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 3) Now enter your User ID 

4) Next enter the Image Verifica�on as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evo�ngindia.com and voted on 
an earlier e‐vo�ng of any company, then your exis�ng password is to be used. 

6) If you are a first‐�me user follow the steps given below:

PAN

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders 
holding shares in Demat.

Enter your 10 digit alpha‐numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders)

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Par�cipant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details

OR Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 
as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to 
login.

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 
details field.

(vi)        A�er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selec�on screen. 
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Crea�on' menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for vo�ng for resolu�ons of 
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e‐vo�ng 
through CDSL pla�orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confiden�al.

(viii) For share holders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e‐vo�ng on the 
resolu�ons contained in this no�ce.  

(ix)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant TGV SRAAC Limited on which you choose to vote.

(x)  On the vo�ng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the op�on 
“YES/NO” for vo�ng. Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. The op�on YES implies that you 
assent to the Resolu�on and op�on NO implies that you dissent to the Resolu�on.
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(xi)  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the en�re Resolu�on details.

(xii) A�er selec�ng the resolu�on, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirma�on box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” op�on on the Vo�ng 
page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgo�en the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verifica�on code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) There is also an op�onal provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available 
to scru�nizer for verifica�on.

(xvii) Addi�onal Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Vo�ng only.

· Non‐Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evo�ngindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

· A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form bearing the stamp and sign of the en�ty should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

· A�er receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

· The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automa�cally & can be delink in case of any 
wrong mapping.

· It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and Power of A�orney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 
for the scru�nizer to verify the same.

· Alterna�vely Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board 
Resolu�on/ Authority le�er etc. together with a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scru�nizer and to the Company at the email address 
viz; sralkalies@tgvmail.net (designated email address by company), if they have voted from 
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e‐vo�ng system for the scru�nizer to verify the 
same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM &               
E‐VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for a�ending mee�ng & e‐Vo�ng on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the 
instruc�ons men�oned above for e‐vo�ng.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to a�end mee�ng will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed a�er successful login as per the instruc�ons men�oned above for e‐vo�ng.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e‐Vo�ng will be eligible to a�end the mee�ng. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.
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4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops / IPads for be�er experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the mee�ng.

6. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connec�ng 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It 
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi‐Fi or LAN Connec�on to mi�gate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast7 days prior to mee�ng men�oning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The 
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in 
advance 7 days prior to mee�ng men�oning their name, demat account number/folio number, email 
id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by 
email. 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e‐Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from doing 
so, shall be eligible to vote through e‐Vo�ng system available during the EGM/AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e‐vo�ng available during the EGM/AGM and if 
the same shareholders have not par�cipated in the mee�ng through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes 
cast by such shareholders during AGM may be considered invalid as the facility of e‐vo�ng during the 
mee�ng is available only to the shareholders a�ending the mee�ng.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders‐ please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (selfa�ested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders ‐ Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respec�ve Depository 
Par�cipant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respec�ve 
Depository Par�cipant (DP) which is mandatory while e‐Vo�ng & joining virtual mee�ngs through 
Depository.

Place : Hyderabad
th

Date  : 8 August, 2025        

By order of the Board of Directors
Sd/‐

CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

CGM & COMPANY SECRETARY
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Par�culars

Revenue from opera�ons

Profit Before excep�onal item and Tax

Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account from 
con�nuing opera�ons

Equity Capital

Year Ended 
31.03.2025

1545.96

43.76

60.99

107.09

Year Ended
31.03.2024

Year Ended
31.03.2023

2325.73

442.14

362.06

107.09

(Rs. in Crores)

1749.04

125.55

92.36

107.09

(4)  Foreign Investment or Collabora�on, if any : ‐ Not applicable ‐

II.   Informa�on about the appointee :

(1)  Background details : 

Sri Elluru Ramaiah is 58 Years old and he pocesses AMIE technical qualifica�on in engineering having 
more than 38 Years of experience in our Company.  Star�ng his career as Trainee Engineer and at 
present in the cadre of Sr. Vice President (Mechanical). He is not holding any Directorship in other 
listed en�ty.

The following Statement, as required under Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, sets out all material 
facts rela�ng to the items of Special Business men�oned under item no. 5 to 11 of  the accompanying 
No�ce dtd. 08.08.2025.

Item No. 5

Members may please be noted that in view of the increased opera�ons of the Company and 
implementa�on of future plans and on considera�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 
recommenda�on dated 19.05.2025 and 07.07.2025, the Board in its mee�ngs held on 27.05.2025 and 
08.08.2025 recommended for appointment of Sri Ramaiah Elluru as Director (Mechanical) subject to 
Shareholders' approval in the Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) pursuant to Sec.110 of the Companies Act, 
2013 on remunera�on as explained in the Resolu�on.  

Annexure

I.     General Informa�on

(1) Nature of Industry : Manufacturer's of ChlorAlkalie Chemicals, Chloromethanes, Castor Oil deriva�ves, 
Fa�y Acids and  Power Genera�on.  Company CIN No. L24110AP1981PLC003077, BSE Scrip Code : 
507753 lis�ng with BSE Ltd.

(2) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of ac�vi�es as per project approved by 
the financial ins�tu�ons appearing in the prospectus : ‐ Not Applicable ‐.

(3)  Financial Performance : (Audited)  
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(2)  Past Remunera�on : 

As a recogni�on for his long term associa�on with the company and for his commi�ed involvement in 
execu�on of company growth plans, he has been proposed for appointment as Director (Mechanical) 
for 3 (Three) years subject to members approval and the details of remunera�on are furnished in the 
prior to this, he is associated with the company in the cadre of Sr. Vice President (Mechanical).

(3)  Job Profile and his suitability :

To take care of technical ma�ers of the Plant, Maintenance, Safety, Execu�on of future plans of the 
company and Administra�on of Technical Staff, overall responsibility of future plans design and 
par�cipa�on in strategic plans execu�on.

(4)  Remunera�on Proposed :

Proposed Remunera�on has been recommended by Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and 
Board of Directors which is appropriate and reasonable, keeping in view of Responsibility, Rights and 
Accountability. Further, perquisites will be valued as per rules of the company.

(5)  Compara�ve Remunera�on with respect to Industry, size of the Company, profile of the posi�on and 
person :

Considering the size of the Company and the job profile of the posi�on and the creden�als and 
performance of the appointee, the remunera�on proposed is moderate and reasonable and 
compares well with that of similar companies.

(6) Pecuniary rela�onship directly or indirectly with the Company or rela�onship with the Managerial 
Personnel, if any.

Sri Elluru Ramaiah is Technical Professional and he is not having any rela�onship with the Directors or 
KMP or their rela�ves. He is not holding any shares in the company. 

III.  Other Informa�on :

(1)  Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement of the Company :

Caus�c Soda Expansion project is under progress. Company proposal for Solar Power genera�on is 
under implementa�on.  Once these programmes are completed, the profitability of the company is 
envisaged for further improvement in view of these projects contribu�on.

(2)  Expected Increase in produc�vity and profits in measurable terms : 

 Depending upon the nature of the Industry, it has not been predicted accurately.

IV.  Disclosures : 

The Company being a Listed Company, the provisions of Corporate Governance are applicable and hence 
required details are furnished here to comply with Regula�on 36 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regula�ons, 2015 read with Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013.
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Your Directors commend the Special Resolu�on for your approval and ra�fica�on. None of the Directors or 
KMP or their rela�ves except Sri Elluru Ramaiah is deemed to be interested in this Special Resolu�on.

Item No. 6:

Jus�fica�on for appointment as Director (Quality Assurance) at the age of 72 years.

It may please be noted that Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l is one of the senior most officer of the Company 
since its star�ng commercial opera�ons and at present he is discharging du�es in the cadre of Vice 
President (Quality Assurance). The main jus�fica�on for his appointment as Director (Quality Assurance) 
at the age of 72 is his commitment, loyalty, exper�se, exposure and honesty and hence a�er considering 
these factors into account, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (07.07.2025) has recommended 
the company proposal for members approval to comply with statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 to appoint him as Director (Quality Assurance) which is very much essen�al for company growth, and 
for me�culous execu�on of company strategic and sustainable growth plans.  In view of the above 
explained reasons, it is fully jus�fied that the proposed appointment as Director (Quality Assurance),as he 
is healthy and fully fit to discharge his du�es, since he is at present discharging du�es in the cadre of Vice 
President (Quality Assurance) of the company.

Annexure

I.     General Informa�on

(1) Nature of Industry : Manufacturer's of Chlor’Alkalie Chemicals, Chloromethanes, Castor Oil 
deriva�ves, Fa�y Acids and  Power Genera�on.  Company CIN No. L24110AP1981PLC003077, BSE 
Scrip Code : 507753 lis�ng with BSE Ltd.

(2) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of ac�vi�es as per project approved by 
the financial ins�tu�ons appearing in the prospectus : ‐ Not Applicable ‐.

(3)  Financial Performance : (Audited)  

Par�culars

Revenue from opera�ons

Profit Before excep�onal item and Tax

Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account from 
con�nuing opera�ons

Equity Capital

Year Ended 
31.03.2025

1545.96

43.76

60.99

107.09

Year Ended
31.03.2024

Year Ended
31.03.2023

2325.73

442.14

362.06

107.09

(Rs. in Crores)

1749.04

125.55

92.36

107.09

(4)  Foreign Investment or Collabora�on, if any : ‐ Not applicable ‐
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II.   Informa�on about the appointee :

(1)  Background details : 

Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l pocessing Master of Science (M.Sc) qualifica�on was born on 04/07/1953 
and is now 72 years age having experience of more than 45 years in various reputed companies like 
Sree Rayalaseema Paper Mills Ltd., TGV SRAAC Limited etc.  He is having exper�se and experience in 
the field of quality assurance, maintenance, products development and compliance with the 
provisions for obtaining licenses and approval from concerned authori�es.

(2)  Past Remunera�on : 

As a recogni�on for his long term associa�on with the company and for his commi�ed involvement in 
extension of company growth plans, he was proposed to be appointed as Director (Quality Assurance) 
and the details of remunera�on are furnished in the Resolu�on and hence the details of past 
remunera�on are not applicable. 

(3)  Job Profile and his suitability :

To take care of quality assurance, maintenance, research and development.  He is responsible for 
obtaining all types of approvals, licenses, and cer�fica�ons of all the products being manufactured by 
the Company.  He is also coordina�ng the ac�vi�es of research and development of value added 
products, process etc., of all types. 

(4)  Remunera�on Proposed :

Proposed Remunera�on has been recommended by Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and 
Board of Directors which is appropriate and reasonable, keeping in view of Responsibility, Rights and 
Accountability. Further, perquisites will be valued as per rules of the company.

(5) Compara�ve Remunera�on with respect to Industry, size of the Company, profile of the posi�on and 
person :

Considering the size of the Company and the job profile of the posi�on and the creden�als and 
performance of the appointee, the remunera�on proposed is moderate and reasonable and 
compares well with that of similar companies.

(6) Pecuniary rela�onship directly or indirectly with the Company or rela�onship with the Managerial 
Personnel, if any.

Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l is Technical Professional and he is not having any rela�onship with the 
Directors or KMP or their rela�ves. He is holding 02 Equity shares in the company.  
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III.  Other Informa�on :

(1)  Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement of the Company :

Caus�c Soda Expansion project is under progress. Company proposal for Solar Power genera�on is 
under implementa�on. Once these programmes are completed, the profitability of the company is 
envisaged for further improvement in view of these projects contribu�on. 

(2)  Expected Increase in produc�vity and profits in measurable terms :

Depending upon the nature of the Industry, it has not been predicted accurately.

IV.  Disclosures :

The Company being a Listed Company, the provisions of Corporate Governance are applicable and hence 
required details are furnished here to comply with Regula�on 36 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regula�ons, 2015 read with Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013.

Your Directors commend the Special Resolu�on for your approval.  None of the Directors or KMP or their 
rela�ves except Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l is deemed to be interested in this Special Resolu�on. 

Item No. 7: 

It may please be noted that Dr Asha Reddy Mora was earlier associated with the company in the capacity 
of Non‐Execu�ve Independent Director for a period of 5 years and 8 months i.e.,  from 29.01.2016 to 
27.09.2021.  In view of this, she has acquainted thorough knowledge about the company, its growth plans 
and culture.  Further cooling period of 3 years as men�oned in Sec�on 149(10) read with Sec. 152 has 
been completed on 27.09.2024 and hence she is eligible to act as Independent Director of the company 
again. 

On considera�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee recommenda�on (07.07.2025), she was 
appointed as Addi�onal Director by the Board in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025 whose term is upto the 
conclusion of this AGM pursuant to Sec�on 161 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received a proposal from a member proposing her candidature for the posi�on of Non‐
Execu�ve Independent Director. Further she has given declara�on that Directors disqualifica�on 
provisions are not applicable to her.  She has submi�ed her consent to act as Director in Form DIR‐2 and 
DIR‐8. Further, it may please be noted that to comply with the provisions of Sec�on 149(6), she has 
confirmed that she meets the criteria for independence pursuant to Regula�on 16(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015.  Considering the above the Board in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025 has recommended 
the proposal for her appointment as Non‐Execu�ve Independent Director for a term of 5 consecu�ve 
years as clearly men�oned in the resolu�on (i.e., from 08.08.2025 to 07.08.2030) vide item No.7 of this 
no�ce for your approval.

Disclosures as required under Regula�on 36(3) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and Secretarial Standard‐2 
on General Mee�ngs issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India are annexed to this No�ce.
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company or their respec�ve rela�ves, 
except Dr Asha Reddy Mora and her rela�ves, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolu�on set out at Item No.7 of the accompanying No�ce.

In view of the above explained reasons, your Directors commend the Special Resolu�on as men�oned in 
item No. 7 of No�ce of AGM for your approval for her appointment as Non‐Execu�ve Independent 
Director.

Item No. 8: 

Pursuant to the Regula�on 24A & other applicable provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”) read 
with provisions of Sec�on 204 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any 
(“the Act”), the Audit Commi�ee and the Board of Directors at their respec�ve mee�ngs held on 
08.08.2025 have approved subject to approval of Members, appointment of Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari, 
Prac�cing Company Secretary (CP No. 7350) as Secretarial Auditor for a term of 5 (Five) consecu�ve years 
from April 1, 2025 �ll March 31, 2030.

Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari is a Fellow Member of Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and an 
Insolvency Professional registered with Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (IBBI). He also holds a 
Master's Degree in Finance and Master's Degree in Law. He possesses more than 20 years of rich 
Experience in Secretarial Services, Merchant Banking Ac�vi�es and Insolvency ma�ers. He is currently 
Vice Chairman of ICSI‐SIRC and was the Chairman for Hyderabad Chapter of ICSI in the year 2016.

Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari is Peer reviewed in terms of the guidelines issued by the ICSI.

Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari has been the Secretarial Auditor of the Company since FY24 and as part of his 
Secretarial audit demonstrated his exper�se and proficiency in handling Secretarial audits of the Company 
�ll date.

The proposed remunera�on to be paid to Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari for secretarial audit services for the 
financial year ending March 31, 2026, is Rs. 1,00,000/‐ (Rupees one lakh only) plus applicable taxes and 
out‐of‐pocket expenses. Besides the secretarial audit services, the Company may also obtain cer�fica�ons 
from Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari under various statutory regula�ons and cer�fica�ons required by banks, 
statutory authori�es, audit related services and other permissible non‐secretarial audit services as 
required from �me to �me, for which they will be remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms, as 
approved by the Board of Directors in consulta�on with the Audit Commi�ee. 

The Board of Directors and the Audit Commi�ee shall approve revisions to the remunera�on of Mr. 
Mahadev Tirunagari for the remaining part of the tenure.

The Board of Directors, in consulta�on with the Audit Commi�ee, may alter and vary the terms and 
condi�ons of appointment, including remunera�on, in such manner and to such extent as may be 
mutually agreed with Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari.
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Based on the recommenda�ons of the Audit Commi�ee, the Board of Directors have approved and 
recommended the aforesaid proposal for approval of members.

Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari have consented to the said appointment and confirmed that his appointment, if 
made, would be within the limits specified by the Ins�tute of Companies Secretaries of India. He has 
further confirmed that he is not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in term of provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies Secretaries Act, 1980 and Rules and Regula�ons made 
thereunder and the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons read with SEBI Circular dated December 31, 2024.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their rela�ves are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at Item No.8.

The Board recommends Ordinary resolu�on under Item No. of the accompanying No�ce for approval of 
Members.

Item No. 9:

The Board of Directors a�er taking into account the recommenda�on of Audit Commi�ee in its mee�ng 
held on 27.05.2025 has appointed M/s.Aruna Prasad & Co., (Regn.No.100883) Proprietrix: Mrs.Aruna 
Prasad as Cost Auditor for the Financial year 2025‐26 on a remunera�on of Rs.2,00,000/‐ plus GST and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses to conduct Cost Audit of cost records of the Company in 
compliance of MCA No�fica�on Ref. No.52/56/CAB‐2010, Dated 06‐11‐2012. As per the provisions of 
Sec�on 148 of the Act, payment of remunera�on and appointment of Cost Auditors requires Members 
ra�fica�on for the ac�on taken by the Board as explained above.

None of the Directors /Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company / their rela�ves is, in any way, 
concerned or interested in passing the Resolu�on set out in Item No.9 of the No�ce.

The Board of Directors pleased to recommend the Resolu�on set forth in Item No.9 for your approval.

Item No. 10:

Members may kindly aware that pursuant to Sec.188 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 15 of Companies 
(Mee�ngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Regula�on 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 
requires shareholders prior approval for all Material Related Party Transac�ons.  Further, it may kindly be 
noted that when aggregate value of Related Party transac�ons with single party exceeds the following 
threshold limit, then it is called material related party transac�on for a par�cular year.

Based on es�mates it is expected that aggregate value of Related Party transac�ons to be entered with 
SRHHL for 2025‐26 will likely be more than  the threshold limit i.e., material Related Party transac�ons 
value (threshold limit) explained hereunder.  To comply with the above statutory provisions members 
prior approval is sought for the following es�mated values of Related Party transac�ons with SRHHL 
(Related party/Group Company) for the year 2025‐26.
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Threshold Limit :

Pursuant to the above provisions, the threshold limit for 2025‐26 is lower of the following: 

1.  10% of previous year audited turnover (2024‐25) which is Rs.175 Cr

2.  1000 Crores

Threshold value of material Related Party transac�ons is Rs.175 Crores being lowest of the above (1) and 
(2) above.  It is more likely that aggregate value of Related Party transac�ons with SRHHL (a group 
company/Related Party) will be more than Rs.175 Cr (threshold limit) for 2025‐26 as men�oned in the 
following table (i.e., Rs.425 Crs).

nd(*) Members prior approval is for Rs. 460 Cr in 42 AGM)

In compliance of the above statutory provisions, prior approval for es�mated Material Related Party 
Transac�ons is sought to the aggregate value of Rs.425 Cr as clearly explained in the table for which the 
resolu�on has been placed in No�ce of AGM vide Item No.10.  It may kindly be noted that the actuals for 
2025‐26 with respect to sales, purchases and others may vary (i.e. subject to interchange) but overall 
omnibus value i.e., within Rs.425 Cr for which members prior approval sought.

It may kindly be noted that all Related Party Transac�ons are having Omnibus approval of the Audit 
Commi�ee and Board. Related Party Transac�ons are entered during the ordinary course of business and 
are at arm's length. These transac�ons are subject to transfer price audit to comply with statutory 
provisions.  Further 77.47% of Related Party Transac�ons are between two Listed Companies and these 
transac�ons are mutually beneficial.  It may please be noted that previous month weighted average 
sales/purchase price is considered for valuing current month sales/purchase as per the company policy 
and sales/purchase forms major part of material related party transac�ons aggregate value. Further lease 
rents are paid and received as per Rent Agreements.

None of the Directors /Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company / their rela�ves except the 
promoters are, in any way, concerned or interested in passing the Resolu�on set out in Item No.10 of the 
No�ce.

Your Directors recommend the above resolu�on for your approval.

(Rs. in Crores)

Sree Rayalasema 
Hi‐Strength 
Hypo Limited 
(SRHHL)

95.33 18.41 2.58 116.32
(*)

200.00 200.00 25.00 425.00

Actuals for 2024‐25

Sales Purchase Others

Name of the 
Related Party

Total

Es�mates for 2025‐26
(omnibus approval)

Sales Purchase Others Total
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Item No. 11:

The Company has availed addi�onal Capex LC facili�es of Rs.25 Cr from The Federal Bank Limited (FBL) 
vide their sanc�on le�er Ref.No.FB/HYD/CIB/FY25/92 dtd.28.02.2025 and le�er dtd.07.08.2025, and  
The Federal Bank Limited (FBL) agreed to sanc�on Rs.75 Cr Capex LC facility and from Indian Bank (IB) 
addi�onal Capex LC facili�es of Rs.45 Cr vide their sanc�on le�er No. 413 dtd.22.04.2025 and further 
Rs.50 Cr Capex LC facility sanc�oned by IDBI  Bank Limited vide their sanc�on le�er  
Ref.No.IDBI/MCG/129/TGVSRAAC/187/2025‐26 dtd.06.08.2025. In compliance of terms and condi�ons 
men�oned in the respec�ve sanc�on le�ers of Banks men�oned above the company has created/going to 
create exclusive charge on capital goods purchased/imported or going to purchase/import by availing the 
above Capex LC Limits. 

Further, Indian Bank (IB) vide its sanc�on le�er dtd.22.04.2025 to be availed sanc�on of Rs.56.45 Crs 
(Rs.50 Cr LC limits + Rs.6.45 Cr funded limits), and Punjab Na�onal Bank (PNB) vide its sanc�on le�er 
dtd.02.06.2025 has sanc�oned Rs.4.30 Cr (funded limits) working capital facili�es to the company. In 
compliance of terms and condi�ons men�oned in the respec�ve sanc�on le�er of Banks men�oned 
above the company has created/going to create  1st paripassu charge on current assets and 2nd paripassu 
charge on fixed assets (excluding specific charges) by availing the above working capital limits. 

Shareholders approval is requested for crea�on/ra�fica�on of charge created in favour of FBL and 
ra�fica�on in favour of IB, IDBI Bank Limited with respect to the above Capex LC sanc�ons and approval 
for crea�on of security in favour of IB and PNB for working capital sanc�ons to the company by these 
Banks.

Members are hereby requested to ra�fy the ac�on taken by the company for registra�on of charges with 
ROC/MCA or to create charge in favour of Banks to comply with terms and condi�ons of Banks sanc�on 
le�ers referred above.

Your Directors recommended the Special Resolu�on as set out in the No�ce for your approval.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or their rela�ves except the promoters is 
deemed to be interest in the Resolu�on.
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Details of Directors seeking appointment
(Pursuant to Regula�on 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015

Name of the Director
Sri E. Ramaiah
Director (Mechanical)

Sri P. Raghavendra Reddy
Director (Quality Assurance)

Director Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) 

Na�onality

Date of Birth / Age

Qualifica�ons

Experience in Specific areas

11054179

Indian

05‐07‐1967 / 58 years

AMIE

11054163

Indian

04‐07‐1953 / 72 years

M.Sc

He has joined the company on 
08.10.1987 star�ng his career as 
trainee engineer and prior to this 
appointment working as Sr. Vice 
President (Mechanical). He has put 
in 38 years of experience in various 
capaci�es with the company.

He has put in 35 years of experience 
with the company and prior to this 
appointment  associated with the 
company in the cadre of Vice 
P re s i d e nt  ( Q A ) .   H i s  o ve ra l l 
experience with reputed listed/non‐
listed companies in various fields is 
more than 46 years.  He is having 
enormous knowledge and exposure 
with respect to compliance with 
various statutes and regulators apart 
from research and development.

Nil

Nil

Date of Appointment on the 
Board of the Company

June 30, 2025 October 01, 2025

Membership (M)/ Chairmanship 
(C) in Commi�ees in other 
Listed Companies as on date

Nil
List of Directorship in other 
Listed Companies

Nil

There is no inter‐se rela�onship 
among the Directors.

Nil Nil

Rela�onship between Director 
inter‐se

Details of resigna�ons, if any, 
from the Board of other listed 
companies, in the last 3 years

There is no inter‐se rela�onship 
among the Directors.

Nil

Nil

NilShareholding in the Company 02 Equity Shares

0Board Mee�ngs a�ended

Commi�ee posi�ons in the Company

0

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

30 Annual Report 2024-25



Name of the Director Dr. M. Asha Reddy
Independent Director

Director Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) 

Na�onality

Date of Birth / Age

Qualifica�ons

07328122

Indian

April 18, 1969 / 56

M.D.S

Experience in Specific areas

Date of Appointment on the Board of the Company

Shareholding in the Company

List of Directorship in other Listed Companies

Board Mee�ngs a�ended

Commi�ee posi�ons in the Company

Rela�onship between Director inter‐se

August 8, 2025

Nil

Nil

0

Nil

There is no inter‐se rela�onship among the Directors.

Membership (M)/Chairmanship (C)  in Commi�ees 
in other Listed Companies as on date

Nil

Details of resigna�ons, if any, from the Board of 
other listed companies, in the last 3 years

Nil

She is having more than 20 years experience in the 
field of teaching den�stry, also having more than 
15 years experience in medical service rela�ng to 
den�stry and hospitals administra�on. At present 
working as Reader in Balaji Dental College, 
Moinabad and also consultant in the field of Root 
Canal specialty. Apart from this, she was 
associated with the company as Non‐Execu�ve 
Independent Director for 5 years and 8 months 
earlier i.e.,from 2016 to 2021.  She is having 
a d e q u ate  ex p o s u re  a n d  ex p e r i e n c e  a s 
Independent Director with the company in her 
previous s�nt and also well known personality in 
hospital administra�on and teaching.

Place : Hyderabad
th

Date  : 8 August, 2025        

By order of the Board of Directors
Sd/‐

CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

CGM & COMPANY SECRETARY
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Dear Members,

Your Directors' have pleasure in presen�ng the 43rd Annual Report and the Audited statements of 
stAccounts of the Company for the year ended 31  March, 2025.

1.  Opera�ons

The turnover (Gross) for the year under review is Rs. 202647 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 179275 lakhs in 
the previous year. The 13% increase in Turnover is mainly on account of be�er performance of main 
division and improvement in market condi�ons for the company products. 

2.  Division/ Segment Wise Performance  

For the current year Caus�c Soda produc�on is 276501 MTs, whereas for previous year produc�on is 
252284 MTs showing an increase of 10%. The net sales for Caus�c Soda plant is Rs. 113262 lakhs 
whereas for the previous year net sales is Rs. 96118 lakhs showing an increase of 18%.   

For the current year Caus�c Potash produc�on is 31845 MTs, whereas for the previous year the 
produc�on is 30338 MTs showing an increase of 5%. The net sales for Caus�c Potash Plant is Rs. 26785 
lakhs, whereas for the previous year net sales is Rs. 27950 lakhs showing marginal decrease of 4%. 

For the current year Chloromethanes produc�on is 99548 MTs, whereas for the previous year the 
produc�on is 86924 MTs showing an increase of 15%. The net sales for Chloromethanes Plant is Rs. 
28288 lakhs, whereas net sales for previous year is Rs. 24518 lakhs showing an increase of 15%.

For the current year Castor Oil deriva�ves produc�on is 264 MTs, whereas for the previous year the 
produc�on is 540 MTs showing a decrease of approximately 51%. The net sales for Castor Oil Plant is        
Rs. 441 lakhs, whereas for the previous year net sales is Rs. 788 lakhs showing a decrease of 44%.

For the current year Fa�y Acids produc�on is 4275 MTs, whereas for the previous year the produc�on 
is 4415 MTs showing marginal decrease of 3%.  The net sales for Fa�y acid plant is Rs. 5130 lakhs, 
whereas for the previous year net sales is Rs. 4088 lakhs showing an increase of 25%. 

There are no commercial opera�ons at Bellary Power Plant due to expiry of Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA) by KPTCL. The Company is looking out for other viable op�ons including its sale or 
reloca�on of the Plant. 

The Solar Power plant has generated power for the current year 43540.38 MWH as against previous 
year genera�on of 34225.24 MWH and it may be noted that all the power generated has been 
consumed internally by the Company internally.

Due to higher transmission charges involved compared to the benefits from genera�on, Wind Farm at 
Ramgiri transmission agreements approvals were not obtained from Electricity Authori�es. Hence no 
income from genera�on for current year as well as for previous year.

DIRECTORS'REPORT
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3.  Outlook for the Current Year 

Your Directors' have pleasure in presen�ng the Annual Report and the Audited statements of 
stAccounts of the Company for the year ended 31  March,2025.

Segment‐wise discussion is furnished in Management Discussion and Analysis annexed to this report 
in “ANNEXURE– E”.

Year Ended   
31.03.2025

Year Ended   
31.03.2024

FINANCIAL RESULTS (` in lakhs)

Profit before Finance Costs & deprecia�on  
Less: Finance Cost   
Profit before Deprecia�on 
Less: Deprecia�on
      Profit (Loss) before Excep�onal items and Tax
Add:  Excep�onal items 
     Profit/Loss Before Tax      
Tax Expense:  
Less: ‐ Current Tax
          ‐ Deferred Tax         
          ‐ Earlier years Income Tax
Profit for the period from con�nuing opera�ons 
Less : Loss from discon�nuing opera�ons             
          Tax expenses of discon�nuing opera�ons   
          Loss from discon�nuing opera�ons (A�er tax) 
Profit for the period  
Add: Balance Carried from Previous year
Add: Deferred Tax of Previous year    
Profit available for Appropria�on
Less: Transfer to General Reserve
Less: Dividend paid for 2023‐24 (2022‐23)
Less:  Transfer from reserves to Other
           Comprehensive Income                                                            
Surplus carried forward to next year

23916.29
2553.90 

21362.39  
8807.52   

12554.87  
‐

12554.87   

2428.04   
891.08        

‐
9235.75   

31.91   
8.03     

23.88   
9211.87   

51780.27  
‐

60992.14
1500.00
1070.90

48.34
58372.90  

15094.77
2368.72

12726.05
8349.84
4736.21‐‐
3990.17
8366.38

1758.99
508.58

‐
6098.82

35.71
8.99

26.72
6072.10

47704.84
103.93

53880.87
1000.00
1070.90

29.70
51780.27

Profit before tax for the current year is at Rs. 12554.87 lakhs as against previous year Profit before tax 
of Rs. 8366.38 lakhs.  For the Current year Profit a�er tax is Rs. 9235.75 lakhs as against Profit a�er tax 
for the previous year of Rs. 6098.82 lakhs. The increase in profits is a�ributable to be�er performance 
of main division and good demand for company main products i.e., Caus�c Soda, Chloromethanes 
and cost cu�ng measures. 

Par�culars
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4.     Capital Expenditure

To ensure sustainable growth by proper implementa�on of future strategic plans, the company 
has given importance for capital expenditure. During the year the Company has incurred 
capitalised expenditure of Rs. 301.66 Cr. (mainly towards Modernisa�on, Solar Power plant, 
Chloromethanes and strengthening of opera�ons).  Further, Capital Work‐in‐progress at the year 
end comes to Rs. 12.02 Cr. (mostly rela�ng to modernisa�on, Solar Power Project and others).

5.    Dividend

Considering good performance of the company, in the light of present situa�ons, and a�er taking 
into account liquidity posi�on and in pursuance to company dividend policy, the Board in its 
mee�ng held on 27.05.2025 has recommended final dividend for the year ending 31.03.2025 at 
Rs. 1/‐ per Equity Share of Rs. 10/‐ each (i.e. 10%) [same as previous two years].

The Dividend payment is subject to approvals of members at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng 
(AGM).  The total cash flow on account of dividend on equity shares for the financial year 2024‐25 
would aggregate to Rs. 10,70,89,800/‐. The dividend will be paid to members whose names 
appear in the Register of Members as on the cut‐off  date 19.09.2025.  The dividend payment 
date is 18.10.2025 (Saturday) / before the statutory �me limit i.e. 26.10.2025.

Further, in view of changes made under Income Tax Act 1960, by the Finance Act 2020, dividend 
paid or distributed by the company shall be taxable in the hands of the members/shareholders 
receiving dividend.  The company shall accordingly, make the payment of the final dividend a�er 
deduc�on of tax (TDS) at source at applicable rates.

6. Transfer of Unclaimed dividend / CRPS Redemp�on amount to Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund (IEPF)

   In terms of sec�on 124 and 125 of the companies act, 2013 read with the IEPF Authority               
(Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016, ('the Rules'), unpaid or unclaimed 
dividend/and frac�onal en�tlements/CRPS Redemp�on amounts etc., are due for remi�ance to 
the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government a�er 7 
years of its declara�on of Redemp�on by the company.

st     The Company had transferred unclaimed or unpaid CRPS Redemp�on amount (1  instalment for 
RI Shareholders and NRI Single instalment Redemp�on) to IEPF rela�ng to CRPS Redemp�on 
amount declared on 01.04.2018 amoun�ng to Rs.62,02,458.40 vide SRN : AB4841322 
Dtd.24.06.2025. The details are made available on Company website:

   h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraac/IEPF‐1‐CRPS%20Shareholders%20data%20‐
%20RI%201st%20Installment%20&%20NRI%20Single%20Redemp�on.pdf

The shareholders can claim back their CRPS Redemp�on amount transferred to IEPF by filing 
Form IEPF‐5 and other related documents. The following table provides list of periods for which 
unclaimed dividends / CRPS Redemp�on amount transferred to the IEPF on the dates men�oned 
below:
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Sl.No.
Financial

 Year

Redemp�on 
details on 

CRPS  

Date of 
declara�on 

of 
Redemp�on

Unclaimed 
Redemp�on 

amount in Rs. 

IEPF 
transfer 
details

1

2

2018‐2019 

2018‐2019 
(01.04.2018 to 
31.03.2019

stRI ‐ 1  
Instalment 
Rs.2.50

01.04.2018

NRI Single 
instalment 
Redemp�on 
Rs.10/‐

30,89,297.50

31,13,160.9001.04.2018

Form IEPF‐1 
filed with

 MCA/ROC vide 
SRN : AB4841322 / 

24.06.2025 

Total 62,02,458.40

7.    Company's market capitaliza�on rank

The applicability of provisions of BRSR are mainly dependent on Company's market capitaliza�on 
rank no�fied by the Stock Exchange in which Company shares are traded. It may please be noted 
that Company's market capitaliza�on rank for the year ending 31.03.2025 (cut‐off date 
31.12.2024) on BSE stands at 1381 (previous year 1303).  This rank is based upon traded value of 
company's share on BSE pla�orm where company's shares are listed.  As per Regula�on 3 and 
other applicable provisions of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015, the provisions rela�ng to BRSR (Business Responsibility and Sustainability 
Report) are applicable to the company for the current year (based on company rank on 
31.03.2023 i.e., 966)

8.   Business Responsibility and Sustain ability Report (BRSR)

To comply with the provisions of Regula�on 3 read with 53 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, 
Business Responsibility and Sustain ability Report in the SEBI prescribed format has been 
a�ached as “Annexure – L”.

9.    Safety and Environment

The main philosophy of the company is to give utmost importance to two aspects i.e, (1) SAFETY 
(2) ENVIRONMENTAL BALANCE to ensure sustainable growth. Further it believes that full proof 
safe methods have to be followed for achieving pollu�on free environment in all its ac�vi�es in all 
respects par�cularly in u�liza�on of material, machine and human resources while undertaking 
its business ac�vi�es. To ascertain and ensure full proof safety and pollu�on control, the company 
is taking all possible preven�ve and proac�ve steps with the coordinated effort of concerned 
officials along with the help of subject experts and outside professional agencies and periodical 
review of related commi�ees for improvement of procedures enunciated in policies for 
achievement of desired objec�ves. Proper care has been taken to imbibe these aspects while 
conceiving all strategic plans of the company to ensure acceptable growth.
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All types of preven�ve measures along with proac�ve steps taken by the management to ensure 
pollu�on free environment along with safety considera�on in every ac�vity, the company has 
been awarded ISO 9001, 14001, 45001 Cer�fica�on by renowned Ins�tu�on DNV. These awards 
are tes�mony that the company is adhering to standard procedures to ensure pollu�on control, 
environment balance and implementa�on of safety related aspects, while indulging its ac�vi�es 
for achievement of its targets and goals has given right direc�on to the company for obtaining the 
above cer�fica�ons.

To ensure company objec�ve in this regard, the company ensured in charge of trained and 
qualified professionals in senior cadre entrusted with the responsibility to ensure 
“CONTINUOUS SAFETY FOR ALL ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY” and maintenance of 
environmental balance. To ensure safety related aspects awareness among all related 
stakeholders, and equip the staff with innova�ve and new technologies and equipment, regular 
mock drills and exercises were conducted and concerned technical commi�ees hold regular 
mee�ngs regularly to review and ensure full proof execu�on of plans and procedures for be�er 
results in these ma�ers. Further, the company is complying with all statutory and non‐statutory 
provisions rela�ng to environmental balance, pollu�on control and safety. The company is taking 
all possible steps to keep sustainable eco‐friendly environment around its business ac�vi�es, one 
of them is giving more thrust to solar power genera�on which is eco‐friendly and also the same 
will lead to cost control and ensure sustain ability.

10.  Dividend Distribu�on Policy

The Board in its mee�ng held on 29.05.2023 has approved the Dividend Distribu�on Policy to 
comply with Reg. 43 A of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015.  The Policy has been posted on 
Company website and the same can be viewed at h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/ download/ sraac/ 
7‐Dividend‐Distribu�on‐Policy‐new‐file.pdf. The dividend policy will be reviewed/revised at 
regular intervals and also whenever there is statutory amendments no�fied by the concerned 
authori�es.

11.  Lis�ng Fees 

Your Company is always prompt in honoring its statutory and other obliga�ons. The Company has 
paid Lis�ng Fee for the year 2025‐26 to Bombay Stock Exchange vide our le�erdated22.04.2025.  
Further the company is always prompt and sincere in making payments to the stock exchange.

12.  Insurance 

Assets of the Company are adequately insured.

13.  Fixed Deposits 

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits during the year and there are no fixed deposits 
out standing as on 31.03.2025.
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14.  Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

The Company is not having regular Chairman.  The Board of Directors present at each mee�ng will 
elect one among them as Chairman of that par�cular mee�ng un�l regular Chairman was 
appointed to comply with statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Ar�cles of 
Associa�on of the Company and SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015.

Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy has resigned from his posi�on of Director and Execu�ve Director (Technical) 
to be effec�ve from 31.03.2025 on personal grounds, and the Board in its mee�ng held on 
28.03.2025 has approved the same a�er expressing its apprecia�on for his contribu�on for 
achievement of company objec�ves during his tenure.  Further, the Board place on record its 
apprecia�on for his commi�ed long term associa�on with the Company in the a�ainment of its 
cherished goals and objec�ves.

The Board of Directors in the mee�ng held on 27.05.2025and 08.08.2025 (on considera�on of 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee recommenda�on dt.19.05.2025 and 07.07.2025) has 
appointed Sri Elluru Ramaiah (DIN:11054179) by co‐op�ng him as Addi�onal Director designated 
as Director (Mechanical) for a period of three (3) years on terms and condi�ons men�oned in the 
explanatory statement and Special Resolu�on contained in No�ce of AGM, subject to members 
approval at the AGM. 

On considera�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) recommenda�on in its 
mee�ng held on 07.07.2025 and Board in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025 has co‐opted Dr Asha 
Reddy Mora as Addi�onal Director in the category of as Non‐Execu�ve Independent Director 
subject to members approval at the ensuing AGM for a term of 5 consecu�ve years as clearly 
men�oned in No�ce of AGM vide Item No.7.

On considera�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) recommenda�on in its 
mee�ng held on 07.07.2025 and Board in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025 has recommended 
appropriate Special Resolu�on (as clearly men�oned in No�ce of AGM) for members prior 
approval for appointment of Sri Raghavendra Reddy Pa�l as regular Director designated as 
Director (Quality Assurance) for a period 3 years on terms and condi�ons as clearly explained in 
No�ce of AGM pursuant to the provisions of Sec. 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.  A�er 
his appointment, the composi�on of the Board is in compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 
in all respects read with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shareholders approval is requested in the Ordinary Business for reappointment of Sri Srinivasa 
Babu Chappidi and Sri Karunakar Rao Kamise�y who are going to re�re at this AGM, being eligible 
opted for reappointment. 

15.  Statement of declara�on given by Independent Director under the provisions of Sec. 149 (6)  

The company has received declara�ons from the Independent Directors of the company 
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as men�oned in Sec. 149 (6) read with 
Regula�on 16 (1) (b) of SEBI (LODR) 2015 and that their names are included in the data bank as 
per Rule 6 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014. 
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for the current year under review.  Further, it is confirmed that during the year, the independent 
directors of the Company had no pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons with the company other 
than si�ng fees for a�ending the Board and Commi�ee Mee�ngs.  It may please be noted that 
the above declara�ons were submi�ed by all Independent Directors in pursuance to applicable 
statutory provisions annually.

16.  Web‐link of Annual Report

Pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013 the annual report of the company for the 
financ ia l  year  2024‐25  has  been posed on  the  webs i te  of  the  company at 
h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/ download/sraacl/annual‐reports/43‐annual‐report‐2024‐25.pdf

17.  Change in Nature of Business

During the financial year there is no change in the nature of the business of the company.

18.  Industrial Rela�ons

Your Company's Industrial Rela�ons con�nue to be harmonious and cordial.

19.  Energy Conserva�on Technology Absorp�on and Foreign Exchange earnings and out go.

In pursuance to applicable statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has 
furnished par�culars required to be disclosed under Sec�on 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Disclosure of par�culars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 
1988 are forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is annexed 
hereto as “Annexure – A” to this report. 

20.  Directors' Responsibility Statement

As required by the provisions of Sec�on 134 (3) (C) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors' 
Responsibility Statement is a�ached as “Annexure –B”.

21. Report on Corporate Governance – Reg.34 (3) read with Schedule‐V of SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015

Appropriate report on Corporate Governance (Annexure ‐ C) is being incorporated as a part of the 
Annual Report along with a cer�ficate from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company Sri Mahadev 
Tirunagari (Annexure‐D) regarding compliance of the condi�on sof Corporate Governance. The 
“Annexure C and D” are a�ached to this report.

22.  Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

Further to comply with Reg. 34(2) (e) Schedule‐V of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 
“Management Discussion and Analysis”  has been given as“Annexure ‐ E”to the Directors' Report.

23.  Statutory Auditors 

The term of Statutory Auditors M/s. Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. 
No.000515 S) appointed in 40th Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) held on 15.09.2022 for 5(five) 
consecu�ve years will end on conclusion of Annual General Mee�ng to be held for the year 2027.
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24.  Cost Audit

Majority of the products manufactured by the Company are coming under Central Govt. order 
Le�er Ref. No. 52/26/CAB‐2010 dated 06.11.2012. To comply with statutory provisions, Cost 
Audit Report has been filed in Form CRA‐4 in XBRL format with MCA portal for the financial year 
2023‐24.  The cost audit report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 is being filed well 
before statutory �me limit.

Disclosure on maintenance of Cost records

The Company made and maintained the cost records prescribed under Sec.148 of the companies 
Act, 2013 for the financial year 2024‐25.

25.  Audit Commi�ee

The Audit Commi�ee was cons�tuted to comply with provisions of Regula�on 18 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015 and other statutory provisions. The Audit Commi�ee was recons�tuted 
recently on 07.11.2022 with the following members namely Sri C. Srinivasa Babu, Ms. M. Sri devi 
and Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani as members with Ms. Hima Bindu as Chairperson of the Audit 
Commi�ee. It may please be noted that there is no change in the composi�on of the Audit 
Commi�ee during the current year.

26. Material changes and commitments, if any, affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of the Report

There are no material changes which will be affected to the financial posi�on of the company 
according to the date of financial year and the date of its Report.

27.  Details of significant and material orders passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impac�ng 
the going concern status and company's opportuni�es in future

There was no significant and material order passed by the Regulator or Court or Tribunal 
impac�ng the going concern status and company's opportuni�es in future.

28. Statement concerning development and implementa�on of Risk Management Policy of the 
Company

Risk Management, its planning for preven�on and for taking both proac�ve and preven�ve 
measures are given utmost importance by the company. The company has taken proac�ve steps 
to comply with risk management provisions and as a ma�er of good corporate governance and in 
recogni�on of its importance, the company is adhering to the provisions enunciated in SEBI 
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 in this regard well before the applicability of the said provisions. In fact 
based on company market capitaliza�on rank, there is no obliga�on for Risk Management 
Commi�ee for the current year.  The said provisions are applicable in the year 2023‐24 only.  
However as a ma�er of con�nuity and good Corporate Governance the same provisions being 
followed considering its importance and necessity for wellbeing of the company in the long run.  
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The Risk Management Commi�ee was Recons�tuted latest on 28.03.2025 with Sri K. Karunakar 
Rao, Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.,) as Chairman and a) Ms. S. Hima Bindu, Director  b) Sri C. 
Srinivasa Babu, Execu�ve Director (Technical)c) Sri E. Ramaiah, Director (Mechanical) d) Sri P. 
Raghavendra Reddy, Vice President (QA) and e) Sri C. Rajesh Khanna, Sr.Vice President (F&A) and 
CFO as Members to oversee the progress and implementa�on of s�pulated procedure and 
policies for achieving the risk minimiza�on. As and when required the company is availing the 
services of experts in various connec�ng fields for revision and evalua�on of its ac�vi�es for 
a�aining maximum benefits and improve efficiency.  The details of Risk Management mee�ngs 
held during the current year are furnished in “Report on Corporate Governance – Annexure – C.”  
Further these details are furnished to BSE on quarterly basis as a part of Report on Corporate 
Governance.

29. Details of Policy Development and implementa�on by the company on its Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Policy.

The required par�culars are furnished to comply with Rule 10 of Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed format as “Annexure–H”. It may please be 
noted that these policies are periodically be reviewed and revised as and when required to 
comply with statutory amendments no�fied.

30. Par�culars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013

During the year the company has not made any investment in share, given loan and guarantee to 
any en�ty.

31.  Par�culars of Contracts or Arrangements made with Related Par�es.

Related Party transac�ons are mutually beneficial to both par�es i.e., the Company and Related 
par�es and hence the same are essen�al.  During the course of its business, the Company is 
dealing with the Group Companies which are Related Par�es and also other related par�es 
pursuant to the Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accoun�ng Standard 18 and SEBI 
(LODR) regula�ons, 2015. The Sale, Purchase, Lease Rental Transac�ons, services availed / 
provided and monetary values of its transac�ons are men�oned in notes to Accounts to comply 
with IND AS‐24.  All the Related party transac�ons were on arm‐length basis and the same are 
entered with the prior approval of the Audit Commi�ee (omnibus approval or specific approval as 
the case may be) and Board. Further details to be furnished in Form AOC‐2 has been given 
as“Annexure‐F” to this report to comply with statutory provisions of Sec.188.  Further to comply 
with SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, the details of related party transac�ons are submi�ed to 
BSE on half‐yearly basis in XBRL format.

32. Explana�on or comments on qualifica�ons, reserva�ons or adverse remarks or disclaimers 
made by the Auditors and the Prac�cing Company Secretary in their Reports

Statutory Auditors of the Company and the Prac�cing Company Secretary, who have conducted 
statutory audit and Secretarial Audit respec�vely, have not made any adverse comments on the 
ac�vi�es of the Company for the financial year 2024‐25.
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33. Company's Policy rela�ng to Directors appointment, payment of Remunera�on and discharge 
of their du�es

The company has taken all possible steps to ensure the compliance with statutory provisions 
including SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. There exists well documented policy documents on the ma�ers rela�ng to the above 
ma�ers. Further to comply with statutory provisions and with the approval of the Board the 
company has prepared well dra�ed policy on the relevant ma�ers of fixa�on of remunera�on to 
Directors, Whole‐�me Directors and grounds for revision.  The policy broadly covers the aspects 
of du�es, liabili�es and responsibili�es of Directors. To ensure compliance in this regard 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee was recons�tuted on 07.11.2022 with Ms Geeta 
Ramesh Serwani as Chairperson and Ms. M. Sridevi, Ms S. Hima Bindu as Members to comply with 
provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. The commi�ee will meet periodically and also as 
and when required to recommend to the Board regarding Appointment / Re‐appointment and 
Fixa�on of Remunera�on to Whole‐�me / Execu�ve / Non‐Execu�ve Directors to comply with 
Statutory Provisions. Further, to meet the future requirements of the company, it ensures 
maintenance of relevant data bank and deal with related ma�ers in its mee�ngs. The commi�ee 
will also review the policy and procedures and its modifica�on to suit changing provisions as and 
when required.  The relevant policy is available on the Company's website under the 
linkh�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraac/2‐Nomina�on‐Remunera�on‐Commi�ee‐
NRC‐Policy‐new‐file.pdf

34. Details in respect of adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements

To achieve the company objec�ve and to ensure full proof policy implementa�on the company 
has internal financial controls (IFC) systems, which is in line with requirement of the Companies 
Act, 2013, which is intended to increase transparency & accountability in an organiza�on's 
process of designing and implemen�ng a system of internal control.  Our IFC process, facilitates 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to Company's policies, 
safeguarding of its assets, preven�on and detec�on of frauds.

35.  Internal Audit Department

Internal Audit func�ons are being done in house to ensure con�nuous compliance and in �me 
remedial ac�ons.  All the financial and other transac�ons are subject to internal audit taken up by 
the Internal Audit department to comply with the provisions of Sec. 138 of the Companies Act, 
2013.  There exists well equipped internal audit department comprising of qualified/semi‐
qualified personnel headed by Sri M. Veera Kumara swamy who is a Fellow Member of ICAI is in 
the cadre of Vice President duly discharging du�es.  As and when required, the internal audit 
department will take the help of outside professional/technical qualified professionals to 
evaluate performance and effec�veness and efficiency of company ac�vi�es.
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36.  Secretarial  Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Regula�on 24A of SEBI (LODR) 2015 read with Sec�on 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 204, the Board in its mee�ng held on 08.08.2025 has recommended the 
proposal for appointment of Mr. Mahadev Tirunagari (FCS : 6651) as Secretarial Auditor for a 
term of 5 consecu�ve years i.e., from 01.04.2025 to 31.03.2030 for members approval at the 
ensuing AGM to be held on 27.09.2025 for a fee of Rs.1.00 lakh per year + applicable taxes. 
Secretarial Audit Report for the year ending 31.03.2025 has been Annexed to the Directors' 
Report as “Annexure – J” to comply with statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
other applicable provisions of other Act. The Secretarial Auditor Report does not contain any 
qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark. Further, in compliance of Regula�on 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para C clause 10 (i) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 cer�ficate on “non‐
disqualifica�on of Directors” issued by the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as “Annexure – K” to 
this report.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company is in compliance with applicable secretarial standards issued by the Ins�tute of 
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Govt., under Sec. 118 (10) of the Act.

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

A Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ending 31st March, 2025 on compliance of 
all applicable SEBI Regula�ons and other guidelines issued thereunder, was obtained from Sri 
Mahadev Tirunagari, Secretarial Auditor and submi�ed to BSE Limited within statutory �me 
limit.

37.  Annual Return in Form MGT‐9 format

A copy of the Annual Return of the Company containing the par�culars prescribed u/s. 92 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, in Form MGT‐9, as they stood on the close of the financial year  2024‐25i.e. 
31st March, 2025 is furnished on the website of the company in the Investor Rela�ons Sec�on 
under Disclosures and can be accessed from  h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com /download/sraacl 
/Annual% 20 Return%202024‐25.pdf

38.  Details of Remunera�on paid to KMP and Directors

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) are furnished in “Annexure – G” 
a�ached to this report.

39.   Details of Median Remunera�on VS KMP and Directors Remunera�on

Further ra�o of the remunera�on of each Director/KMP to the median remunera�on of all 
employees of the company have been furnished in “Annexure – I” to this report to comply with 
the provisions of Sec. 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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40.  Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company is not having any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies as on 
31.03.2025. 

41.  Declara�on of Independent Directors

In pursuance and in compliance of relevant provisions, the Company has received the necessary 
declara�on from each Independent Director in accordance with Sec�on 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence as laid out in sub‐sec�on (6) of Sec�on 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. Further, Sri Mahadev 
Tirunagari, Prac�cing Company Secretary has issued appropriate cer�ficate regarding non‐
applicability of the provisions of Directors disqualifica�on to comply with the provisions of SEBI 
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. 

42.  Evalua�on

To be objec�ve in evalua�on of performance of Board and its cons�tuent members, respec�ve 
performances are compared with well defined indicators to arrive at precision in judgement. It 
may please be noted that the measurement of performance and its effec�veness will be done by 
following scien�fic methods with the help of interac�ve process. Recognizing the importance and 
necessity of proper evalua�on of commi�ees, and directors has been carried out by the Board in a 
transparent manner. The Board evaluated the effec�veness of its func�oning and that of the 
Commi�ees and of individual Directors by seeking their inputs on various aspects of 
Board/Commi�ee Governance.

Essen�al ma�ers covered in the evalua�on include the contribu�on to and monitoring of 
corporate governance prac�ces, par�cipa�on in the long‐term strategic planning and the 
fulfillment of Directors' obliga�on and fiduciary responsibili�es, including but not limited, to, 
ac�ve par�cipa�on at the Board and Commi�ee mee�ngs.  It is ensured that awareness sessions 
and programmes conducted by company officials concerned before such Board and Commi�ee 
Mee�ngs for ac�ve par�cipa�on.

The Chairman of the Board had one‐on‐one mee�ngs with the Independent Directors and the 
Chairperson of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee had one‐on‐one mee�ngs with 
the Execu�ve and non‐Execu�ve Directors. These mee�ngs were intended to obtain Directors' 
inputs on effec�veness of Board/Commi�ee processes. The Board considered and discussed the 
inputs received from the Directors.

To equip the independent and non‐execu�ve directors to familiarize with company opera�on, 
directors familiariza�on programmes were undertaken before the Board mee�ngs at regular 
intervals.

Further, the Independent Directors at their mee�ng, reviewed the performance of Board, 
Chairman of the Board and of Non‐Execu�ve Directors and other co‐members.  In this way 
mutual evalua�on of directors has been carried mutually in transparent manner.
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43.  Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and 
Red ressal) Act, 2013 – Pursuant to Sec. 134 (3) (m) and Rule 8 (5) (x) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015.

Your Company's management ensures zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the 
workplace and has adopted a policy on preven�on, prohibi�on and redressal of sexual 
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under. The 
Company has no such cases of sexual harassment at workplace during the current year 2024‐25.  
Further to comply with statutory complines, there exists a internal commi�ee to take care of 
compliance ma�ers and review of steps taken by the company.  During the year there is no 
change in the Internal Compliant Commi�ees comprising which is as follows (1) Sri P. 
Raghavendra Reddy, Vice President‐Chairman (2) Sri E.  Ramaiah, Director (Mechnical)‐Member 
and (3) Sri G. Prahlada Se�y, General Manager‐Member.

44.  Instances of Fraud reported to Audit Commi�ee

It is confirmed that there are no instances of fraud reported to Audit Commi�ee during the year 
2024‐25 in pursuance to Sec. 134 (3) (ca) of the Companies Act, 2013.

45. Confirma�on regarding “no proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (31 of 
2016)”

It is hereby confirmed that there are no proceedings pending before Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 and the company has not made any such applica�on in pursuance to the Sec. 134 (3) 
(m) and Rule 8 (5) (xi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.  In view of the above explained 
reasons, the above said provisions are not applicable for 2024‐25.

46.   Informa�on regarding Board Mee�ngs in pursuance to Sec. 134 (3) (b) of the Act.

During the year 2024‐25, the Board of Directors of the Company has met five �mes.  The details of 
Board Mee�ngs are furnished in report on Corporate Governance under Page No.18 as annexure 
to this report.  The said report also contains details of Commi�ee Mee�ngs also.

47.  Vigil Mechanism

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in terms of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 includes an Ethics and Compliance Task Force comprising 
Senior Execu�ves of the Company. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle blower 
through an e‐mail or a le�er to the Task Force or to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee. The 
Policy on Vigil Mechanism and whistle blower policy may be accessed on the Company's website 
at the link: h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraac/4‐Vigil‐Mechanism‐Policy‐new‐file.pdf

48.  Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund (IEPF) 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF Authority 
(Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund Rules) 2016, ('the Rules'), all unpaid and unclaimed 
dividends/amounts are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF established by the 
Government of India a�er the comple�on of seven years. The details are furnished hereunder.

The following table provides list of years for which unclaimed dividends/redemp�on amount 
would become eligible to be transferred to the IEPF on the dates men�oned below.
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on behalf of the Board of Directors 

K. KARUNAKAR RAO   C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.,) Execu�ve Director (Technical)

Place : Hyderabad
th

Date  : 8 August, 2025

(DIN: 02031367) (DIN: 09266926)

Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Financial 
Year

Redemp�on 
Installments

Date of 
payment/ 

declara�on

Last date 
for making 
claim for  
unpaid 

amount with 
the company

Unclaimed 
Amount  as on 

31.03.2025
 (Rs.)

Due date 
for transfer 

to IEPF Account

2018‐19 RI ‐ Second 
including 
Dividend 
(2 years) (*)

RI – Third (*) 01.10.2018 08.10.2025 32,52,220.00 06.11.2025

01.01.2019 10.01.2026 32,99,392.50 06.02.2026RI – Fourth (*)

01.07.2018 08.07.2025 31,47,664.05 06.08.2025

CRPS Dividend (2016‐17 & 2017‐18) + CRPS Redemp�on amounts

(*) RI means Resident Indian

Equity Dividend 

Financial 
Year

Equity 
Dividend 
Declared 

Date of 
declara�on 
of Dividend 

Last date for 
making claim 

with the 
company for 

unpaid dividend 
amount

Unclaimed 
Dividend Amount) 

as on 
31.03.2025

 (Rs.)

Due date for 
transfer to 

IEPF Account

2022‐23

2023‐24

Rs. 1/‐ per 
share (@ 10%)

Rs. 1/‐ per 
share (@ 10%)

29.09.2023

28.09.2024

04.10.2030

03.10.2031

13,01,760.00

13,23,493.00

05.11.2030

04.11.2031
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

A)  Conserva�on of energy

 Zero gap retrofit of BM 2.7 finite gap electrolyser elements was done with new membranes for 
reduc�on of power and for improving the cell efficiency. 

 262 No's of Ion exchange membranes were replaced for improving the cell efficiency.

 98 No's of Anodes of high voltage elements were replaced in Cell House‐7, 8 and 9 for 
improvement in efficiency

B)  Details of Technology development and research

1.   Research and Development (R&D)

 R&D department has undertaken studies to reduce bromochloromethane impurity from 
chloroform by adjus�ng opera�ng parameters/modifying the exis�ng dis�lla�on columns to 
ensure con�nuous market for chloroform.

 Major constraint of u�liza�on of 100 % ERP (Effluent Recycling Plant) effluent in the process is 
Iodine and TOC. We have done various experiments in associa�on with reputed R&D centers 
and technological supplier. Laboratory trails are successful and pilot plant trials are in 
progress. A�er successful pilot plant trials, we will be in a posi�on to u�lize complete ERP 
effluent without any adverse effects in process.

2.   Benefits derived as a result of R&D

 Reduc�on in BCM (Bromochloromethane) impurity in chloroform will improve the market.

 A�er establishing the reduc�on of Iodine and TOC (Total Organic Carbon) in ERP (Effluent 
Recycling Plant)effluent we can con�nuously use in the process which will result in recovery of 
NaCl in the effluent.

3.   Technology Absorp�on, Adop�on and Innova�on 

      There is no instances of technology innova�on, absorp�on and adop�on during the financial 
year.

C)    Foreign Exchange Earnings and Out go

a)  Ac�vi�es rela�ng to exports; ini�a�ves taken to increase exports, development of new export 
markets for products and services, and export plans:
i) Exported Hydrogenated Castor Oil, 12 Hydroxy Stearic Acid, Caus�c Soda Flakes, Caus�c 

Potash and planning to enlarge exports by increasing export quan�ty and exploring export 
possibility for other products.

b)   Total Foreign Exchange earned and used               (Rs. in lakhs)

i)    Foreign Exchange earned                          ….         11397.53

ii)   Foreign Exchange used                              ….         12599.08 

Par�culars pursuant to Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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i)     In the presenta�on of the Annual Accounts, applicable Accoun�ng Standards have been  

followed.

ii)   The accoun�ng policies are consistently applied and reasonable, prudent judgment and 

es�mates are made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit of the company for that period. 

iii)  The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safe 

guarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other 

irregulari�es. 

iv)    The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

v)     The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and  

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were opera�ng effec�vely.

vi)   The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

on behalf of the Board of Directors 

K. KARUNAKAR RAO   C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.,) Execu�ve Director (Technical)

Place : Hyderabad
th

Date  : 8 August, 2025

sd/‐ sd/‐

(DIN: 02031367) (DIN: 09266926)
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Report on Corporate Governance

The Management of  TGV SRAAC Ltd., here by confirm and cer�fy that  the relevant provisions of  
SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 dealing with “Corporate Governance” as amended from �me to �me 
by SEBI and BSE Ltd., have been complied for the year 2024‐25. The Corporate Governance 
compliance details are furnished hereunder:

1.    Company's Philosophy

Adherence to transparency in all ac�vi�es of the company both for internal and external 
opera�ons and ac�vi�es will always gives desired results par�cularly in case of achieving targeted 
goals and hence your company management strictly follows this fundamental democra�c 
principle so as to achieve effec�ve corporate governance.  The company has complied with all the 
provisions of Corporate Governance before its enactment by SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015.This 
shows the commitment of the management of the company for fair and efficient Corporate 
Governance. The company's humble philosophy is“CARDIAL INTERACTION WITH THE SOCIETY 
AT LARGE WHILE EXECUTING ITS BUSINESS ACTIVITIES WITH HUMAN ANGLE AND 
HARMONIOUS INDUSTRY ACTIVITIES AND RELATIONS” synchronizing socio, economic and 
human objec�ves which are backed by principles of concern, commitment, ethics, excellence and 
learning for improvement in all its ac�vi�es and harmonious rela�onships with share holders, 
customers, associates and community at large which has always propelled the Company towards 
higher horizons.

2.    Policies 

In compliance with the requirements of Lis�ng Agreements with Stock Exchanges; SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. (“Lis�ng Regula�ons'), SEBI 
Regula�ons and Companies Act, 2013, Board of Directors of the Company has approved various 
policies, as detailed hereunder.  The policies will be reviewed and updated every three years or as 
and when required due to amendments in statutes.

3.    Related Party Transac�on Policy

In compliance with the requirements of Regula�on 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and 
relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with IND AS 24, the Board of Directors of the 
Company has approved a Related Party Transac�on Policy, to facilitate senior management to 
report and seek approval for any Related Party Transac�on proposed to be entered into by the 
Company. The said Related Party Transac�on Policy can be viewed on h�ps:// 
www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraac/3‐Related‐Party‐Transac�ons‐Policy‐Procedures‐new‐
file.pdf

4.    Policies & Code as per SEBI Insider Trading Regula�ons 

In accordance with SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, the Company has 
formulated and approved (i) Insider Trading code to regulate dealing in the securi�es of the 

ANNEXURE `C' TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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company by designated persons in compliance with the regula�on; and (ii) a Policy for Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensi�ve Informa�on. Sri V. Radhakrishna Murthy, Company 
Secretary of the Company is Compliance Officer for the purposes of Insider Trading Code, while 
the Chief Execu�ve Officer of the Company has been assigned responsibility for fair disclosure 
policy.

5.    Familiariza�on Program for Independent Directors 

In the company weblin under investors rela�ons the details of k www.tgvgroup.com 
familiariza�on programmes imparted to Independent Directors is disclosed in pursuance to the 
provisions of Schedule‐V read with Rule 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015.

Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibili�es at the �me of 
their appointment as Directors and regular presenta�ons are made to the Board/Board 
Commi�ees covering business strategies, management structure, periodic financial results, 
budgets and opera�ons of subsidiaries, if any.  Independent directors are well experienced 
professionals with required skills and knowledge and are pocessing CA/CS/MBA/LLB and other 
professional qualifica�ons and hence are more suitable for the posi�ons as independent 
directors.

Rela�onship between Directors (Schedule‐V read with Rule 34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015.

It is confirmed that there is no inter‐se rela�onship between the Directors of the Company. 

Apart from above policies, the Board has in accordance with the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Lis�ng Regula�ons revised, updated, approved and adopted Policies for 
Determining Material Events, Policy for Preserva�on of Documents and Archival of Records, 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, Remunera�on Policy, Vigil Mechanism policy, Risk 
Management Policy, Board Diversity Policy, Code of prac�ces and fair disclosure of UPSI, BRSR 
Policy, Grievance Redressal mechanism for Vendors, Stakeholders Policy, An� Sexual Harassment 
Policy and Grievance Redressal mechanism for Community. These policies can be viewed on 
Company's Website at  h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/investors.html

6.    Board Procedure

All the mandatory informa�on as men�oned in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 are being placed 
before the Board during its mee�ngs.

7.    Board of Directors 

The Composi�on of the Board is in compliance with the guide lines given in SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013. The Board comprises of Six (6) Directors and 
majority [Three (3)]of Directors are independent Directors and balance are [Three (3)] are Non‐
Independent Execu�ve Directors. The day‐ to ‐ day management of the Company is conducted by 
one Execu�ve Director & CEO and two Execu�ve Directors (Technical) under the co‐ordina�on, 
superintendence and control of the Board of Directors. The details of Directors a�ending the 
Mee�ngs and Date of the Mee�ngs are furnished hereunder:
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S.
No.

Name of the 
Director

Category No. of 
Board 

Mee�ngs 
a�ended 

during the 
FY 2025

Whether 
a�ended 
last AGM 

held 
on

 September 
28, 2024

No. of 
other 

Commi�ee 
posi�ons 

held in 
other public 
companies

Number of 
Directorship 

in other 
Public 

companies

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Sri K. Karunakar Rao

Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy
(Upto 31.03.2025)

Sri C. Srinivasa Babu

Ms M. Sridevi

Ms S. Hima Bindu         

Ms Geeta Ramesh 
Serwani

E.D (F & C)

E.D 
(Technical)
E.D 
(Technical)
Director 
(Independent)
Director 
(Independent)
Director 
(Independent)

5

5

5

5

5

5

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

3 3 3

2

‐

‐

‐

‐

3

‐

‐

‐

‐

2

‐

‐

‐

‐

2

‐

Directorship 
in other 

listed 
en��es 

(category 
of 

Directorship)

AS 
Chairman

As 
Member

st 
During the financial year ended 31 March, 2025, Five Board Mee�ngs were held on                      
(1) 29.05.2024 (2) 14.08.2024 (3) 29.10.2024 (4) 30.01.2025 and (5) 28.03.2025 respec�vely.

Further in view of urgency the company has obtained Board of Directors approval on certain 
Agenda items through Circular Resolu�ons in pursuance to Sec. 175 of the Companies Act, 2013 
dtd. 21.02.2025 and 29.03.2025.

8.    Audit Commi�ee

The composi�on of the Audit Commi�ee is in accordance with the Regula�on 15 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015 dealing with Corporate Governance guidelines and the provisions of Sec. 177 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The main terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee are;

1)   Oversight of the Company's financial repor�ng process to ensure that the financial statement 
is correct, sufficient and credible in compliance with IND AS and Companies Act, 2013 and 
other relevant acts. 

2) Recommending to the Board with regard to appointment, re‐appointment, fixa�on of fees 
etc. of Statutory Auditors, Cost  Auditors, Secretarial Auditor etc.

3) Reviewing with management the annual Financial Statement be fore submi�ng to the Board 
with par�cular  reference to Directors Responsibility statement, Changes in Accoun�ng 
Policies, major accoun�ng entries involving es�mates, compliance with other Lis�ng 
Agreement, disclosure of other related party transac�ons.
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Sl.
No.

Name of the Director Status

1.

2.

3.

4.

Ms. S. Hima Bindu  

Sri. C. Srinivasa Babu 

Ms M. Sridevi

Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani  

Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Independent 
Director
Execu�ve 
Director
Independent 
Director
Independent 
Director

Designa�on
No. of Mee�ngs

Held A�ended

4) Qualifica�ons  in dra� Audit  Report.

5) Reviewing  with management  quarterly  financial statements.

6) The adequacy of internal audit func�ons.

7) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences. 

8) Reviewing the findings of any inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors etc. 

9) Appointment of CFO.

10) Omnibus approval to related party transac�on at the beginning of the year and review of 
quarterly actual related party transac�ons and recommenda�on of the same to the Board 
for its approval.

11) Management discussion and analysis of financial condi�on and results of opera�ons.

12) Management le�ers in response of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory 
auditors.

13) Internal audit reports rela�ng to internal control weaknesses; and

14) The appointment, removal and terms of remunera�on of the chief internal auditor shall be 
subject to review by the audit commi�ee.

15) Statement of devia�ons:

 (a) Quarterly statement of devia�on(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 
submi�ed to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regula�on 32(1).

 (b) Annual statement of funds u�lized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/no�ce in terms of Regula�on 32(7).

In addi�on to quarterly and yearly Un‐audited/Audited financial results the Commi�ee 
deliberate upon the relevant ma�ers men�oned in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, 
Companies Act and Cost Audit Report Rules etc. The Commi�ee is headed by Ms. S. Hima 
Bindu, Non‐Execu�ve Independent Director who is a qualified Chartered Accountant in 

rd
prac�ce. Majority of (more than 2/3 ) the commi�ee members are independent Directors. 
Latest recons�tu�on of Audit Commi�ee was done by the Board in its mee�ng held on 
07.11.2022 with the following Directors as its members (1) Ms S. Hima Bindu, Chairperson (2) 
Sri C. Srinivasa Babu, Member (3) Sri Ms M. Sridevi, Member  (4) Ms Geeta Ramesh Serwani, 
Member.
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stDuring the financial year ended 31  March, 2025, Four Board Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs were 
held on (1) 29.05.2024 (2) 14.08.2024 (3) 29.10.2024 and (4) 30.01.2025 respec�vely.

9.     Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee

        Role of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 

(1) Formula�on of the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy rela�ng to, the 
remunera�on of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

(2) For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee shall evaluate the basis of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on 
the basis of such evalua�on, prepare a descrip�on of the role and capabili�es required of an 
independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an 
independent director shall have the capabili�es iden�fied in such descrip�on. For the 
purpose of iden�fying suitable candidates, the Commi�ee may: 

        a)  use the services of an external agencies, if required; 

       b)  consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 

        c)  consider the �me commitments of the candidates. 

(3)  Formula�on of criteria for evalua�on of performance of independent directors and  the 
board of directors; 

(4)   Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 

(5)   Iden�fying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be    appointed in 
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board 
of directors their appointment and removal. 

(6)   Whether to extend or con�nue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of the report of performance evalua�on of independent directors. 

(7) Recommend to the board, all remunera�on, in whatever form, payable to senior 
management.

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee was recons�tuted by the Board latest on 07.11.2022 
with the following Directors as its members. 

The commi�ee comprises of the following Directors as its members (1) Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani, 
Chairperson (2) Ms M. Sridevi, Member and (3) Ms. S. Hima Bindu, Member.  There is no change in the 
composi�on of the commi�ee during the year under review.

The Non‐Execu�ve Directors will be paid si�ng fee of Rs.5,000/‐ per mee�ng of Board and Audit 
Commi�ee and Rs.1,500/‐for other Sub‐commi�ees of the Board. The Execu�ve Directors will not be 
paid any si�ng fee for a�ending the Board /Commi�ee mee�ngs.
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st
During the financial year ended 31  March, 2025, Three Board Nomina�on & Remunera�on 
Commi�ee Mee�ngs  was held on (1) 12.04.2024 (2) 26.06.2024 and (3) 17.01.2025 
respec�vely.

10)    Stakeholders Rela�onship and Shareholders/Investors Grievance Commi�ee

        The role of the Stakeholders Commi�ee 

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed en�ty including complaints 
related to transfer/transmission of shares, non‐receipt of annual report, non‐receipt of 
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate cer�ficates, general mee�ngs etc. 

(2) Review of measures taken for effec�ve exercise of vo�ng rights by shareholders. 

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed en�ty in respect of 
various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

(4) Review of the various measures and ini�a�ves taken by the listed en�ty for reducing the 
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring �mely receipt of dividend warrants/annual 
reports / statutory no�ces by the shareholders of the company.

To review the ac�ons taken by the company in relieving Investor's Grievances and its response to 
Stock Exchange, SEBI and other related Government correspondence Stakeholders Rela�onship 
Commi�ee and Shareholders/ Investors Grievance Commi�ee was recons�tuted by the Board 
during the year on 07.11.2022. The recons�tuted commi�ee comprises of the following Directors 
as its members (1) Ms. M. Sridevi, Chairperson (2) Ms. S. Hima Bindu, Member and (3) Ms. Geeta 
Ramesh Serwani, Member. The details of the commi�ee mee�ngs and composi�on are detailed 
hereunder:

Sl.
No.

Name of the Director

1.

2.

3.

Ms. M. Sridevi

Ms. S. Hima Bindu  

Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani  Chairperson

Member

Member

3

3

3

3

3

3

Status

Independent 
Director

Independent 
Director

Independent 
Director

Designa�on
No. of Mee�ngs

Held A�ended

Sl.
No.

Name of the Director

1.

2.

3.

Ms. M. Sridevi

Ms. S. Hima Bindu  

Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani  

Chairperson

Member

Member

4

4

4

4

4

4

Status

Independent 
Director

Independent 
Director

Independent 
Director

Designa�on
No. of Mee�ngs

Held A�ended
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stDuring the financial year ended 31  March, 2025, Four Stakeholders Rela�onship commi�ee and 
Shareholders' / Investors Grievance Commi�ee Mee�ngs were held on (1) 09.04.2024 (2) 
10.07.2024 (3) 11.10.2024 and (4)10.01.2025 respec�vely.

The Commi�ee is vested with the requisite powers and authori�es to specifically look in to 
redressal of share holder and investor grievances to comply with SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. 
The details of complaints during the year are as follows:

No. of Investor Queries/complaints 
received in the year 2024‐25

7 NIL NIL

Pending at the 
end of the year

No. of pending 
Share Transfers

Sri. V. Radha krishna Murthy, CGM &Company Secretary, being the Compliance Officer of the 
Company and act as the Secretary to all the above Commi�ees.

11.   Risk Management Commi�ee

The role of the Risk Management Commi�ee 

(i) Iden�fica�on – Recogni�on / an�cipa�on of the risks that threaten the assets and earnings of 
the Company 

(ii) Evalua�on / Assessment – Es�ma�on of the likely probability of a risk occurrence and its 
likely severity, categoriza�on of risk and ra�ng of risk.

(iii) Preven�on & Control – Measures to avoid occurrence of risk, limit its severity and reduce its 
consequences, selec�ng the risk management technique by category and individual risk 

(iv) Financing – Determining the cost of risk likely to be and ensuring that adequate financial 
resources are available, implemen�ng the selected technique 

(v) Measure and Monitor effec�veness of controls and respond according to the results and 
improving the program 

(vi) Reviewing and repor�ng on the Risk Management process at appropriate intervals, at least 
annually. 

The Risk Management Commi�ee was recons�tuted by the Board latest on 28.03.2025 with the 
following Directors as its members.

The commi�ee comprises of the following Directors and senior execu�ves (professional experts) 
as its members (1) Sri K. Karunakar Rao, E.D (F&C) Chairman (2) Sri C. Srinivasa Babu, E.D 
(Technical) Member (3) Sri E. Ramaiah, Director (Mechanical)  Member and (4) Ms. S. Hima Bindu, 
Independent Director‐Member (5) Sri C. Rajesh Khanna, Sr. Vice President (F&A) Member and (6) 
Sri P. Raghavendra Reddy, Vice President (QA)  Member.
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Depending upon necessity the commi�ee used to take the help of outside professionals, 
technical experts for evalua�on, assessment of risks in various areas and also to take 
precau�onary measures to mi�gate or contain risks and its probability in compliance of SEBI 
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015.

Sl.
No.

Name of the Director Status

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Sri K. Karunakar Rao

Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy 
(upto 31.03.2025)

Sri C. Srinivasa Babu

Ms S. Hima Bindu  

Sri C. Rajesh Khanna

Sri P. Raghavendra Reddy

Execu�ve 
Director
Execu�ve 
Director
Execu�ve 
Director
Independent 
Director
Sr.Vice President 
(F&A)
Vice President 
(QA)

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

4

4

4

4

4

4

3

4

4

4

4

4

Designa�on
No. of Mee�ngs

Held A�ended

st 
During the financial year ended 31 March, 2025, Four Board Risk Management Commi�ee 
Mee�ngs were held on (1) 18.04.2024 (2) 31.07.2024 (3) 31.10.2024 and (4) 
09.01.2025respec�vely. Considering the company market capitaliza�on rank, this provisions are 
not mandatory to the company, however considering the importance and as a ma�er of good 
corporate governance, the company is conduc�ng the mee�ng of Risk Management Commi�ee 
mee�ngs regularly.

12.   General Body Mee�ngs 

The last three Annual General Mee�ngs were held as follows :

Financial Year Day & Date

2021‐22

2022‐23

2023‐24

Thursday, 
15.09.2022

Friday, 
29.09.2023

Saturday, 
28.09.2024

11.30 A.M

01.00 P.M

11.30 A.M

Time Venue

Through (Video conference) VC / OAVM 
(other Audio Visual Means)

Through (Video conference) VC / OAVM 
(other Audio Visual Means)

Through (Video conference) VC / OAVM 
(other Audio Visual Means)

All Resolu�ons moved at the last Annual General Mee�ng were passed by e‐vo�ng only to 
comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA and SEBI circulars were 
passed with Requisite majority. The last Annual General Mee�ng of the Company was held on 
28.09.2024 and it was a�ended by Directors viz. Sri K. Karunakar Rao (Chairman elected),SriN. 
Jesvanth Reddy, Sri C. Srinivasa Babu, Ms. M. Sridevi, Ms. S. Hima Bindu (Audit Commi�ee 
Chairperson) and Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani.
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The special business transacted and approved by the members at the previous 3 Annual General 
Mee�ngs are as  follows:

(A)  2021‐22

1. Appointment of Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani for the first �me as Non‐Execu�ve Independent 
Director – Special Resolu�on.

2. Appointment of Ms. S. Hima Bindu for the first �me as Non‐Execu�ve Independent Director ‐ 
Special Resolu�on.

3. Appointment of Ms. M. Sridevi for the first �me as Non‐Execu�ve Woman Independent 
Director ‐ Special Resolu�on.

4. Security crea�on in favour of M/s. Punjab Na�onal Bank for financial assistance of Rs.25 Cr 
Term Loan/Capex LC ‐ Special Resolu�on.

5. Approval for Material Related Party transac�ons – Ordinary Resolu�on.

6. Ra�fica�on for Re‐appointment and remunera�on of Cost Auditor – Ordinary Resolu�on. 

(B) 2022‐23

1.    Ra�fica�on for Re‐appointment and remunera�on of Cost Auditor – Ordinary Resolu�on. 

2.  Reappointment of Sri Karunakar Rao Kamise�y, Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.,) and  
fixa�on of Remunera�on – Special Resolu�on.

3.  Reappointment of Sri Jesvanth Reddy Nalla, Execu�ve Director (Technical) and fixa�on of 
Remunera�on – Special Resolu�on. 

4.     Approval for Material Related Party transac�ons – Ordinary Resolu�on.

5.    Ra�fica�on for Crea�on of Security in favour of Consor�um of Banks viz., IDBI Bank Ltd., and 
The South Indian Bank Ltd. – Special Resolu�on.

(C) 2023‐24

1. Ra�fica�on for Reappointment of Sri C. Srinivasa Babu (Technical) for a period of 3 years and 
fixa�on of Remunera�on – Special Resolu�on. 

2. Reappointment of Ms. M. Sridevi as an Women Independent Director for a second term of 5 
consecu�ve years commencing from 11.11.2024 to 10.11.2029 – Special Resolu�on. 

3. Reappointment of Ms. S. Hima Bindu as an Independent Director for a second term of 5 
consecu�ve years commencing from 02.03.2025 to 01.03.2030 – Special Resolu�on.

4. Reappointment of Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani as an Independent Director for a second term 
of 5 consecu�ve years commencing from 10.08.2025 to 09.08.2030 – Special Resolu�on. 

5. Ra�fica�on for Re‐appointment and remunera�on to Cost Auditor – Ordinary Resolu�on. 

6. Approval for Material Related Party transac�ons – Ordinary Resolu�on. (Public Shareholders 
only allowed for vo�ng).

7. Ra�fica�on / approval for Crea�on of Security in favour of Consor�um of Banks viz., IDBI 
Bank Ltd., Indian Bank and The Federal Bank Limited – Special Resolu�on.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

56 Annual Report 2024-25



13.   Disclosures

None of the transac�ons with any of the related par�es were in conflict with the interests of the 

Company at large. The details of related party transac�ons are furnished under Point No. 31 ‐

Notes to financial statements of Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss to comply with 

Accoun�ng Standard 24. The company has not received any no�ces from Stock Exchange or SEBI 

regarding non‐compliance of statutory provisions. The Company is complying with all mandatory 

requirements s�pulated in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and non‐mandatory requirements are 

not yet adopted by the Company.

14.  Means of Communica�on

The Company publishes its quarterly, half yearly and annual results in the (1) Business Standard 

(English) (2) Andhra Prabha (Telugu) news papers generally.

In addi�on to this the company is communica�ng its results to all the Stock Exchanges where the 

shares are listed. Further quarterly results, shareholding pa�ern and other related informa�on is 

placed on the he company's website. The company is also making presenta�ons to the Financial 

Ins�tu�ons and Banks with all the details rela�ng its quarterly results. Further to confirm that the 

management discussion and analysis report is communicated to shareholders and all the 

concerned, the report has been made part and of parcel of Annual Report. Further the Quarterly / 

Half yearly Results are generally posted in Company's Website www.tgvgroup.com. 

15. General Share holder Informa�on

1)  AGM Date, �me and Venue 

2)  Tenta�ve Financial Calendar 

Un‐Audited Financial results for 

3)  Trading window closure for 
      financial results

4)  Record Date

thSaturday, the 27  September, 2025 at 11.30 A.M
through Video Conference (VC)

Then ext financial year covers the period from 
st st1 April, 2025 to 31  March, 2026

First Quarter ‐ July / August, 2025
Second Quarter ‐ October / November, 2025
Third quarter ‐ January / February, 2026
Fourth quarter ‐ April / May, 2026

st
From the 1  day from close of quarter �ll the 
comple�on of 48 hours a�er the UPSI becomes 
generally available.

19‐09‐2025 (Friday)
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5) Dividend and Dividend payment date 

6)  The Shares of the Company is listed on

6)  The Shares of the Company is listed 
      on Company NSDL & CDSL is in 
      No. & Scrip Code

Rs.1/‐ per equity share for F.Y. 2024‐25.  The final 
dividend will be paid on 18.10.2025 (Saturday) or 
within the statutory �me limit, if approved by the 
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General 
Mee�ng of the Company. The payment of 
dividend will be subject to deduc�on of tax at 
source, as applicable, in compliance with the 
statutory requirements.

BSE Limited, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai.

BSE Limited, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai.
INE284B01028, SCRIP CODE: 507753 for 
EQUITY SHARES

7)  Market Price Data: 

     The Monthly High and Low of Stock Quota�ons during the Financial Year 2024‐25.

Month & Year

April, 2024

May, 2024

June, 2024

July, 2024

August, 2024

September, 2024

October, 2024

November, 2024

December, 2024

January, 2025

February, 2025

March, 2025

105.01

96.20

93.50

107.28

105.90

102.30

113.45

120.90

120.00

115.00

103.80

106.70

81.40

80.60

74.19

86.90

89.10

92.00

91.15

103.10

102.80

92.10

90.50

87.70

94.89

81.22

89.31

105.04

96.25

94.28

110.57

115.30

107.35

97.35

91.82

94.90

47599.25

48353.57

52542.41

55685.07

56416.31

57728.08

57601.39

56367.77

57827.69

56497.39

50729.93

48330.47

43551.37

44489.06

43224.74

50761.94

51933.80

55002.47

51881.72

51565.04

54331.12

46475.43

42610.62

41709.23

47315.93

47263.66

52130.41

55332.24

56021.55

57130.93

54982.87

55199.86

55180.60

49958.39

43082.90

46638.13

Equity Shares BSE S&P Small Cap Index

High Price (Rs.) Low Price (Rs.) Closing Price (Rs.) High Low Closing
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8)   TGV SRAACL Share closing Price in comparison with S&P BSE SMALL CAP index as follows.

9)   Distribu�on of Share holding pa�ern for Equity Shares as on 31st  March, 2025.

S. No. Category
Equity Shares

Shares %

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Promoters

Mutual Funds and UTI

Banks & Financial Ins�tu�ons

Bodies Corporate

 Indian Public

NRIs / OCB

TOTAL

68329974

17937

1450

2106763

34834957

1798719

107089800

63.81

0.02

0.00

1.97

32.53

1.68

100.00

10)   Share Transfer Agents

M/s. Aarthi Consultants Pvt. Ltd., Regd. Office : 1‐2‐285, Domalguda, Hyderabad – 500029 (T.G) 
has been ac�ng as Share Transfer Agent (STA) to the Company. Share holders who desire to 
transfer (Physical) or dematerialise their shares are requested to send their shares along with 
suppor�ng documents to the above Share Transfer Agent(STA).

11)  Dematerialisa�on of Shares and Liquidity
st 

As on 31 March, 2025, out of 107089800 Equity Shares 105813925 No. of Shares were 
dematerialised (98.81%). Since the company's shares are trading under compulsory De‐mat 
mode shareholders are requested to take necessary steps to dematerialise their shares held in 
physical form.
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12)   Out standing GDR / ADRs / Warrants / Conver�ble Instruments

 ‐Not Applicable –

13)   Details of non‐compliance by listed en�ty, penal�es, stricturies imposed on the listed en�ty 
by stock exchange or the Board or any statutory authority, on any ma�er rela�ng to capital 
markets, during the last three years.

‐Not Applicable –

14)   Credit Ra�ng

Details are furnished in Management Discussion and Analysis under “Annexure – E”.

15)  Fee paid to Statutory Auditors

Total fees for all services paid by the company to the statutory auditors M/s. Brahmayya & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, Adoni for the year 2024‐25.

Par�culars Rs. in lakhs

Audit Fee           

Limited Review Report      

Tax Audit Fee

             Total

22.00

6.00

5.00

33.00

16)    Details of u�liza�on of the Funds raised through Preferen�al Issue / Rights Issue 

– Not Applicable‐

17)   Schedule V, Part C (2) ( c ) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 

Ms.  M. Sridevi (DIN:02446610) is holding posi�on of Directorship in the following Listed 
Companies.

Company Name Board Commi�ees

Danlaw Technologies India Limited

Sigachi Laboratories Limited

Ushakiran Finance Limited

NRC Commi�ee as member

NRC Commi�ee as member

NRC Commi�ee as member

Member

Member

Member

Ms.  S. Hima Bindu (DIN:09520601)  is holding posi�on of Directorship in the following Listed 
Companies.

Company Name Board Commi�ees

Davangere Sugar Company Limited

Incon Engineers Limited

NRC Commi�ee as Chairman

NRC Commi�ee as member

Member

Member

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

60 Annual Report 2024-25



18) A Chart or a Matrix Se�ng Out the Skills/ Exper�se/ Competence of the Board of Directors ‐ 
Schedule V, Part C (2)(h) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 

Effec�ve Governance includes establishing robust director competency frameworks that can be 
used by Boards to iden�fy director skill gaps and ensure that the skills of the current directors are 
being properly u�lized.

Building the right Board requires an understanding of director competencies, which involves 
considera�on of the directors' experience, skills, a�ributes, and capabili�es. Director 
competencies encompass two dis�nct areas: 

(i)  Technical competencies and 

(ii) Behavioral competencies. 

Technical competencies are a director's technical skills and experiences such as accoun�ng or 
legal skills, industry knowledge, experience in strategic planning and corporate governance. 

Behavioral competencies are a director's capabili�es and personal a�ributes and include, for 
example, linkages to the “ownership”; an ability to posi�vely influence people and situa�ons; an 
ability to assimilate and synthesize complex informa�on; �me availability; honesty and integrity; 
and high ethical standards. 

Thus, the Board of Directors of your Company has iden�fied the following list of core 
skills/exper�se/competencies required for each Director(s) in the context of its business(es) and 
sector(s) for it to func�on effec�vely and assessed those available with the Board.

(1)  Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy, major plans of ac�on, risk policy, annual budgets, 
and business plans, se�ng performance objec�ves, monitoring implementa�on and 
corporate performance, and overseeing major capital expenditures, acquisi�ons and 
investments. 

(2)  Monitoring the effec�veness of governance prac�ces and making changes as needed.

(3) Selec�ng, compensa�ng, monitoring, as and, when necessary, replacing key managerial 
personnel and overseeing succession planning. 

(4) Aligning key managerial personnel and remunera�on of the Board of directors with the 
longer‐term interests of the company and its shareholders.

(5) Ensuring a transparent nomina�on process to the Board of directors ensuring diversity of 
thought, experience, knowledge, perspec�ve, and gender in the Board of directors. 

(6)  Monitoring and managing poten�al conflicts of interest between the management, members 
of the Board of directors, and shareholders, including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in 
related party transac�ons.

(7)  Ensuring the integrity of the company's accoun�ng and financial repor�ng systems, including 
independent audit, and that appropriate systems of control are in place viz., systems for risk 
management, financial and opera�onal control, and compliance with the law and relevant 
standards. 
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(8)  Overseeing the process of disclosure and communica�ons. 

(9) Monitoring and reviewing Board of director's evalua�on framework. The following matrix 
table details the skills/exper�se/competencies iden�fied by the Board of Directors.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Sri. K Karunakar Rao

Sri. N Jesvanth Reddy 

Sri. C Srinivasa Babu

Ms. M Sridevi

Ms. S Hima Bindu

Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani

S. No. Name of the Directors 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

‐ ‐

‐ ‐

‐‐ ‐

‐

‐

The actual weightage and mix of a�ributes referred above will differ from person to person 
posi�on and case to case.

19)  Schedule V, Part C (2)( f ) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 

Details of Number of Shares held by Directors

Sri. K.  Karunakar Rao, Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.,)              

Number of Equity Shares

2150

20)  Schedule V, Part C (2)(i ) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 

It  is hereby confirmed  that  in  the  opinion  of  the  Board,  the  Independent Directors Viz., (a) 
Ms. M Sridevi (b) Ms. Geetha Ramesh Serwani and (c) Ms. S. Hima Bindu have fulfilled the 
condi�ons specified in these regula�ons and also of Sec.149 and other applicable provisions of 
the Act and further confirm that they are Independent of Management.

21)  Par�culars of KMP and Senior Management including Changes ‐ Schedule V, Part C (5B) of SEBI 
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015

In terms of Clause 5B of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, the par�culars of KMP and 
stSenior Management as on 31  March, 2025 are provided below.

Key Managerial Personnel

1.     Sri. K Karunakar Rao                           Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.,) & CEO

2.     Sri. N Jesvanth Reddy                         Execu�ve Director (Technical) 

3.     Sri. C Srinivasa Babu                           Execu�ve Director (Technical)

4.     Sri. V Radhakrishna Murthy              CGM & Company Secretary

5.     Sri. C Rajesh Khanna                           Sr. Vice President (F&A) & CFO

S. No. Name Designa�on
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Senior Management

Sri. N. Rengasami

Sri. A. Jayanarayan

Sri. S. Palaniappan                    

Sri. B. G. N. S. Murthy   

Sri. R. Ravi Kumar 

Sri. K. Shankar                   

Sri. E. Ramaiah 

Sri. S. Cha�opadhyay 

Sri. P. Raghavendra Reddy

Sri. M. V. Kumara swamy 

Sri. K. Anand Kumar

Sri. A. Venkat Rao

Sri. A. K. Singh

Sri. P. Ramesh Babu

Sri. P. Srinivasa Reddy 

Sri. T Ravichandran

Sri. K V N R Rama Krishna

S. No. Name Designa�on

Senior Vice President (M&M)

Senior Vice President (S & D)

Senior Vice President (Chloromethanes)

Senior Vice President (Projects)

Senior Vice President (F&A)

Senior Vice President (Instrumenta�on)

Senior Vice President (Mechanical)

Vice President (Civil)

Vice President (QA)

Vice President (Internal Audit)

Vice President (Mechanical)

Vice President (Finance)

Vice President (Produc�on)

Vice President (O & F)

Vice President (Instrumenta�on) (upto 06.10.2024)

Vice President (Mechanical)

Vice President (Electrical & Instrumenta�on)

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

22)   Remunera�on of Directors – Schedule V,  Part C  (6) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015
The required details are provided in “Annexure – G” of Directors Report.

23)  Succession Plan Document under Reg.17(4) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons,  2015
There exist a well documented succession plan in the form of Organiza�on/Flow Chart star�ng 
from the stage of Trainee to Managing Director / Chairman clearly showing the Responsibili�es, 
Authori�es, Liabili�es etc., and hierarchical posi�on. 

24)  Registra�on details of Independent Directors as under.
All three Independent Directors are registered with Independent Directors Data Bank as per Rule 
6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Regula�ons, 2015, details of D & O 
Liability Insurance policies taken on Independent Directors also furnished in the table.

S. No. Name of Director Registra�on Number D & O Policy No. / Validity

Ms. Sri devi Mada� 

Ms. Hima Bindu Sagala 

Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani

01

02

03

IDDB‐DI‐201912‐001816 61150036251000000001 / 09.08.2026

IDDB‐DI‐202205‐041866 61150036251000000001 / 09.08.2026

IDDB‐NR‐202207‐043455 61150036251000000001 / 09.08.2026

25)  Other Disclosure – Schedule V, Part C (2) (10) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015
(i)   Details of Non‐Compliance by the Listed En�ty, Penal�es, Strictures imposed on the Listed 

En�ty by Stock Exchange(s) or the Board or any Statutory Authority or any ma�er rela�ng 
to Capital Markets during the last three years.
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No Penalty or Strictures have been imposed on the company by any of the aforesaid 
authori�es during the three preceding financial years.

(ii) It is hereby affirmed that the company has complied with the provisions of Corporate 
Governance requirements specified in Regula�on 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of Sub‐
Regula�on (2) of Regula�on 46.

26) Code of Conduct

In compliance of Regula�on 17 Sub‐Regula�on 5 proviso a) or b) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 “Code of Conduct” applicable to (1)  Directors (2)  
Senior Management  has  been  approved  by  the  Board  and  the  same  has  been placed on the 
company's website. Copy of the code of conduct circulated to all the concerned and obtained 
their affirma�on.

As provided in Regula�on 17 Sub‐Regula�on 5 proviso a) or b) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 the Directors and Senior Management 
personnel have confirmed compliance with code of conduct for the period ended 
31.03.2025.

DECLARATION BY CEO

On behalf of the Board of Directors

K. KARUNAKAR RAO

Sd/‐

Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.)

Place : Hyderabad               
thDate  : 8 August, 2025

(DIN : 02031367)

27)   Plant Loca�on
        Gondiparla, Kurnool–518004(A.P).                                                                                                               
        Bellary  Power Plant : Tagginabudihalli, Bellary, Karnataka.                                                                
        Wind Farm : Ramagiri, Anantapur Dist. (A.P)
28)  For all ma�ers, address for Correspondence at any of the following addresses
        (A)   Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
                Aarthi Consultants Private Limited

          Regd.Office : 1‐2‐285, Domalguda, Hyderabad – 500029 (Telangana)
          Tel. No.: 040–27638111, 27634445, 27642217, 66611921, Fax No. : 040 – 27632184
          E‐mail : info@aarthiconsultants.com

(B)   TGV SRAAC Limited (CIN: L24110AP1981PLC003077)                                                                                                               

        6‐2‐1012, II Floor, TGV Mansion, Opp. Ins�tute of Engineers, Khairatabad, Hyderabad – 500004,     

       Telangana, Tel No.: 040 – 23313842,  Fax No.: 040‐23313875, E‐mail : sralkalies@tgvmail.net 

29)  Company Website  : www.tgvgroup.com
On behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/‐ sd/‐
K. KARUNAKAR RAO

Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.)
Place : Hyderabad               

thDate  : 8 August, 2025 (DIN: 02031367)

C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 09266926)

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

64 Annual Report 2024-25



ANNEXURE 'D' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Secretarial Auditor's Cer�ficate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members,
TGV SRAAC LIMITED

I have examined the compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance by TGV SRAAC LIMITED 
('the Company'), for the year ended 31 March 2025, as s�pulated in Chapter IV of Securi�es and 
Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('the 
Lis�ng Regula�ons').

The compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.    
My examina�on was limited to procedures and implementa�on thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to me, I 
cer�fy that the Company has complied with the condi�ons of Corporate Governance as s�pulated in 
applicable provisions of Lis�ng Regula�ons, as applicable.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

Place : Hyderabad               
thDate  : 8  August, 2025

UDIN : F006681G000960249

Company Secretary in Prac�ce
FCS    : 6681
CP No : 7350
PR No : 1386/2021

Mahadev Tirunagari
sd/‐
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
(Pursuant to Regula�on 34 (2) read with Schedule V, Part B (2) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015

ANNEXURE 'E' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

ECONOMY:

Indian economy is presently experiencing robust GDP growth rate at 6.5% in F.Y. 2025. This growth 
can be a�ributed to rising employment, improved local consump�on, increased exports, surge in 
digital transforma�ons, reduc�on in infla�on etc.  The growth in the economy has been marked by 
steady rise in its posi�on on the global stage.  India has surpassed Japan in June 2025 to become the 
fourth largest economy in the world.  A combina�on of strong domes�c demand and policy reforms is 
helping the country in its strides in improving its posi�on in global markets further.  It is projected to 
reach a GDP of US$ 5 Trillion by 2027.   

India's ability to a�ract Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) is also an arm in its economy growth.  Country 
has received FDI amoun�ng to US$ 49.3 Billion in FY 2025.  The current account deficit narrowed to 
Rs.198726 Crores and hardly at 0.06% of GDP in the F.Y. 2025.  The Forex reserves stood at US$ 699.74 
Billion during July, 2025.  RBI has projected a growth rate of 6.5% in F.Y. 2026.  With large younger 
popula�on and with stable and democra�c poli�cal system, India is poised for Steller growth in years 
to come.

CHEMICAL INDUSTRY :

The Global Chemical Industry size is es�mated a value of USD 6324 billion during 2025 growing at a 
CAGR of 2.3%. The increase in demand across various sectors such as agriculture, construc�on, 
pharmaceu�cals, leading to increased consump�on across the world. Stringent environmental 
regula�ons is a challenge to chemical industry.  Sustainability and green chemistry is an opportunity 
for the industry.

Indian chemical industry is a major contributor to its economy.  The industry ranks sixth largest 
among the world.  It is projected to reach a level of USD 300 billion by 2030.  Exports of chemicals and 
allied products reached a level of Rs.928 Billion. To boost chemicals industry Govt. of India has 
introduced PLI Scheme especially for bulk drugs with a target of Rs.1629 Crores.

PRODUCTS OF THE COMPANY :

The major products of the company are Caus�c Soda, Caus�c Potash, Chloromethanes and other 
allied products.  The Indian Caus�c Soda industry plays a significant part of country's economy.  On all 

st
India basis the installed capacity is at 57.84 lakhs MTPA as on 31  March, 2024.  Produc�on of the 
industry was at 46.13 lakh MT for the F.Y. 2023‐24 with a capacity u�lisa�on of 82%.  Major areas of 
consump�on of Caus�c Soda are Aluminium, Inorganics, Tex�les, Soaps and detergents, 
pharmaceu�cals, paper etc., etc., areas.  The industry is expected to glow at CAGR of 3.28%. Caus�c 
Soda market is divided into Caus�c Lye and Flakes.  In India, lye market is leading.  Caus�c Soda 
industry in the country faces several challenges like global market dynamics, environmental 
regula�ons, Imports compe��on, waste management etc. Though the Indian Caus�c Soda has
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 embraced cleaner Membrane Cell Technology, s�ll the country depends on import of this technology.  
The high tariff rates in the country is one of the main concern for Caus�c Industry and power being the 
main cost of produc�onis another concern.

Chlorine is a joint product which emerges along with Caus�c Soda produc�on.  The chlorine market in 
India is experiencing significant growth with its increase in demand from water treatment, 
pharmaceu�cals and from other chemicals manufacture.  The main uses of chlorine includes 
disinfec�on of water, bleaching materials, produc�on of plas�cs, usage in pharma industry, and dyes. 
Chlorine consump�on/commercial disposal will have direct impact on caus�c soda produc�on.

Hydrochloric Acid is another product in Caus�c Soda Industry and is used in steel pickling, water 
treatment, manufacture of polyethylene, chloride compounds etc.  For the past few years chlorine 
and Hydrochoric Acid market is undergoing a stress in  pricing.

Another key product being Potassium Hydroxide (Caus�c Potash) is used in many industries like 
fer�lisers, detergents, food and beverages and in manufacture of other chemicals like potassium 
carbonate, etc.  The market demand for the product stood at 0.13 million MT (FY 2021) and 
forecasted to reach 0.18 million MT by FY 2023 with growth rate of CAGR of 4.25%. Product is 
manufactured through electrolysis process using potassium chloride solu�on.  The raw material 
(potassium chloride) is to be imported in India.

Another important product group of the company is Chloromethanes.  It is an organic compound and 
finds applica�on in refrigerants, automobiles, construc�on, personal care products, silicon polymers, 
coa�ng, pharmaceu�cals etc.  Raw material, chlorine is available within the company as a joint 
product in Caus�c Soda manufacture.  It is projected that Chloromethanes Industry is growing at 
CAGR 6.2%.

Fa�y Acids and Castor Oil deriva�ves, of oil segment of the company areoperated rela�vely at lower 
scales as these products are with thin margins.

The Power plant at Bellary con�nues to be under closure with expiry of power purchase agreement 
with Karnataka Electricity Authori�es.  Company is studying measures for disposal or otherwise of 
the unit.

The Company has achieved a Gross Turnover of Rs. 2026.47 Cr against previous year (2023‐24) 
Turnover of Rs.1792.75 Cr.  Further, the company has produced 407894 MTs of Chemicals consis�ng 
of Caus�c Soda, Potassium Hydroxide and Chloromethanes deriva�ves in current year (2024‐25) 
against previous year produc�on (2023‐24) of 369546 MTs. The net profit before tax for current year 
stood at Rs. 125.56 Cr compared to that of Rs. 43.76 Cr for previous year. 

In order to have be�er quality of Salt, the raw material for Caus�c Soda produc�on the company has 
resorted to procurement of same from Gujarat belt incurring increased transporta�on cost. All inputs 
used in manufacture are mainly sourced locally except Potassium Chloride the raw material for 
Caus�c Potash. 
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Power being major ingredient of total cost the company is giving main thrust to cost reduc�on in 
power plant. During the year the company has installed 15.15 MW (upto previous year 22.75 MW) 
Solar Power Plant adjacent to the Factory. Plans are in anvil for total increase of the capacity to 100 
MW in stages.  Considering the importance of solar green power in protec�ng environment and 
sustainability, the company has given more thrust in this area.  Upto the year 2024‐25 the company 
has generated aggregate solar power of 97814 MWH (2022‐23‐20048 MWH + 2023‐24‐34225 MWH 
+ 2024‐25 – 43541 MWH) and the same is used internally by the company.  Your management is 
happy to inform that it will put relentless efforts towards solar power in future as it will be only the 
savior having mul�ple benefits.

GENERAL‐SEGMENT‐WISE PERFORMANCE TOGETHER WITH DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Segment‐wise performance together with discussion on financial performance with respect to 
opera�onal performance has been dealt with in the Directors' Report which should be treated as 
forming part of this Management Discussion and Analysis.

CREDIT RATING:

The Company maintained same Credit Ra�ng of CARE A with the “Outlook” of Stable for long term 
bank facili�es and CARE A with the “Outlook” of Stable for Short Term Bank facili�es, awarded by 
M/s. CARE Ra�ng Limited. Company is working in a direc�on to improve the ra�ng further. 

DETAILS OF KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS WITH SIGNIFICANT VARIANCE:

Details of Financial Ra�o Increase / Decrease when compared to previous years(2024‐25/2023‐24).

Overall variances in ra�os is the result of be�er performance in main products of the company.

S. No.
Details of Financial 

Ra�o ‐ Increase / Decrease
For the year ended 

st31  March, 2025

For the year ended 
st 31  March, 2024

Variance 
(%)   (*)

01

02

03

04

05

Return on Equity Ra�o

Net Capital Turnover

Net Profit Ra�o

Return on Capital employed

Return on Investment

8.10

 23.82

5.30

9.42

8.10

5.67 

33.52

3.96

7.24

5.67

42.89

‐28.93

33.76

30.15

42.89

(*) Note : In general the financial performance of the Company for the year 2024‐25 is by and large 

compared to year 2023‐24 is be�er for the reasons explained in Directors Report.  Due to this factor, 

the financial Ra�os for the year 2024‐25 compared to its previous year are showing favourable 

variance. With regard to net capital turnover, as net current assets are more compared to previous 

year the ra�o stands nega�ve. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY :

The Company has established an appropriate system of internal control to ensure that there exists a 
proper control over all the transac�ons and that all its assets are properly safeguarded and not 
exposed to risk arising out of unauthorized use or disposal. Internal Audit is conducted at all for all the 
key areas of business. The Internal Control System is supplemented by a programme of Internal 
Audits to ensure that the assets are properly accounted for and the business opera�ons are 
conducted in adherence as laid down in policies and procedures. The Internal Audit is oriented 
towards review of controls and opera�onal improvements.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, 
INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED :

Rela�ons with the employees remained cordial in general throughout the year. In order to op�mise 
the contribu�on of the employees to the Company's business and opera�ons, in‐house training is 
given to the employees to induce contribu�on to produc�vity increase and development 
programmes for all levels of employees have been devised. Occupa�onal Health Safety and 

stEnvironmental Management are given utmost importance. As at 31  March, 2025 the employee 
strength (on permanent rolls) of the Company was 1047.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objec�ves, 
projec�ons, es�mates, expecta�ons or predic�ons may be 'forward‐looking statements' within the 
meaning of applicable securi�es laws and regula�ons and such forward‐looking statements involve 
risks and uncertain�es. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied 
important factors that could make a difference to the Company's opera�ons include raw material 
availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company's principal markets, changes in 
Government regula�ons, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the Countries in 
which the Company conducts business and other incidental factors. The Company undertakes no 
obliga�on to publicly update or revise any forward looking statements, whether as a result of new 
informa�ons, future events, or otherwise. Readers are cau�oned not to place undue reliance on 
these forward looking statements that speaks only as of their dates.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/‐ sd/‐
K. KARUNAKAR RAO

Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.)
Place : Hyderabad               

th
Date  : 8  August, 2025 (DIN: 02031367)

C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 09266926)
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Form for Disclosure of par�culars of Contracts / Arrangements entered into by the company with 
related par�es referred to in sub‐sec�on (1) of Sec.188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain 
arm's length transac�on under third proviso thereto.

1)  Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transac�ons not at Arm's Length basis : Not applicable.

2)  Details of Material Contracts or Arrangements or Transac�ons at arm's length basis :

FORM NO. AOC‐2
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub‐sec�on (3) of Sec�on134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

ANNEXURE' F 'TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

S.
No.

(a)
Names (s) of the 

Related Party and 
Nature of 

Rela�onship

(b)
Nature of 

Contracts / 
Arrangements
 / Transac�ons

(  )  
Dura�on of 

the Contracts/
Arrangements/ 

Transac�ons

(d)
Salient 

terms of the 
Contracts of 
Transac�ons 

including 
the 

value, if any.
(Rs. in lakhs)

(e)
Date(s) of 

approval by 
the Board, 

if any.

(f)
Amount 
Paid as 

advances, 
if any.

(Rs. in lakhs)

1 Sree Rayalaseema       
Hi‐Strength Hypo 
Limited

Sales
Purchases

Rent 
Received
Services 
availed

Dividend 
received

Lease Rental 
paid

Dividend 
paid

Investment 
in Equity

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

9533.37
1840.92

6.87

22.32

7.34

16.00

205.45

‐

29.05.2024 

497.42 (Dr)
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐

‐

‐

24.48 (Dr)

2 SRHH Limited Dividend Paid Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

0.15 29.05.2024 ‐

c
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3

4

5

6

TGV Projects & 
Investments Private 
Limited

Sree Rayalaseema 
Galaxy Projects 
Private Limited

Gowri Gopal 
Hospitals Private 
Limited

Gowri Gopal 
Intensive Care Unit

Lease Rent 
Paid

Dividend Paid

Sales
Purchases

Dividend paid

Services 
availed 

Purchases
Dividend paid

Services 
availed

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

323.27

116.94

13.81
114.63

0.55

17.22

2.46
10.05

7.45

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

0.20 (Cr)

‐

‐
10.32 (Cr)

‐

0.75 (Cr)

0.60 (Cr)
‐

2.33 (Cr)

7 Sree Rayalaseema 
Dutch Kassenbouw 
Private Limited

Dividend paid Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

18.81 29.05.2024 ‐

8

9

10

11

12

The Mourya Inn

Brilliant Industries 
Private Limited

Brilliant Bio 
Pharma Private 
Limited

Sree Maruthi 
Marine Industries 
Limited

Sree Maruthi Agro 
Tech Private 
Limited

Services 
availed 

Dividend paid

Sales
Investment in 

Equity

Purchases

Purchases

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

215.19

265.14

0.76
‐

115.17

4.70

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

22.87 (Cr)

‐

1.93 (Cr)
1987.00(Dr)

5.04 (Cr)

‐
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13

14

15

Roopa Industries 
Limited

TGV Industries 
Private Limited

TGV Securi�es 
Private Limited

Sales

Purchases

Dividend paid

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

27.84

358.55

0.14

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

‐

36.21 (Cr)

‐

16 Priyadarshini Salt 
Works Private 
Limited

Purchases Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

7.11 29.05.2024 ‐

17

18

19

20

Other Related 
Par�es

Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP)

Rela�ves to KMPs

Directors

Advisory 
charges

Rent & Others
Rent advance 

paid
Dividend paid

Remunera�on
Dividend paid

Car lease rent
Dividend paid

Si�ng fees

Annual 
Contracts / 

Arrangements

Annual 
Contracts / 

Service

Annual 
Contracts / 

Service

Service

1361.51

76.86
‐

59.49

165.64
0.02

4.84
0.01

1.87

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

29.05.2024

118.25 (Cr)

18.14 (Cr)
107.00 (Dr)

‐

10.46 (Cr)
‐

0.40 (Cr)
‐

‐

Note :  The above related party disclosures are only under Sec.188 read with Sec.134 of the 
Companies Act,  2013. 

on behalf of the Board of Directors 

K. KARUNAKAR RAO   C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.,)

(DIN: 02031367)
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 09266926)

Place : Hyderabad
th

Date  : 8  August, 2025

sd/‐ sd/‐
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ANNEXURE 'G' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO KMP AND DIRECTORS

of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) (Pursuant of Sec�on 92(3) 
of the Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014)

A) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

S.
No.

Par�culars of 
Remunera�on

Sri. Kamise�y 
Karunakar Rao

Sri. Nalla 
 Jesvanth Reddy 

(upto 31.03.2025)

Sri Chappidi
Srinivasa Babu

Total Amount
(in Rs.)

ED (Fin. & Comml.,) ED  (Technical)

(*) Rs.1229 Lakhs (being 10% Profits of the Company as per Sec. 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ED  (Technical)

Gross Salary1

(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained 
in sec�on 17(1) of 
the Income‐Tax, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites 
u/s 17(2) of Income‐Tax 
Act, 1961
(  )Profits in lieu of salary 
under sec�on 17(3) of
Income‐Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Op�on

4

3

Commission

Sweat Equity 

‐ as % of Profit
others, specify

30,95,000

39,600

0

‐

‐

‐

‐

31,34,600

30,20,420

39,600

0

‐

‐

‐

‐

30,60,020

60,00,000

3,71,320

0

‐

‐

‐

63,71,320

‐

1,21,15,420

4,50,520

0

‐

‐

‐

1,25,65,940

‐5 Others, please specify

Total  Ceiling as per the 
Act (*)                                           

B)  REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS

S.
No.

Par�culars of  
Remunera�on 

during the 
period 01.04.2024 

to 31.03.2025

Fee for 
a�ending 
Board / 

Commi�ee 
Mee�ngs

* Others 
(Please 
Specify)

Commission Total 
Amount 
(in Rs.)

Name of  the
 Directors

1 Independent Directors

Ms M. Sridevi

Ms S. Hima Bindu

Ms Geeta Ramesh Serwani

69,000 69,000

61,500 61,500

55,500 55,500

‐‐

‐‐

‐‐
Total (1) 1,86,000 1,86,000

c
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‐

‐

‐

‐

Total (2)

Total (B) = (1+2)

‐ ‐
Other Non ‐ 
Execu�ve Directors

2

‐

‐

0

1,86,000

0

‐

‐

‐

0

1,86,000

0

 (*)

Total Managerial 
Remunera�on

Overall Ceiling as 
per the Act

    (*) Rs.123 Lakhs (being 1% of the net profit of the company calculated under Clause 198 of the 
    Companies Act, 2013).

Sl. 
No.

Total Amount 
(in Rs.)

Par�culars of Remunera�on
Key Managerial Personnel

Sri C. Rajesh 
Khanna

Sri V. Radhakrishna 
Murthy

Sr. V.P (F&A) 
& CFO

CGM & Company 
Secretary

1 Gross Salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
      contained in sec�on 17(1) of the 
      Income‐Tax Act, 1961

20,14,610 8,64,000 28,78,610

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
     Income‐Tax Act, 1961

( ) Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on 
     17(3) of Income‐Tax Act,1961

38,400

‐

38,400

‐

76,800

‐

2

3

4

5

Stock Op�on

Sweat Equity

Commission
 ‐ as % of Profit
others, specify

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

Others, please specify

                                                             Total

‐

20,53,010

‐

9,02,400

‐

29,55,410

c

C) REMUNERATIONS TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THEN MD / MANAGER / WTD / ED
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ANNEXURE 'H' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
(Pursuant to Sec�on 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014)

1)   A brief outline of the Company on CSR Policy : 

Main philosophy of the company is that it a part of large society and hence its acts shall help the 
society for sustainability which is only possible through CSR ac�vi�es. Your company is indulging 
CSR ac�vi�es on regular basis that too before its no�fica�on in the Act, as the company considers 
it is the utmost responsibility of every company which is a part of large society.  Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) is the contribu�on from the Corporate towards Social and Economic 
development of Society. CSR policy should ensure ac�vi�es which may include sustainable 
development by skill enhancement, sustainable environment, promo�on to gender equality, 
preserva�on of health care and sanita�on, gender equality, promo�ng educa�on etc. Apart from 
the above, the company CSR Policy aims at taking care of ESG i.e., environment, security and 
governance related aspects and obliga�ons.  The Company has proposed to undertake the 
ac�vi�es rela�ng to Social Welfare, which includes ac�vi�es such as Eradica�ng Poverty 
allevia�on/eradica�on and Malnutri�on, providing Safe Drinking Water and other Social Welfare 
ac�vi�es like Healthcare and Women Empowerment Educa�on.  The CSR policy func�ons as a 
built‐in, self‐regula�ng mechanism whereby a business monitors and ensures its ac�ve 
compliance with the spirit of the law, ethical standards, and interna�onal norms.  The Company 
on recommenda�on of its CSR Commi�ee has laid down a “Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Policy”, in concurrence with the provisions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 (including 
Schedule VII) and Rules made thereunder.  Further, every year the Board will approve the Annual 
CSR Budget which is reviewed and revised by the CSR Commi�ee depending on requirements or 
on quarterly basis.  Further the company is proac�ve in CSR spends and hence at the end of 
31.03.2025 there is excess CSR spend (cumula�ve) of Rs. 59,48,837/‐ for adjustment/set‐off in 
future three years subject to statutory provisions.

2)    The  Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee as on  March 31, 2025:

Sl.
No. Name of the Director

Designa�on / Nature 
of Directorship

Number of mee�ngs of CSR 
Commi�ee held during the year

Held A�ended

1.

2.

3.

Sri K. Karunakar Rao

Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy

Ms M. Sridevi

Execu�ve Director

Execu�ve Director (Upto 31.03.2025)

Independent Director

4

4

4

4

4

4

The CSR Commi�ee was recons�tuted latest on 28.03.2025 in view of this there is a change in the 
Commi�ee composi�on for the current year (2025‐26) as per the following details.
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1.

2.

3.

S. No. Name of Director Designa�on / Nature of Directorship

Sri K. Karunakar Rao

Sri C. Srinivasa Babu

Ms. M. Sridevi

Execu�ve Director & CEO

Execu�ve Director (Technical)

Independent Director

3)   Provide  the  weblink  where Composi�on  of  CSR  Commi�ee,  CSR  Policy  and  CSR  projects  

approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company  h�ps:// 
www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraac/1‐Corporate‐Social‐Responsibility‐CSR‐Policy‐
new‐file.pdf

4)   Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub‐rule (3) 
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable 
(a�ach the report) ‐ Not Applicable

5)   Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub‐rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, and amount required for set off for the 
financial year , if any.

1.

2.

3.

Amount required to be set‐ off for 
the financial year, if any (in Rs.) 

(cumula�ve)

2021‐22

2022‐23

2023‐24

Total

 50,75,549

1,10,12,865

87,31,342

2,48,19,756

1,63,78,414

2,48,19,756

6)  Net Profit Calcula�on 

Sl. No Par�culars Amount (in Rs.)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Average net profits of the Company as per sec�on 135 (5)

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sec�on 
135(5)

Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or 
ac�vi�es of the previous three financial years

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

Total CSR obliga�on (net) for the financial year (6b‐6d)

243,13,88,931

4,86,27,779

2,48,19,756

1,88,70,919

2,97,56,860

S. No. Financial Year Amount available for set‐off from 
preceding financial years (in Rs.)
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7)    Details of CSR amount spent 

Sl. No Par�culars Amount (in Rs.)

a)

b)

c)

d)

Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other 
than Ongoing Project)

2,97,56,860

Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

Total amount spent for the Financial Year [ a+b+c ]

Nil

Nil

2,97,56,860

e)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :

Total amount 
spent for the 
financial year 

2024‐25 (in Rs.)

 Amount Unspent(in Rs.)

Total amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR account as per Sec�on 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to sec�on 135(5)

2,97,56,860
N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A

Amount Date of 
transfer

Name of 
the fund

Amount Date of 
transfer

(f)  Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No Par�culars Amount (in Rs.)

ii)

iii)

i) Two percent  of average net profit of the company immediate 
for preceding 3 years as per sec�on 135(5)

4,86,27,779

Total amount spent for the Financial year

CSR Shortage for the financial year [ (i) – (ii) ]

2,97,56,860

1,88,70,919

iv)

v)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es 
of the previous two financial years, if any 
(Rs. 5075549.12 + 11012865 + 87,31,342)

Amount available for set off in succeeding three financial years 
[(iv) ‐ (ii) ]

2,48,19,756

59,48,837 

8) (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

Sl No Preceding 
Financial 

year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR Account 
under sec�on 
135(6) (in Rs.)

Amount 
spent in 

the 
repor�ng 
Financial 

year (in Rs.)

Amount transferred to any 
fund specified under schedule 
VII as per sec�on 135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years.(in Rs.)

Name of 
the fund

Amount
(in Rs.)

Date of 
transfer

N.A.
Total
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Vanitha 
Vikas 
Educa�onal 
& Social 
Services 
Trust, 
Hyderabd 
(CSR 
00077367)

4. Construc�on 
of building 
to Woman's 
Hostel

2024‐25 36 99.00 50.00 50.00 Ongoing

Vasavi Arya 
Vysya Hostel 
Trust, 
Hyderabad  
(CSR
00058052)

3. Construc�on 
of building 
to Woman's 
Hostel

2023‐24 36 99.00 49.00 99.00 Ongoing

Project IDSl 
No

Name of 
the project

Financial 
year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
dura�on

Project 
Budget 

total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 
(Rs. in 
lakhs)

Amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

repor�ng 
Financial 

year 
(in Rs. In 

lakhs)

Cumula�ve 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
the 

repor�ng 
Financial 

year (in Rs. 
In lakhs)

Status of the 
project‐

Completed / 
ongoing

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

AVOPA, 
Kurnool 
(CSR 
00026089)

1 Construc�on 
of building 
to Women 
Empower‐ 
ment Hostel 
construc�on

2021‐22 36 99.50 5.00 97.00 Completed

TGB Youth 
Associa�on, 
Kurnool 
(CSR
00019031)

2. Construc�on 
of building 
to Vasavi 
Mahila 
Shikshana 
Kendram – 
Woman's 
Hostel

2023‐24 36 99.00 25.00 75.00 Ongoing

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
      year(s):
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9.   In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset, furnish the details rela�ng to the asset so 
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year :   NIL  

        (asset‐wise details)

(a) Date of crea�on or acquisi�on of the capital asset (s)

(b) Amount of CSR spent for crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset.

(c) Details of the en�ty or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital 
asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
loca�on of the capital asset).

10. Specify the reason(s) if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net 
profit as per sec�on 135(5) : Not Applicable.

on behalf of the Board of Directors 

K. KARUNAKAR RAO   C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.,)

(DIN: 02031367)
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 09266926)

Place : Hyderabad
th 

Date  : 8 August, 2025

sd/‐ sd/‐
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ANNEXURE 'I' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

DETAILS OF MEDIAN REMUNERATION VS KMP & DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
Informa�on pursuant to Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

(1)  Role of the remunera�on of each Director/KMP to the median remunera�on of all the employees 

     of the Company for the financial year:

Median remunera�on of all the employees of the 
Company for the Financial year 2024‐25

The percentage increase in the median remunera�on of 
employees in the Financial year 2024‐25

Total number of permanent and other employees on the 
strolls of the Company as on 31  March, 2025

Name of Director / KMP
Ra�o of remunera�on to median 

remunera�on of all employees

Execu�ve Directors

Sri K. Karunakar Rao

Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy (upto 31.03.2025)

Sri  C. Srinivasa Babu

Non‐Execu�ve Independent Directors

Ms. M. Sridevi

Ms. S. Hima Bindu

Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani

Key Managerial Personnel

Sri  C. Rajesh Khanna

Sri  V. Radhakrishna Murthy

5.80

5.66

11.79

0.13

0.11

0.10

3.80

1.67

Note : The ra�o of remunera�on to median remunera�on is based on remunera�on paid during 
st st

           the period 1  April, 2024 to 31  March, 2025.

(2)  Average percen�le increase already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase in the 
managerial remunera�on and jus�fica�on thereof and to point out if there are any excep�onal 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remunera�on.
Factors influencing remunera�on of managerial and non‐managerial execu�ves are different.

(3)   Affirma�on that the remunera�on is as per the remunera�on policy of the Company.
      It is confirmed affirma�vely that the remunera�on to execu�ves is as per remunera�on policy of 

the Company.

Rs. 5,40,348/‐ per year

1047

7.31%
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ANNEXURE ' J' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

FORM NO. MR‐3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

ST
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members, 
TGV SRAAC LIMITED
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate prac�ces by TGV SRAAC Limited (hereina�er called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verifica�on of the TGV SRAAC Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on            
31 March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board‐processes and compliance‐mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the repor�ng made hereina�er:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by TGV SRAAC Limited for the financial year ended on 31 March 2025 according to the provisions of: 
 (i)     The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii)     The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 
(iii)    The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye‐laws framed thereunder; 
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder to the   

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

(v)   The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):

(a)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regula�ons, 2011; 

(b)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015;
(c)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2018; ‐ (Not Applicable to the company during the period under review).
(d)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regula�ons, 2021; ‐ (Not Applicable to the company during the period under review).
(e)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Non‐Conver�ble Securi�es) 

Regula�ons, 2021; ‐ (Not Applicable to the company during the period under review).
(f)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regula�ons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
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(g)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2021; ‐ (Not  
Applicable to the company during the period under review).

(h)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018;‐(Not 
Applicable to the company during the period under review)and

(i)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015;

(vi)  The other laws as applicable specifically to the company are as under:

        1. The Drugs and Cosme�c Act, 2002 

2. The Environmental Protec�on Act, 1986

3. The Water (Preven�on and control of Pollu�on) Act, 1974 

4. The Indian Electricity Act, 2003 

5. The Indian Explosives Act, 1884 

6. The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885

7.  Air (Preven�on and control of Pollu�on) Act, 1981

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Lis�ng Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regula�ons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. men�oned above

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, 
Non‐Execu�ve Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in thecomposi�on of the Board of 
Directors that took place duringthe period under review were carried out in compliance withthe 
provisions of the Act.

Adequate no�ce was given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs/Commi�ee mee�ngs, agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the mee�ng and for 
meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissen�ng members' views are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and opera�ons of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regula�ons and guidelines. 

There were no other specific events / ac�ons in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regula�ons,  
guidelines, etc. having a major bearing on the Company's affairs.

Mahadev Tirunagari
Company Secretary in Prac�ce
FCS : 6681
CP No.: 7350
PR No : 1386/2021

Place : Hyderabad
th

Date  : 8 August, 2025
UDIN:  F006681G000960293

sd/‐

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

82 Annual Report 2024-25



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To
The Members
TGV SRAAC LIMITED 
Gondiparla, Kurnool,
Andhra Pradesh, India ‐ 518004

My report of even date is to be read along with this le�er

1.   Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.  I have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifica�on was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 
the processes and prac�ces I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

1.   I have relied upon the opinion of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors on the correctness and 
appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

2.  Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representa�on about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regula�ons and happening of events etc.

3.  The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, 
standards is responsibility of Management. My examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of 
procedures on test basis.

4.   The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

Place : Hyderabad
th

Date  : 8 August, 2025
UDIN:  F006681G000960293

Mahadev Tirunagari
Company Secretary in Prac�ce
FCS : 6681
CP No.: 7350
PR No : 1386/2021

sd/‐
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ANNEXURE 'K' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
CERTIFICATE OF NON‐DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015)

To, 

The Members of 

TGV SRAAC LIMITED,

Gondiparla, Kurnool 
Andhra Pradesh‐ 518004, India

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 
of TGV SRAAC LIMITED having CIN L24110AP1981PLC003077 and having registered office at Gondiparla, 
Kurnool, Andhra Pradesh ‐ 518004, India (hereina�er referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me 
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, in accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para‐C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors 
Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explana�ons furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on 
the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March 2025 have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of companies by the Securi�es 
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No

1

2

3

4

5

6

Name of Director DIN 
Date of appointment

 in Company 

Sridevi Mada�

Geeta Ramesh Serwani

Karunakar Rao Kamise�y

Jesvanth Reddy Nalla

Srinivasa Babu Chappidi

Hima Bindu Sagala

02446610

09130636

02031367

03074131

09266926

09520601

11/11/2021

10/08/2022

07/08/2010

07/08/2010

04/08/2021

02/03/2022

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verifica�on. This cer�ficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 08 August 2025
UDIN : F006681G000960194

Mahadev Tirunagari
Company Secretary in Prac�ce
FCS : 6681
CP No.: 7350
PR No : 1386/2021

sd/‐
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ANNEXURE ‘L’  TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (BRSR)

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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TGV SRAAC Ltd adheres to the 9 principles of NGRBC and through its business conduct has 
contributed to Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) as out lined below

Key highlights of BRSR Report:

Principle  1 : Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that 
is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable

The robust policy framework of the company ensures an ethical and equitable organiza�on enabling 
a 100 % compliance and zero cases of corrup�on.

Principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

The Company is driven by sustainability in all its opera�ons.

 The company adopts bipolar membrane technology

 The company has effec�ve Environmental Management systems in place.

 Transi�on to clean energy by genera�ng solar power.

  Waste Management and compliances in place.

Principle 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well being of all employees, including those 
in their value chain.

 50% representa�on of women in the Board

 The company ensures coverage of 100% of its permanent employees with health and accident 
insurance.

 Training programmes on occupa�onal health, safety and skill development ware organized for 
all categories of employees

 Zero number of accidents reported.

Principle 4 : Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

The Company's “stakeholder policy “ensures construc�ve engagement with its stakeholders fostering 
effec�ve and enduring rela�onships.

Principle 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human rights

The human rights policy of the company ensures

 No child Labor

 No cases of Harassment or discrimina�on.

 100% of permanent employees have remunera�on above minimum wages.

 100% of permanent employees are covered under employee benefit scheme.

Principle 6 : Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

Company Energy focus

The company is ac�vely priori�zing renewable energy goals through solar power genera�on



Circular economy implementa�on

The salt and acids reclaimed from waste water in their plant is effec�vely u�lized as a raw materials in 
one of their group companies, demonstra�ng a commitment to a circular economy approach.

New Technologies For Resource Conserva�on and Waste Reduc�on

Principle 7 : Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a 
manner that is responsible and transparent

The company plays a proac�ve role in the industry through its associa�on with the Alkali 
Manufacturers Associa�on of India (AMAI) as the member of the Execu�ve Commi�ee and the 
Technical Sub‐Commi�ee.

Principle 8 : Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

Local Employment Genera�on

The Company contributes to local employment both directly and indirectly, benefi�ng a significant of 
90 % local people 

Social Welfare Programs 

Ini�a�ves such as supplying clean drinking water and organizing health camps have resulted in a 
posi�ve impact on the community through their CSR ac�vi�es

Principle 9 : Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible 
manner

100% customer sa�sfac�on with zero complaints. Ensuring 100% safety in usage and disposal.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

SECTION A : GENERAL DISCLOSURES

I.    Details of the listed en�ty

1.   Corporate Iden�ty Number   :  L24110AP1981PLC003077

2.   Name of the Listed En�ty  : TGV SRAAC LIMITED (formerly Known as       
      Sree Rayalaseema Alkalies and Allied 
      Chemicals Limited)

3.   Year of incorpora�on  : 24‐06‐1981

4.   Registered office address  : Gondiparla, Kurnool ‐ 518 004 (A.P)

5.   Corporate Address   : 40‐304, 2nd Floor Krishna Jyothsna Complex,   
      Bhagyanagar Kurnool‐518004, A.P. India.

6.   E‐mail    : karunakar@tgvmail.net, cssraac@tgvmail.net

7.   Telephone    : 08518‐289602/03, 221933/0069

8.   Website    : www.tgvgroup.com

9.   Financial year for which repor�ng is  

being done    : 2024‐25

10. Name of the Stock Exchange (s) where  

       shares are listed    : Bombay Stock Exchange

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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II.   Products/services

16. Details of business ac�vi�es (accoun�ng for 90% of the turnover): 

Sl. 
No.

Descrip�on of Main 
Ac�vity

Descrip�on of Business 
Ac�vity

% of Turnover 
of the en�ty

TGV SRAAC LIMITED (formerly Sree 
Rayalaseema Alkalies and Allied 
Chemicals Ltd.) is the flagship company 
of the TGV Group. It is the leading 
producer of Chlor‐Alkali products and 
manufactures Castor Deriva�ves and 
Fa�y Acids

a) Chemicals Segment: the Company 
manufactures Caus�c Soda, Caus�c 
P o t a s h ,  C h l o r i n e  a n d 
Chloromethanes as Main Products

b)  Oils and Fats Segment: produce 
Castor Oi l   Deriva�ves,  soap 
noodles, Hydroxy Stearic Acid and 
Glycerine

1. 88%

12%

11. Paid‐up Capital   :     Rs. 107.13 Crs
12. Name and contact details (telephone,  :  Mr. C. Srinivasa Babu,                      
       email address) of the person who may   Execu�ve Director (Technical)   

       be contacted in case of any queries on the   srinivasbabu@tgvmail.net

       BRSR report

13. Repor�ng boundary   : The disclosures in this report are made for 

       Are the disclosures  under this report   TGV SRAAC  Ltd on a standalone basis

      made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for 

      the en�ty) or on a consolidated basis 

      (i.e. for the en�ty and  all the en��es 

      which form a part of its  consolidated 

      financial statements,  taken together).

14. Name of assurance provider   : Not Applicable

15. Type of assurance  Obtained      : NA

17. Products / Services sold by the En�ty (accoun�ng for 90% of the en�ty’s turnover)

Sl. 
No

Product / Service NIC Code % of Turnover contributed
2022‐23 2023‐24 2024‐25

(more than10%) (more than10%) (more than10%)

1

2.

3.

Caus�c Soda 
Lye/ Flakes

Caus�c Potash 
Lye/Flakes

Methyl Chloride

Total Turnover (Rs.in Cr.)

28151110/
288151200

28152000

29031200

55.4

15

13

2708.08

58

17

12

1792

61

14

13

2026

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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18. Number of loca�ons where plants and/or opera�ons/offices of the en�ty are situated

Loca�on
Na�onal

Number of plants
03

Number of offices

01

 Total
04

1. Gondiparla, Kurnool –   
518 004 (A.P).

2.Wind Farm Ramagiri,  
Anantapur Dist. (A.P)

3. Bellary Power Plant : 
Tagginabudihalli, 
Bellary, Karnataka.

nd40-304, 2  Floor, 
Krishna Jyothsna 
complex, Bhagyanagar

Kurnool 518004.

Interna�onal NIL

19. Markets Served By The En�ty

A.   Number of Loca�ons

Loca�ons               Number
Na�onal (No. of States)     20
Interna�onal (No. of Countries)    15

B.   What is the contribu�on of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the en�ty ?

5.51%

C.   Brief on types of customers 

The company's products are industrial inputs and hence majority of customers are 
industrial units. The company hence operates a B2B marke�ng directly to its industrial 
customers and marke�ng and through traders for other customers  

IV. Employees

20. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

Sl.
No

Par�culars Total
(A)

Male
No. (B) No. (B)% (B/A) % (B/A)

Female

EMPLOYEES

Workers

1.
2.
3.

Permanent (D)
Other than Permanent (E)
Total employees (D + E)

804
‐‐‐‐
804

804
‐‐‐‐
804

  100%
‐‐‐‐‐

  100%

‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐

‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐

1.
2.
3.

Permanent (F)
Other than Permanent (G)
Total employees (F + G)

248
   0

1052

248
   0

1052

  100%
‐‐‐‐‐

  100%

‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐

‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐

III.   Opera�ons

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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b. Differently abled Employees and workers :

DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS

1.
2.
3.

Permanent (D)
Other than Permanent (E)
Total employees(D + E)

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

1.
2.
3.

Permanent (F)
Other than Permanent (G)
Total employees (F + G)

21. Par�cipa�on / Inclusion / Representa�on Of Women

22. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers

No. (B) % (B/A)

No. and percentage of Females

Board of Directors
Key Management Personnel

3
NIL

06
18

50%
NIL

Total (A)

Permanent Employees
Permanent Workers

FY2023‐24 FY2024‐25
Female FemaleMale MaleTotal Total

0.095
0.052

0.011
0.025

0.095
0.052

0.011    
0.025

Note: Retainers turnover rate not taken

V – HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES (INCLUDING JOINT VENTURES)

23. NAMES OF HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

The Company is not having any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies as on 
31.03.2025

VI – CSR DETAILS

24. WHETHER CSR IS APPLICABLE AS PER SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: Yes

a. Turnover – INR 2026 Crores

b. Net Worth –

Net worth of the company

TGV SRAAC Ltd

2022‐23

1046.58

2023‐24

1095.8

2024‐25

1178.25

Sl.
No

Par�culars Total
(A)

Male
No. (B) No. (B)% (B/A) % (B/A)

Female

DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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VII‐  TRANSPARENCY AND DISCLOSURES COMPLIANCES

25. COMPLAINTS/ GRIEVANCES ON ANY OF THE PRINCIPLES (PRINCIPLES 1 TO 9) 

UNDER  THE NATIONAL GUIDELINES ON RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS CONDUCTz

Stakeholder 

group from 

whom 

complaint is 

received

Grievance   
Redressal 
Mechanism in 
Place (Yes/No)
(If Yes, then 
provide web‐link 
for grievance 
redress policy)

Number of 

complaints 

filed 

during the 

year

FY 2023‐24

Previous Financial Year
FY2024‐25

Current Financial Year

R
e
m
a
r
k
s

R
e
m
a
r
k
s

Number of 

complaints 

pending 

resolu�on 

at close of 

the year

Number of 

complaints 

filed 

during the 

year

Number of 

complaints 

pending 

resolu�on

at close of 

the year

Communi�es Yes
Grievance redressal 
for community

NIL NIL NIL NIL‐ ‐

Investors/

shareholders

Employees and 

Workers

Customers

Yes
Grievance redressal 
for Investors

Yes
Grievance redressal 
for Investors

Yes
Grievance redressal 
for Investors

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

Value Chain 

partners 

(vendors)

Other 

(please specify)

Yes
Grievance redressal 
for Value Chain 
Partners

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

‐

‐

‐

‐
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26. Overview of the en�ty's material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to 

environmental and social ma�ers that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, ra�onale 

for iden�fying the same, approach to adapt or mi�gate the risk along‐with its financial 

implica�ons, as per the following format. 

Material issue 

iden�fied

SL.

No

Indicate whether 

risk or opportunity 

(R/O)

Ra�onale for 

iden�fying the 

risk/ 

opportunity

In case of risk, 

approach to 

adapt or 

mi�gate

Financial 

implica�ons of 

the risk or 

opportunity 

(Indicate 

posi�ve or 

nega�ve 

implica�ons)

1.

2.

3.

4.

Interna�onal 

Market 

Vola�lity

Market 

changes 

affec�ng 

Chlorine 

demand 

Climate 

Change 

affec�ng Raw 

material 

supplies

ESG 

compliances

Risk

Risk

Ra�onale is 
based on the 

impact 
iden�fied as per 
the materiality 

Risk Policy

Risk 
Management 

Policy

Shortage in 
supply of raw 

materials

Risk: ESG 
regula�ons & 
Stake holder 
Expecta�ons 
Opportunity: 

Increased 
Efficiency and 

goodwill

Diversify 

markets

Increasing 

produc�on 

capacity of 

Chlorine 

deriva�ves

Iden�fy other 

suppliers of raw 

material

Prac�ces for 

enhanced ESG 

performance

Nega�ve

Nega�ve

Risk

Risk/ Opportunity

Nega�ve

Nega�ve in 

Short term and  

posi�ve in Long 

term
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES 

This sec�on is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes 

put in place towards adop�ng the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements ‐YES

Disclosure Ques�ons P‐1 P‐2 P‐3 P‐4 P‐5 P‐6 P‐7 P‐8 P‐9

Policy and management processes

1. a. Whether your en�ty's policy/

         policies cover each principle 

         and its core elements of the 

         NGRBCs. (Yes)

Y Y Y YY Y Y Y Y

1. b. Has the policy been 

        approved by the Board? 

        (Yes/No)

Yes
All the policies have been approved by the Board

1. c. Web Link of the Policies, 

        if available
BRSR Policy– Overall Policy

Vigil Mechanism Policy – Principle 1

Confiden�ality Policy – Principle 1

Indiscrimina�on Policy – Principle 3

Stakeholder Policy – Principle 4

An�‐Sexual Harassment Policy–Principle 5

Human Rights Policy – Principle 5

An�‐Harassment Policy – Principle 5

Corporate Social Responsibility

Risk Management Policy

ANNEXURE –I (add each policy web link)

All the web links of the policies pertaining to NGRBC 
principles are provided in the annexure ‐I

2. Whether the en�ty has translated

    the policy into procedures.(Yes /No)

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to 

    your value chain partners? (Yes/No) 

Yes

All the policies have procedures for implementa�on

Yes. The company extends its quality, safety and 

Human Rights policy to its value chain partners

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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The Company has the following cer�fica�ons which 
reflect the company's governance and systems 
adhering to the principles of NGRBC

a) ISO 9001:2015
b) ISO 14001:2015
c) OHSAS 1SO:45001:2018 compliant cer�fied by   
    DNV
d) RSPO Supply Chain Cer�fica�on Standard
e) BIS (Bureau of Indian Standards) for Caus�c soda 

and Chloromethanes 

The principle wise commitments, goals and targets of 
TGVSRAAC are defined and stated for the FY2024‐25 
as presented in Annexure –II.
Goals and Targets

The company's goals and targets are defined based on 

the nature of the industry.

The company has achieved the targets set for the 
year. The performance of the company against each 
principle is stated in Annexure III.

performance indicators against specific commitments

4.  Name of  the  na�onal  and 

i n t e r n a � o n a l  c o d e s / 

cer�fica�ons/ labels/ standards 

(e.g. Forest Stewardship Council, 

Fair trade, Rainforest Alliance, 

Trustee) standards (e.g. SA 8000, 

OHSAS, ISO, BIS) adopted by 

your en�ty and mapped to each 

principle.

5. Specific commitments, goals and 
targets set by the en�ty with 
defined �me lines, if any.

TGVSRAAC is driven by the philosophy of achieving  
growth with sustainability. The company's founda�on 
rests on the pillars of trust, transparency and value 
crea�on leading to sustained stakeholder rela�onships. 

The Company is commi�ed to provide a safe and 
healthy working environment for its employees. The 
company has been instrumental in the development of 
the region through employment genera�on and 
impac�ul CSR. The company's bipolar membrane 
technology is a step in the direc�on of sustainable 
produc�on and opera�ons. The company generates 
solar energy as a clean energy ini�a�ve. The 
environmental prac�ces adopted by the company is a 
tes�mony to its commitment to environmental 
protec�on 

7. S tatement by Director responsible 
for thebusiness responsibility 
report, highligh�ng ESG related 
c h a l l e n g e s ,  t a r g e t s  a n d 
achievements (listed en�ty has 
flexibility regarding the placement 
of this disclosure)

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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6. Performance of the en�ty against 
the specific commitments, goals 
and targets along‐with reasons in 
case the same are not met.



The company has embarked on the journey to integrate 
ESG into the organiza�on culture and governance. It 
aims to achieve consistent ESG performance through a 
goal oriented approach.

CA. K. Karunakar Rao

Execu�ve Director  & CEO

8. Details of the highest authority 
responsible for implementa�on 
and oversight of the Business 
Responsibility policy (ies)

9. Does the en�ty have a specified Commi�ee of the Board/ Director responsible for decision 
making on sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide details.

The commi�ee comprises of the following Members: 

S.No Name Designa�on Contact Number

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

K. Karunakar Rao

N. Jeswantha Reddy

C. Srinivasa Babu

P. Raghavendra Reddy

C. RajeshKhanna

V. Radhakrishna Murthy

G.V.R.S. Sastry

V. Muralidhar

B.B.Gantayat

E.D(F&C)/C.E.O

E.D(Tech.)

E.D(Tech.)

V.P(Q.A)

V.P (Fin & Accts)

C.G.M & Company Secretary 

C.G.M (Mech.) /M.R

G.M(Q. A)

Sr.G.M(Safety)

9848076501 

9848076507 

9848408419 

9848079064 

9848145181 

9848961239 

6303801195

9848081519

9948646468 

Indicate whether review was 

undertaken by Director/  

Commi�ee of the Board /Any 

other Commi�ee

Subject for Review

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:       

Frequency (Annually / Half‐

yearly / Quarterly/ Any 

other – please specify)

The performance of the 

policies is undertaken by the 

Board, Department Heads 

a n d  b y  t h e  r e l e v a n t 

commi�ees 

Performance against above 

policies and follow up ac�on

The review is undertaken 

Annually or as and when the 

need arises

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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sraacengg@tgvmail.net

srinivasbabu@tgvmail.net

sraaclab@tgvmail.net

csdgmf@tgvmail.net

cssraac@tgvmail.net

mrsraac@tgvmail.net

muralilab@tgvmail.net

gantayat@tgvmail.net

 E‐mail Id



The policies are in conformance 

to the prevai l ing statutory 

requirements

The performance of the policies is evaluated through the 

internal audit of the company. An external vendor audit by 
rdUnilever through 3  party inspec�on agency like DNV/ 

SGS etc. assesses the policy framework and its 

implementa�on.

ALL PRINCIPLES ARE COVERED UNDER THE POLICIES

Compliance  with statutory 

requirements of relevance to 

t h e  p r i n c i p l e s ,  a n d , 

rec�fica�on of  any non‐

compliances

11. Has the en�ty carried out 

independent assessment/ 

evalua�on of the working of 

its policies by an external 

agency? (Yes/No). If yes, 

provide name of the agency.

12. If answer to ques�on (1) above 

is “No” i.e. not all Principles 

are covered by a policy, 

reasons to be stated: 

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE 

This sec�on is aimed at helping en��es demonstrate their performance in integra�ng the 
Principles and Core Elements with key processes and decisions. The informa�on sought is 
categorized as “Essen�al” and “Leadership”. While the essen�al indicators are expected to 
be disclosed by every en�ty that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may 
be voluntarily disclosed by en��es which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to 
be socially, environmentally, and ethically responsible.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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PRINCIPLE 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and ina 
manner that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable. 

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1.   Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the principles 
during the financial year:

Segment 

Board of Directors 02 Familiariza�on Programme

Total number of 
training and  
awareness 

programmes held

Topics / principles
covered under the training 

and  its impact

% age of persons in 
respec�ve category  

covered by the  
awareness programmes

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

90%

90%

80%

Key Managerial  

Personnel

128 Safety and related areas

ESG and sustainability repor�ng

Management Related

Employees and 
workers(other 
than  BoD and 
KMPs)

178 Safety and related areas

Environment related

Work related procedures

Management related training
 for employees

2.   Details of fines / penal�es /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ se�lement amount  paid 

in proceedings (by the en�ty or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law  enforcement 

agencies/ judicial ins�tu�ons, in the financial year, in the following format  (Note: the en�ty 

shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regula�on 30  of SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and as disclosed on  the en�ty's 

website):.
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3.  Of the instances disclosed in Ques�on 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in    

cases where monetary or non‐monetary ac�on has been appealed.

Not Applicable

4.   Does the en�ty have an an�‐corrup�on or an�‐bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and 

if available, provide a web‐link to the policy.  Yes

The Company has An� Bribery Policy. The Company has also adopted a Whistle blower Policy and 

Vigil Mechanism to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors, employees and other external 

stakeholders to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 

viola�on of the Company's Code of Conduct. The company has established an Ethics and 

compliance task force to process and inves�gate protected disclosures.

An� Bribery Policy

NGRBC 

PRINCIPLE

Amount 

(inr)

Brief Of 

The Case
Has An Appeal 

Been Preferred 

(yes/no)?

Name Of The 
Regulatory/
Enforcement

 Agencies/ 
Judicial 

Ins�tutes

Penalty/ Fine

Se�lement

Compounding  
fee

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

No

No

No

‐

‐

‐

MONETARY

NON –MONETARY

NGRBC 

PRINCIPLE

Amount 

(inr)

Brief Of 

The Case
Has An Appeal 

Been Preferred 

(yes/no)?

Name Of The 
Regulatory/
Enforcement

 Agencies/ 
Judicial 

Ins�tutes

Imprisonment

Punishment

No

No

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

No

No
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5.   Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary ac�on was taken 

by any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corrup�on:

Directors

KMPs

Employees 

Workers

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

6.   Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

Par�culars
FY2023‐24 

Number NumberRemarks Remarks
FY 2024‐25

Number of complaints received in rela�on
to issues of Conflict of Interest of the Directors

Number of complaints received in rela�on to 
issues of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

7.    Provide details of any correc�ve ac�on taken or underway on issues related to fines / penal�es 
/ ac�on taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial ins�tu�ons, on cases of 
corrup�on and conflicts of interest.

Not applicable as there are no complaints received with regard to the issues men�oned above

8.  Number of days of accounts payables ((Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods/services 
procured) in the following format:

       FY 2023‐24  FY 2024‐25

Number of days of accounts payables                            43                                        74

9. Open‐ness of business

Provide details of concentra�on of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related 

par�es along‐with loans and advances & investments, with related par�es, in the following format: 
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Parameter

Concentra�on 

of Purchases

Metrics

a.   Purchases from trading houses 
as % of total purchases

b.    Number of trading house where 
purchases are made from

FY 2023‐24 

The company 
procures majorly 
from manufacturers

NA

The company 
procures majorly 
from manufacturers

NA

FY 2024‐25

c.    Purchases from top 10 trading 
houses as % of total purchases 
from trading houses

NA NA

Concentra�on 

of Sales

Share of 
RPTs in

a.   Sales to dealers/ distributors as % 
of total sales

54.79% 50.80%

b.   Number of dealers / distributors 
to whom sales are made

693 699

c .  S a l e s  t o  t o p  1 0  d e a l e rs / 

distributors  as % of total sales 
to dealers / distributors

13.09% 13.98%

a.   Purchases  (Purchases with 
related par�es / Total  
Purchases

b.    Sales (Sales to related par�es / 

Total Sales)

0.6%

1.04%

0.8%

1.54%

c.    Loans & advances (Loans & 
advances given to related 
par�es / Total loans & 
advances)

NIL NIL

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1.    AWARENESS PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED FOR VALUE CHAIN PARTNERS ON ANY OF THE 
PRINCIPLES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The company has provided training programs to 01 industrial customers on safe handling of 
chlorine. The training covers Principles 2, 3 and 6 of NGRBC.

       The company provides awareness on quality, environment, and safety to the suppliers during the 
pre‐audit stage of the vendor audits conducted.
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2.  Does the en�ty have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving 
members of the Board? (Yes/No) If yes, provide details of the same.

    Yes, the company's Code of Conduct for Directors outlines the principles of confiden�ality, 
disclosure of interests and the conduct to avoid /manage conflict of interests.

PRINCIPLE 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services in a  manner that is sustainable and 
safe.

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1.   Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies 
to improve the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D 
and capex investments made by the en�ty, respec�vely.

Previous Financial  

Year2023‐24

R&D 

Expenditure

Current Financial

 Year 2024‐25

(100%)

Rs.11.47 Lakhs

Details of improvements in 

environmental social impacts

The R&D expenditure is incurred 
towards.

  R&D Studies on Reduc�on of 
impuri�es from Chloroform to 
reduce bromo‐chlormethane by 
adjus�ng exis�ng dis�lla�on 
columns.

 Experiments on U�liza�on of 
100% ERP rejects by reducing 
lodine and TOC, in Associa�on 
with IICT, Hyderabad and Pilot 
plant trails are in progress.

(100%)

Rs. 13.49 Lakhs

CAPEX 17.81 % Towards increasing the capacity of  
solar power Plant to 37.9 MW by 
Installing addi�onal 15.15 MW to 
exis�ng 22.75 MW Solar Power Plant.

1.13%
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b.   If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced  sustainably?

The company conducts vendor audit for five of its major suppliers which cons�tutes 
approximately 65% of the inputs.

3.  Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and 
disposing at the end of life, for (a) Plas�cs (including packaging) (b) E‐waste (c) Hazardous waste 
and (d) other waste.

(a) Plas�cs (including    

packaging)

(b) E‐waste

(c) Hazardous waste

(d) other waste

The Solid waste from each department is collected and 

segregated plas�c will be sold to recyclers.

E‐ waste from the factory premises is collected and stored in 

a designated room and dispose it to authorized Recyclers

HAZARDOUS WASTE DISPOSAL

The hazardous waste Brine sludge (process solid waste) is 
disposed to company's own secured landfill within the 
premises and no hazardous waste is stored in the site for 
more than 90 days. The spent sulphuric acid is sold as bye 
product .

EFFLUENT TREATMENT PLANT 

The company treats the effluents in the ETP through 

chemical precipita�on, primary filtra�on, ultra‐filtra�on 

and two RO Plants. The Permeate quan�ty is recycled into 

the process and the rejects are used for brine make up 

purpose for chlor‐ alkali division. 

Treated water from domes�c, castor oil and Fa�y acid plant 

water is u�lized for greenbelt development within the 

company premises.

Sodium Sulphate Recovery: The sodium sulphate recovered 

from Brine using Nano filtra�on is sold as a product.

4.   Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the en�ty's ac�vi�es (Yes / 
No).If yes, whether the waste collec�on plan is in line with the Extended Producer 
Responsibility (EPR) plan submi�ed to Pollu�on Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to 
address the same.

Yes EPR is applicable to the en�ty and is implemented according to EPR rules
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LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1.   Has the en�ty conducted Life Cycle Perspec�ve / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for 

manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the 

following format?

NIC Code Name of 
Product
/Service

% of total 

Turnover 

contributed

Boundary for
 which the Life 

Cycle 
Perspec�ve 

/Assessment 
was conducted

Whether 
conducted by 
independent 

external agency
(Yes/No)

Results 
communicated 

in public 
domain(Yes/No)

If yes, 
provide the 

web‐link.

20111

20119

20119

20111

20119

20119

20119

20119

20119

20119

20112

Liquid Chlorine

Caus�c Soda Lye/ Flakes

Potassium Hydroxide

Hydrogen gas

Bleach Liquor / Sodium 

Hypo chlorite

Sodium Sulphate

Methyl Chloride

Methylene Chloride

Chloroform

Carbon tetra chloride

Hydrochloric Acid

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Cradle to Grave

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

2.   If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from 
produc�on or disposal of your products / services, as iden�fied in the Life Cycle 
Perspec�ve / Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly describe the same 
along‐with ac�on taken to mi�gate the same.

Name of the 

product /service

Descrip�on of 

Risk / concern

Ac�on Taken

Methanol Fossil  resources
consump�on, Air 
pollu�on, Resources  
loss & Ground 
contamina�on

Efforts are made to procure in higher 

capacity tankers so that large quan�ty is 

transported at once instead of mul�ple trips 

to conserve the natural resources.
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Name of the 

product /service

Descrip�on of 

Risk / concern

Ac�on Taken

Methyl 

Chloride& 

chloroform

Hydrochloric 

Acid

Ground 

contamina�on/Air 

pollu�on

Resources 

consump�on Air 

pollu�on&Ground 

contamina�on

Storage tanks are provided with dyke walls 

to contain any accidental leaks. Soundness 

of storage tanks is tested periodically and 

monitored.

Vent gas Condensor are provided to 
condense the fumes which are generated 
from storage tank to prevent air pollu�on.

Fire hydrant sprinkling system is installed to 
deal with any fire emergency

VOC monitors are installed to detect any 

Methyl chloride leak in order to take 

correc�ve ac�on.  

Storage tanks are provided with dyke walls 

to contain any accidental leaks. Soundness 

of storage tanks is tested periodically and 

monitored.

The engineering design and advanced 

processed technologies are adopted by TGV 

SRAAC to reduce the discharge / Minimize 

genera�on and discharge of pollutants.

3.   Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in produc�on 
(for manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

No, and recycled or reused input materials are used in produc�on

4.   Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) 
reused, recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:  

TGV SRAAC advises to indigenous customers to dispose plas�c Packings “Plas�c Waste 
Management Rules 2016” published in Part II, sec�on No. 3 Subsec�on (i) of Govt. of India 
gaze�e by Ministry of Environment,  Forests  and Climate Change.  

 This is no�fied to customers on invoices and the procedure is uploaded on our website 
:www.tgvgroup.com

5.   Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each 
product category.

TGV SRAAC advises all customers to dispose the unu�lized/le� over material as per MSDS
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1.   C. Spending on measures towards well‐being of employees and workers (including 
permanent and other than permanent) in the following format –

        FY 2023‐24   FY 2024‐25

Cost incurred on well‐being measures as a %                                                                                       

of total revenue of the company      0.288%                                 0.31%

Welfare         0.326%                                 0.29%

FY 2023‐24
Previous Financial Year

FY 2024‐25

Current Financial Year
Benefits

No. of  
employees  
covered as  

a % of  total  
employees 

No. of  
workers

covered  as 
a % of  total

workers 

No. of  
workers

covered  as 
a % of  total

workers 

Deducted  
and 

deposited  
with the  
authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)

Deducted  
and 

deposited  
with the  
authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)

No. of

employees

covered as

a % of  total

employees

 100% 
permanent 
employees 

covered

 100% 
permanent 
employees 

covered

 100% 
permanent 

workers
covered

 100% 
permanent 

workers
covered

Yes

Yes Yes

Yes

ESI

Gratuity‐ defined 

benefit plan with 

LIC

 100% 

–‐‐ 23.3% Yes Nil 47.17%  Yes

 100%  100%  100% 

2.    Details of re�rement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year

3.   Accessibility of workplaces: Are the premises/ offices of the en�ty accessible to differently 
abled employees and workers, as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons with 
Disabili�es Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken by the en�ty in this regard.

The company's offices are equipped with facili�es for differently abled employees which include 
RAMPS, Wheelchairs and Li�s.  The company's Indiscrimina�on policy providing equal 
opportunity for all, is inclusive in its approach. The company is prepared to make available the 
required facili�es in the event of differently abled workers/ employees joining the company.

4.   Does the en�ty have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabili�es 
Act, 2016? If so, provide a web‐link to the policy.  

Yes. The company has an Indiscrimina�on policy providing fair and equal opportunity for all 
including the differently abled

h�ps://drive.google.com/file/d/1w3i9S3h6q9YoRiI8LMlQ�X0qgcsAKOY/view?usp=share_link
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5.    Return to work and Reten�on rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental 

leave. 

The company does not have parental leave policy

6.    Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of 

employees and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief) 

Permanent Workers

Other than Permanent Workers

Permanent Employees

Other than Permanent 
Employees

The company has grievance redressal policy and procedure in 

place for handling of the grievances of the employees in a 

prompt and fair manner. The Disciplinary and Grievance 

redressal Commi�ee is (DGRC) is cons�tuted to inves�gate 

into the grievance and ensure resolu�on of the same within 

45 days.

h�ps://drive.google.com/file/d/1Wa9JDRBP8PI9GRwaoX0

42950Fm3_YyU6/view?usp=share_link

7.  Membership of employees and worker in associa�on(s) or Unions recognized by the  listed 
en�ty

The leadership and governance of the organiza�on has promoted a culture of harmonious work 
environment. There is no trade union in the company and no employee or worker is a member of 
any trade union

8.   Details of Training given to employees and workers :

FY 2023‐2024

Total 

(D)

On Health and 
Safety Measures

On Skill 

Upgrada�on

No. (E) No. (F)% (E /  D)  % (F / D)

804 632 78.6% 35 4.35% 

804 632 78.6% 35 5.15% 

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

248 235 94.75% 37 14.91% 

248 235 98.75% 37 14.91% 

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

FY 2022 ‐ 23

Total 

(A)

On Health and 
Safety Measures

On Skill 

Upgrada�on

No. (B) No. (C)% (B /  A)  % (C / A)

740 

NIL

740

215 

‐

215

29.05% 

‐

525 

525 

‐

71% 

71% 

‐

29.05% 

Employees

272 

NIL

272

221 

‐

221

81.25

‐

52

52

‐

19.12% 

19.12% 

‐

81.25% 

Category

Male

Female

Total

Male

Female

Total

Workers 
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9.   Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker: 

The company conducts an annual review of the performance of the employees. The performance 
assessment is undertaken by the supervisors/managers of the respec�ve units through regular 
monitoring and observa�on. 

10. Health and safety management system 

a.  Whether an occupa�onal health and safety management system has been implemented 
by the en�ty? 

The Safety & Health Management system covers ac�vi�es across all manufacturing loca�ons and 
offices ensuring the protec�on of environment and health & safety of its employees and relevant 
stakeholders. 

b. What are the processes used to iden�fy work‐related hazards and assess risks on a 
rou�ne and non‐rou�ne basis by the en�ty? 

1.  Processes adopted to iden�fy work related hazards 

SAFETY AUDIT: The Safety Audit is carried out annually for the en�re plant and other 
requirements of facili�es in line with the requirements of IS‐14489 under the following elements 
as per the statutory requirements. 

i) Physical Hazard 

ii) Chemical Hazard 

iii) Fire & Explosion Hazard etc. 

Area wise recommenda�ons are implemented and submi�ed to the statutory authori�es. 

SAFETY INSPECTION BY SAFETY DEPT: Safety Inspec�on is carried out periodically by safety 
departmental personnel and recommenda�ons are implemented. 

SAFETY OBSERVATION AND INTERACTION: Safety Observa�on is a planned pro‐ac�ve two ways 
safety Interac�on process with people at their work place to achieve posi�ve change in people's 
behavior towards safety in order to : i) Recognize& reinforce safety behavior ii)Iden�fy and correct at 
risk behavior iii) Engage people in interac�on regarding safety issues iv)All Unsafe acts and condi�ons 
encountered at work place must be addressed and acted on immediately. 

WORK PERMIT: In order to minimize the poten�al for harm to people and damage to environment& 
equipment during opera�ons, maintenance, construc�on and other ac�vi�es, PTW leads to ensuring 
the correct controls and safety precau�ons are in place. 

HAZOP STUDY: All Hazards & Risks due to manufacturing facili�es are properly iden�fied and 
necessary risk reduc�on measures are implemented. 
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2.    Processes for assessment of risk on rou�ne and non ‐ rou�ne basis 

WORK PERMIT: 

I)    In order to minimize the poten�al for harm to people and damage to environment & 
equipment during opera�ons, maintenance, construc�on and other ac�vi�es, PTW leads to 
ensuring the correct controls and safety precau�ons are in place. 

II)    All work ac�vi�es are risk assessed and adequate controls are in place so that works are 
completed in a controlled, safe manner and without incidents 

III) Applies to ac�vi�es including maintenance (Rou�ne and Non‐Rou�ne), Construc�on, 
demoli�on and non‐rou�ne process opera�ons. 

HIRA (HAZARD IDENTIFICATION & RISK ASSESSMENT): DEPARTMENT WISE 

c.   Whether you have processes for workers to report the work‐related hazards and to remove 
them selves from such risks. (Y/N) 

YES. .

Processes for repor�ng work related hazards 

SAFETY COMMITTEE: 

I.    The Commi�ee is headed by E.D. (Tech) as the Chairman and Sr.GM (Safety) is the Secretary. 

II.  The Safety Commi�ee meets in every month. 

III. The Safety commi�ee members are cons�tuted by equal representa�ves from the 
management and workforce category. 

IV.  Topics pertaining to unsafe acts and unsafe condi�ons are discussed in the mee�ng. 

V.   The Safety commi�ee recommenda�ons are implemented as early as possible. 

SAFETY OBSERVATION AND INTERACTION: Safety Observa�on is a planned pro‐ac�ve two ways 
safety Interac�on process with people at their work place to achieve posi�ve change in people's 
behavior towards safety in order to: i) Recognize & reinforce safety behavior ii) Iden�fy and correct at 
risk behavior iii) Engage people in interac�on regarding safety issues iv) All Unsafe acts and condi�ons 
encountered at work place must be addressed and acted on immediately. 

SUGGESTION SCHEME: Sugges�on scheme has been introduced to encourage the workers to give 
their sugges�ons for improvement of safety. Sugges�on boxes has been kept at appropriate 
loca�ons. The sugges�on report may be sent to the respec�ve departmental heads for their 
comments and approval. 

d.  Do the employees/ worker of the en�ty have access to non‐occupa�onal medical and 
healthcare services? 

YES 

The group company operates a mul�‐specialty hospital with modern and advanced facili�es. It 
offers medical services at subsidized charges. 
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11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format: 

Safety Incident/Number 

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) 
(per one million‐person hours worked) 

Total recordable work‐related injuries 

No. of fatali�es 

High consequence work‐related injury 
or ill‐health (excluding fatali�es) 

Category 

Employees 

Employees 

Employees 

Employees 

Workers 

Workers 

Workers 

Workers 

FY 2023‐24 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

FY 2024‐25 

12. Describe the measures taken by the en�ty to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

To ensure 100% safety and pollu�on control, the company is taking all possible preven�ve and 

proac�ve steps with the help of subject experts and outside agencies and periodical review of 

related commi�ees for improvement of procedures enunciated in policies for achievement of 

desired objec�ves. The company has been awarded ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 & ISO 

45001:2018 Cer�fica�on by renowned Ins�tu�on DNV. It implies that the company is adhering to 

standard procedures to ensure pollu�on control, balance and implementa�on of safety related 

aspects. Senior level management officer with exposure and experience in these aspects is 

entrusted with the responsibility to ensure every minute safety and preserva�on of 

environmental ecology. To ensure safety related aspects awareness among all related 

stakeholders, and equip the staff with innova�ve and new technologies and equipment, regular 

mock drills and exercises were conducted and concerned technical commi�ees hold regular 

mee�ngs periodically to review and ensure full proof execu�on of plans and procedures for be�er 

results in these ma�ers. Further the company is complying with all statutory and non‐ statutory 

provisions rela�ng to safety

13.  Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers

FY  2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

Filed 
during 

the year

Pending  
resolu�on 
at the end 

of year

Remarks Filed 
during 

the year

Pending  
resolu�on 
at the end 

of year

Remarks

Working Condi�ons Nil Nil ‐‐ NilNil

Nil Nil ‐‐ NilNilHealth & Safety
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14.  Assessments for the year

% of your plants and offices that were assessed 
(by en�ty or statutory authori�es or third par�es)

100%

100%

Health and safety prac�ces

Working Condi�ons

15. Provide details of any correc�ve ac�on taken or underway to address safety‐related incidents 
(if any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety prac�ces 
and working condi�ons.

All incidents are inves�gated by the safety team. All cri�cal factors involved in an incident are 
determined through root cause analysis & inves�ga�on and correc�ve / preven�ve ac�ons are 
iden�fied to prevent recurrence. The detailed inves�ga�on and root causes iden�fied by the 
safety team are reviewed by the Senior Management. 

Incident Reports in Form No. 16 of ESI Act and Form 18 of AP factories rules are being maintained 
and perused for capturing incidents, such as, property damage and physical injury.  It was 
observed that even near misses or no injury incidences are documented for pro‐ac�ve preven�on 
of serious poten�al incidents and these to be inves�gated to the root cause. Also, the recorded 
inves�ga�on results are to be analyzed by adop�ng a quality tool to know the root cause and 
trends may be generated for easy reference and for ini�a�ng further ac�on, to avoid recurrence.  
All the required formats for accident repor�ng are being maintained.

1.    Does the en�ty extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of 
(A) Employees (Y/N) (B) Workers (Y/N).

Yes. The company extends the EDLI scheme to all its permanent employees and workers.

2.  Provide the measures undertaken by the en�ty to ensure that statutory dues have been 
deducted and deposited by the value chain partners.

The Company monitors remi�ance of statutory dues by value chain partners as part of processing 
their bills on a regular basis.

3.   Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work related 
injury / ill‐health / fatali�es ,  who have been are rehabilitated and placed in suitable 
employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

Total number of employees & 
workers that are rehabilitated and 
placed in suitable employment or 

whose family members are 
placed in suitable employment

1052

Employees & 

workers
Total number of affected 

employees & workers

FY  2023‐24 FY  2024‐25

Nil Nil

FY  2023‐24 FY  2024‐25

Nil Nil
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4.    Does the en�ty provide transi�on assistance programs to facilitate con�nued employability and 
the management of career endings resul�ng from re�rement or termina�on of employment? – 
NOT APPLICABLE

5.    Details on assessment of value chain partners:

The company has ini�ated the audit of value chain partners which includes suppliers and 
customers. The scope of the vendor (supplier) audit includes quality, safety, and human rights 
aspects.

6.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway to address significant risks / 
concerns arising from assessments of health and safety prac�ces and working condi�ons of 
value chain partners – OHSAS Report

No Significant concerns were observed

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders 

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1.   Describe the processes for iden�fying key stakeholder groups of the en�ty.

The company iden�fies its key stakeholders, on the basis of the degree of impact of the    
stakeholder on the company's ac�vi�es, opera�ons, profitability and growth. The internal and 
the external processes together help in iden�fying the key stakeholder. The key stakeholders of 
the company are the Government and the Regulatory bodies, Customers, Investors and the 
community.

2.   List stakeholder groups iden�fied as key for your en�ty and the frequency of engagement with  
each stakeholder group

Stakeholder 
group

Whether 
iden�fied as 

vulnerable and 
marginalized 

group Y/N

Channels of communica�on
Email,SMS, Newspaper,

 pamphlets , advt, 
community mee�ngs, 

no�ce board, website ,other

Frequency of 
engagement‐
annual, half 

yearly, quarterly 
,others

Purpose and scope of 

engagement. Key topics

 and concerns raised 

during such engagement

Employees N Mee�ngs and Emails
Training programmes 
& workshops 
Par�cipa�ve 
engagement
Grievance Redressal

Regular Employee wellbeing 
 skill development 
Health & Safety
Rewards and 
recogni�ons

Employee sa�sfac�on
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Suppliers

Community

Government 

and regulatory 

bodies

N

Y

N

Mee�ngs and Emails
Plant visit

Interac�ons during the 

course of business

CSR projects and 

ac�vi�es 

Interac�ons by the 

CSR Team 

Direct and indirect 
interac�on
Inspec�on/ audit 

Statutory reports

Regular

Regular

Annual / 

Regular

Effec�ve supplier 
rela�onships
Regular 
communica�on and 
updates Training 

Social Responsibility 
Human resource 
Development 
through Health & 
educa�on Women 
Empowerment 

Regional 

development 

through 

employment and 

skill development 

Compliance 
Sound Corporate 
Governance 
Transparency

Shareholders 

and investors

Customers

N

N

Annual General 
Mee�ng Annual 
Report In forma�on 
through Website

Grievance redressal 

mechanism

Emails and mee�ngs
Customer feedback
Plant Visits

Grievance Redressal 

Mechanism

Annually

Regular

Performance and 
growth of the 
company 
Transparent 
communica�on

Investor rela�onships

Quality & Safety
Timely delivery of 
product and 
services

Customer 

rela�onship
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LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1.  Provide the processes for consulta�on between stakeholders and the Board on economic, 
environmental, and social topics or if consulta�on is delegated, how is feedback from such 
consulta�ons provided to the Board.

The Management of the Company interacts regularly with key stakeholders i.e. investors, 
government customers, suppliers, employees, etc. The Company has established mechanism for 
stakeholder engagement. Any concerns arising are reported to the Sustainability Commi�ee. The 
Commi�ee updates the Board on key issues and ini�ates necessary ac�on.

2. Whether stakeholder consulta�on is used to support the iden�fica�on and management of 
environmental, and social topics

YES. The mechanisms established for stakeholder engagement provide insights and inputs into 
the environmental and social concerns. Stakeholder consulta�on is an integral part of the 
company in planning and implementa�on of environmental and societal ac�vi�es. The 
materiality policy of the company helps in iden�fying key stakeholders and any material risk.

3.   Provide details of instances of engagement with, and ac�ons taken to, address the concerns of 
vulnerable/ marginalized stakeholder groups.

The company engages with the marginalized sec�ons as a part of its community engagement.

PRINCIPLE 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human rights

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1.   Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy 
(ies) of the en�ty, in the following format:

The company has a Human Rights policy and ensures no discrimina�on and Child labour in its 
factory and office. 
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Category Total 

(A)

Total 

(D)

FY 2023 ‐ 24 FY 2024‐25

Equal to
Minimum Wage

Equal to
Minimum Wage

More than
Minimum Wage

More than
Minimum Wage

No. (B) No. (E)No. (C) No. (F)% (B/A) % (E/D) % (C/A)  % (F/D)

3.    Details of remunera�on/salary/wages, in the following format: For 2024‐25

a.  Median remunera�on / wages:

FemaleMale

NumberNumber

03

18

783

248

Median remunera�on
/ salary/  wages of 
respec�ve category

Median remunera�on
/ salary/  wages of 
respec�ve category

Board of Directors (BoD)

Key Managerial  Personnel

Employees other  than BoD and  KMP*

Workers*

Rs.31,34,600

Rs.10,10,856

Rs.9,66,036

Rs.4,26,144

03

‐

‐

‐

Rs.61,500

‐

‐

‐

Permanent

Female Nil ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

Employees

Other Permanent

WORKERS

253

Nil

67

Nil

27%

Nil

186

Nil

73%

Nil

248

Nil

‐

Nil

0%

Nil

248

Nil

Male 695 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐695 100% 100%804 804

117 ‐ ‐ ‐‐ ‐117 100% 100%‐Male

Nil ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐Female

Male
Female

100%

Nil

*Note: Including retainers

2.   Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

b. Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the en�ty, in the following

Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages

FY 2023‐24

NA NA

FY 2024‐25

4.  Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Commi�ee) responsible for addressing human rights 
impacts or issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

Yes

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

114 Annual Report 2024-25



5.    Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.  

The mechanism to redress grievances related to human rights issues is stated in the Human 
rights policy h�ps://drive.google.com /file/d/ 1rnEjw_Fj61qWtobqF5HKiGBMyZmgc606 / view 
?usp=share_link

6.    Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers: 

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

Filed  
during 

the  year

Filed  
during 

the  year

Pending  
resolu�on  
at the  end 

of  year

Pending  
resolu�on  
at the  end 

of  year

Remarks Remarks

Sexual Harassment

Discrimina�on at work place

Child Labour 

Forced Labour / Involuntary Labour

Wages

Other human rights related issues

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

7.    Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on 

        and Redressal) Act, 2013 in the following format :

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

Total Complaints reported under sexual harassment on of 

women at workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 (POSH)

Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees / workers

Complaints on POSH upheld

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

8.  Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimina�on and 
harassment cases.

The An�‐discrimina�on and an�‐harassment policy and procedure clearly state the penal ac�on 
which would be taken in case of any harm or threat to the complainant.

Indiscrimina�on Policy

An�‐Sexual‐Harassment‐Policy

9.   Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts?  
(Yes/No)

No

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

115 Annual Report 2024-25



% OF YOUR PLANTS AND OFFICES THAT WERE ASSESSED (BY ENTITY OR STATUTORY 

AUTHORITIES OR THIRD PARTIES)

No Assessment of human rights issues is undertaken. However, the company has ensured no 

child labour and minimum wages.

11. Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway to address significant risks / 
concerns arising from the assessments at Ques�on 9 above

There has been no reported viola�on of human rights issue

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1.  Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing 
human rights grievances/complaints.  

No such grievances/complaints on Human Rights viola�ons 

2.    Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due‐diligence conducted. 

Not undertaken.

3.  Is the premise/office of the en�ty accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the 
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabili�es Act, 2016?

Most of our offices are accessible to Persons with Disability

4.   Details on assessment of value chain partners

The supplier code of the company ensures no child labour in the supplier's business opera�ons

5.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway to address significant risks / 
concerns arising from the assessments at Ques�on 4 above.

The risks are not being iden�fied as there is no formal assessment of the human rights by the 
value chain partners

10. ASSESMENTS FOR THE YEAR
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3.    Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format.

Parameter FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

Water drawn by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water

(ii) Groundwater

(iii) Third party water

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water

(v) Others(Sub‐Surface Water from the River)

Total volume of water drawn (in kiloliters)

 (i + ii + iii + iv + v)

Total volume of water drawn(in kiloliters)

Water  intensity  per  rupee  of

turnover (Water consumed /turnover)

‐

‐

‐

‐

17,64,410

17,64,410

17,64,410

0.00009846

‐

‐

‐

‐

18,19,331

18,19,331

18,19,331

0.00008979

Category FY 2023‐24 (KJ)

2422094839200

616152673775.59

81000000

3038328512975.59

169.54

FY 2024‐25(KJ)

2979064800000

3734337022296

156852000000

6870253822296

339.104

Total electricity consump�on (A)

Total fuel consump�on (B)

Energy consump�on through other sources (C) ‐ Solar

Total energy consump�on (A+B+C)

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover
(Total energy consump�on / turnover in rupees)

Note : Indicate if any independent assessment /evalua�on / assurance has been carried out by 
an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

2.   Does the en�ty have any sites / facili�es iden�fied as designated consumers (DCs) under the 
Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, 
disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have 
not been achieved, provide the remedial ac�on taken, if any.

Yes.

PRINCIPLE 6 : Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS.

1.  Details of total energy consump�on (in Joules or mul�ples) and energy intensity, in the following 
format:
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Note : Indicate if any independent assessment / evalua�on/ assurance has been carried out by an 
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

NO. We have carried out internally

4.   Has the en�ty implemented a mechanim for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its 
coverage and implementa�on.

Total effluent generated from different industrial opera�ons is es�mated to be 1600 KLD, which 
will be taken to the Effluent Treatment plant for treatment. The treated water shall be reused for 
process units and green belt development. There will be no discharge of treated/untreated waste 
water from the unit, and thus conforming to Zero Liquid Discharge from Chloro Alkali, 
Chloromethanes Plant and Co‐genera�on Thermal Power plant.

5.  Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the en�ty, in the  
following   format:

Parameter Please specify unit FY 2023‐24 FY 2024 ‐ 25

Nox

Sox

Par�culate ma�er (PM)

Others –please specify (HCL)

mg/Nm3

mg/Nm3

mg/Nm3

mg/Nm3

14.6

19.2

42.9

Nil

13.0

18.2

39.6

0.13

      Note : Indicate if any independent assessment /evalua�on/assurance has been carried out by an 
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. NO – Air emissions are directly 
reported through OEMS – Online Emission Monitoring Systems connected to CPCB server.

6.   Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in 
the following format:

Assessment is in progress 

Note : Indicate if any independent assessment / evalua�on / assurance has been carried out by an 
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.–Assurance has been carried out by 
external agency Sri Sai Manasa Nature Tech Pvt Ltd

7.   Does the en�ty have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then 
provide details.

We have commissioned totally 37.90 MW Solar Power genera�on and is in process of plans for 
installa�on of further capaci�es of solar power to reduce greenhouse gases.
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8.    Provide details related to waste management by the en�ty, in the following format:

Category of waste

( )   Recycled

(ii)  Re‐used

(iii) Other recovery opera�ons

Total

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

NA

NA

1365

1365

955.919 MT

583200 (KL)

1989.9 MT

586,145.819

Parameter FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

Total Waste generated (in metric tons)

Plas�c waste (A)

E‐waste (B)

Bio‐medical waste (  )

Construc�on and demoli�on waste (D)

Ba�ery waste (E)

Radioac�ve waste (F)

Other Hazardous waste. Pleases pecify, if any
(Brine Sludge)(G)

70.86

2.704

0.0166

‐

6.86

NIL

3472

‐

3552.44

0.0000002005

0.00004441

‐

‐

955.919

2.74

0.0152

‐

5.87

NIL

4133

‐

5097.5442

0.0000002516

0.000005198

‐

‐

Other Non‐hazardous waste generated (H) Please specify, 
if any.(Break‐up by composi�on i.e. by 
materials relevant to the sector)

Total (A+B + C + D + E + F + G+ H)

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover (Total  waste 
generated  / Revenue from opera�ons)

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for 
Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) (Total waste generated / 
Revenue   from   opera�ons adjusted for PPP)

Waste intensity in terms of physical output

Waste intensity (op�onal)–the relevant metric may be
selected by the en�ty

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re‐using 

or other recovery opera�ons (in metric tonnes)

C

i
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For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method 

(inmetric tonnes)

Category of waste

( )    Incinera�on

(ii)   Land filling

(iii)  Other disposal opera�ons

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

59.45

3472

69.605

4133

 Process Organic residue sent to in-house 
incinerator. ETP sludge, process inorganic & 
evaporation salts sent to In-House secured land fill.

 The permeate is being reused as process water in 
place of river water and rejects will be used for 
preparation of Brine solution.

 All the records w.r.t Hazardous and other wastes are 
being maintained and same will be made available 
at site.

Total 3531.45 4202.605

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evalua�on /assurance has been carried out by an external 

agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No

9.  B riefly describe the waste management prac�ces adopted in your establishments. Describe the 
strategy adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your 
products and processes and the prac�ces adopted to manage such wastes.

1. TGV SRAACL are procuring Gujarat origin salt instead of south India salt. There is a reduc�on of 
50% solid waste by using Gujarat salt against salt from South India which contains more 
impuri�es.

2. TGV SRAACL have installed sulphate recovery plant. With this plant, further reduc�on in solid 
waste genera�on and producing saleable anhydrous sodium sulphate around 4 to 5MT/day.

10. If the en�ty has opera�ons/offices in/around ecologically sensi�ve areas (such as na�onal 
parks, wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, 
coastal regula�on zones etc.) where environmental approvals / clearances are required, please 
specify details in the following format:

No ecologically sensi�ve areas in and around the project site however the project falls under EIA 
regula�ons and have obtained all environmental approvals and compliances.

i
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Loca�on of opera�ons/officesS.No Type of opera�ons Whether the condi�ons of 

environmental approval /

clearance are being complied 

with?(Y/N) If no, the reasons 

thereof and correc�ve ac�on 

taken, if any.

1. Gondiparla (V),Kurnool (M), 

Kurnool District

Chlor‐Alkali Plant and Synthe�c 

Organic Chemicals (Chloromethanes 

/ Chloro‐difluoromethane)

Yes

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the en�ty based on 
applicable laws, in the current financial year:

Not Applicable

12. Is the en�ty compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regula�ons/ guidelines in India; 
such as the Water (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, Air (Preven�on and Control of 
Pollu�on) Act, environment protec�on act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of 
all such non‐compliances, in the following format:

Yes, the en�ty complied with the applicable environmental law/ regula�ons/ guidelines in India; 
such as the Water (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, Air (Preven�on and Control of 
Pollu�on) Act, Environment protec�on act and rules.

EC : h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraacl/1.‐EC‐%202018.pdf

CFE : h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraacl/3.‐CFE‐2022‐emended.pdf

CFO: h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/download/sraacl/9.‐CFO‐220‐22.pdf

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1.   Water drawn, consump�on and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilo liters): For each facility 
/ plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following informa�on:

(i)    Name of the area: Gondiparla, Kurnool

(ii) Nature of opera�ons: It is the leading producer of Chlor ‐ Alkali products and manufactures 
Castor Deriva�ves, Fa�y Acids and Chloromethanes.

(iii) Water drawn, consump�on and discharge in the following format
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Parameter FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

Water withdrawal by source (in kilo litres) 

(i)  surface water 

(ii) Ground water 

(iii) Third party water 

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water 

(v) Others (sub surface water from river) 

Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) 

Total volume of water consump�on (in kilolitres) 

‐

‐

‐

‐

17,64,410 

17,64,410 

17,64,410 

0.00009846 

‐

‐

‐

‐

18,19,331

18,19,331

18,19,331

0.00008979 

‐ ‐

Water intensity per rupee of turnover 
(Water consumed / turnover) 

Water intensity (op�onal) – the relevant metric may be 
selected by the en�ty 

Water discharge by des�na�on and level of treatment (in kilolitres) 

( )   To Surface water 

‐No treatment 

With treatment – please specify level of treatment 

(ii)    To Groundwater    

‐No treatment 

‐With treatment – please specify level of treatment 

(iii)  To Seawater 

‐No treatment 

‐With treatment – please specify level of treatment 

(iv)   Sent to third‐par�es 

(v)    Others 

‐No treatment 

‐No treatment 

‐With treatment – please specify level of treatment

‐With treatment – please specify level of treatment

Total Effluent water discharged (in kilolitres) NIL (ZLD facility is Maintained) 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA NA 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evalua�on/assurance has been carried out by 
           an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency ‐ NO 

i
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2.   Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format: 

Not available. Independent Assessment is in the process 

3.  With respect to the ecologically sensi�ve areas reported at Ques�on 10 of Essen�al Indicators 
above, provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the en�ty on biodiversity in such 
areas alongwith preven�on and remedia�on ac�vi�es. 

No Ecologically sensi�ve areas are reported 

4.   If the en�ty has undertaken any specific ini�a�ves or used innova�ve technology or solu�ons to 
improve resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste 
generated, please provide details of the same as well as outcome of such ini�a�ves, as per the 
following format: 

Sl. 
No

Ini�a�ve undertaken Details of the ini�a�ve 
(Web‐link, if any, may be 

provided along‐with 
summary) 

Outcome of the ini�a�ve 

1. Sulphate recovery plant. Details of ini�a�ve 
a�ached as Annexure IV 

With this plant, further 
reduc�on in solid waste 
genera�on and producing 
saleable anhydrous 
Sodium sulphate around 4 
to 5MT/day. 

5.   Does the en�ty have a business con�nuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 
words/ web link. 

Yes. Disaster management Plan provided in Annexure ‐ V 

6.   Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the 
en�ty. What mi�ga�on or adapta�on measures have been taken by the en�ty in this regard. 
Evalua�on in progress 

7.  Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were 
assessed for environmental impacts. 

Evalua�on not undertaken 
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PRINCIPLE 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so 
in a manner that is responsible and transparent 

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS 

1.     a.  Number of affilia�ons with trade and industry chambers/ associa�ons. 

      b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associa�ons (determined based on the   
total members of such body) the en�ty is a member of/ affiliated to.

Sl. 
No. 

1

Name of the trade and industry 
chambers / associa�ons 

Member of Alkali Manufacturers Associa�on
 of India 
(Member of Execu�ve Commi�ee) 
(Member –Technical Sub‐Commi�ee)

Reach of trade and industry chambers/ 
associa�ons (State/Na�onal) 

Na�onal 

2.   Provide details of correc�ve ac�on taken or underway on any issues related to an�‐ compe��ve 
conduct by the en�ty, based on adverse orders from regulatory authori�es. 

Not Applicable 

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS 

1.    Details of public policy posi�ons advocated by the en�ty 

Sl. 
No. 

1. 

Public policy 
advocated 

Delis�ng of HCL as 
effluent generated 

from CPW unit 

Method resorted 
for such advocacy 

AMAI 

Whether informa�on 
available in public 

domain (Y/N) 

YES 

Frequency of review 
by Board Annually /

 half yearly / quarterly 

Quarterly 

PRINCIPLE 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development 

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS 

1.  Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the en�ty based on 
applicable laws, in the current financial year. 

Name and brief 
details of project 

SIA No�fica�on 
No. 

Date of 
no�fica�on 

Whether conducted 
by independent 
external agency 

(Yes / No) 

Results 
communicated 

in public domain 
(Yes / No) 

Relevant 
Web link 

No No
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2.   Provide informa�on on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilita�on and Rese�lement (R&R) is 
being undertaken by your en�ty, in the following format: 

       Not Applicable

3.   Describe the mechanism to receive grievances of the community

The Company has set up a framework of mul�ple mechanisms to receive and redress grievances, 
for the community. The stakeholder shares a proposal with the needs required. The Company 
then follows below steps: 

a.  Need Assessment: At the first stage, the proposal is reviewed to assess the need and the 
proposed outcome and impact. The implemen�ng agency is reviewed for the fulfilment of 
regulatory criteria and prior experience in working for a similar cause. 

b. Regular interac�ons with community: This is done by physical visits, virtual mee�ngs, 
feedbacks review of outcomes, third party reports, photos, etc 

c.   In case there is a grievance and can be resolved by the Company, the proposal accounts for this 
in scope of work and approvals are taken and ac�on is taken. 

4.   Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers: 

FY 2023 – 24 

85.38% 

2.45%

FY 2024‐25 

31.30%

1.29%

Directly sourced from MSMEs / small producers 

Sourced directly from within the district and neighboring districts 

5.   Job crea�on in smaller towns – Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees 
or workers employed on a permanent or non‐permanent / on contract basis) in the following 
loca�ons, as % of total wage cost 

More than 80% of employees are recruited from the town of Kurnool and surrounding villages. 
The wages paid to the employees are as per the industry norms and commensurate with 
company's policy 

(Place to be categorized as per RBI Classifica�on System ‐ rural / semi‐urban / urban / 
metropolitan) 
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S. No. 

1 

State 

Andhra Pradesh and 
Telangana 

Aspira�onal District 

Kurnool, Tirupa� (AP) 
and Telangana 

Amount spent (In INR) 

Amount in 
Rs: 2,97,56,860/‐ 

3.   a.  Do you have a preferen�al procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from 
suppliers comprising marginalized /vulnerable groups? (Yes/No) 

Consump�on of resources by the Company is limited to running its opera�ons. The Company 
believes in equal and fair opportunity to all vendors including marginalized /vulnerable groups. 

b.  From which marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure? 

Not Available 

c.  What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it cons�tute? 

Not  Available 

4.   Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual proper�es owned or acquired 
by your en�ty (in the current financial year), based on tradi�onal knowledge: 

S. No. Intellectual Property based on
 tradi�onal knowledge   

Owned/ Acquired 
(Yes/No)   

Benefit shared 
(Yes / No)   

Basis of calcula�ng 
benefit share   

NIL   

5.  Details of correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual 
property related disputes wherein usage of tradi�onal knowledge is involved. 

Name of authority Brief of the Case Correc�ve ac�on taken 

Not Applicable 

6.   Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects: 
The CSR ac�vi�es are conducted in the villages adjoining the plant and the areas of Kurnool town. 
The details are presented in Annexure ‐ V 

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS 

1.   Provide details of ac�ons taken to mi�gate any nega�ve social impacts iden�fied in the Social 
Impact Assessments (Reference: Ques�on 1 of Essen�al Indicators above): 

No such nega�ve social impacts were iden�fied 

2.   Provide the following informa�on on CSR projects undertaken by your en�ty in designated 
aspira�onal districts as iden�fied by government bodies: 
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PRINCIPLE 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible 
manner 

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS 

1.  Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and 
feedback. 

The company has a consumer complaint procedure in place to receive and address customer 
complaints. The head of the Quality Assurance is the responsible Authority.

The procedure is outlined below: 

a) Complaints received directly from any customers or distributors, regarding the Quality, 
Quan�ty, Packing or any other such complaints are considered as Market Complaints. 

b) On receipt of communica�on either wri�en on QSF 10.2.1 or Oral or mail from Marke�ng 
Department, the complaint registra�on along with other details viz. complaint registra�on 
number, date, invoice details, customer details, details of the product and nature of complaint 
are required to be recorded in QSF 10.2.2 for inves�ga�on and correc�ve ac�on. 

c) The reported complaint will be inves�gated in coordina�on with concerned produc�on 
department by establishing the root cause and correc�ve ac�on will be established on QSF 
10.2.2. Concerned HOD (Produc�on) will concur the inves�ga�on outcome. 

2.   Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that 
carry informa�on about: 

As a percentage to total turnover 

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product 

Safe and responsible usage 

Recycling and/or safe disposal 

NIL 

100% 

100% 

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

Received 
during 

the year 

Received 
during 

the year 

Pending 
resolu�on at
 end of year 

Pending 
resolu�on 
at end of 

year 

Remarks Remarks

Data privacy 

Adver�sing 

Cyber‐security 

Delivery of essen�al services 

Restric�ve Trade Prac�ces 

Unfair Trade Prac�ces 

Other 

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

3.    Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following 
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4.   Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues 

Number 

NIL NIL 

NIL NIL 

Reasons for Recall 

Voluntary Recalls 

Forced Recalls 

5.   Does the en�ty have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? 
(Yes/No) If available, provide a web‐link of the policy. 

The confiden�ality policy includes guidelines with regard to data security 

h�ps://drive.google.com/file/d/1S4nxIgQIZBMW7pCSDMUFiFi96UX5LB0R/view?usp=shar
e_link (confiden�ality policy) 

6.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway on issues rela�ng to adver�sing, and 

delivery of essen�al services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re‐occurrence 
of instances of product recalls; penalty / ac�on taken by regulatory authori�es on safety of 
products / services. 

There is no instance of any issues and hence no correc�ve ac�on was needed 

7.   Provide the following informa�on rela�ng to data breaches: 

a. Number of instances of data breaches along‐with impact: Zero data breach incidents 

b.  Percentage of data breaches involving personally iden�fiable informa�on of customers: 
NIL 

C.   Impact, if any, of the data breaches: NIL 

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS   

1.   Channels / pla�orms where informa�on on products and services of the en�ty can be accessed 
(provide web link, if available). 

Informa�on about products and specifica�ons is provided in the Material Safety Data Sheet 
(MSDS) and TREME cards also provide product and safety informa�on including a toll free 
number. 

h � p s : / / d r i v e . g o o g l e . c o m / fi l e / d / 1 U 4 u o e m P 3 F U 1 Q m w J X 8 v G w C r U Q Ys ‐
28tVp/view?usp=share_link 

2.  Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products 
and/or services. 

The company provides informa�on regarding the product, its usage, safety aspects and disposal 
through Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) which provides the product specifica�ons and their 
risks. The MSDS provides informa�on on safe storage handling and disposal. The TREM cards also 
provide product and safety informa�on including a toll‐free number 
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3.   Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disrup�on/discon�nua�on of essen�al 
services. 

The essen�al services of the company mainly include safe transporta�on of the product to the 
customers and address any leakages or spillages during transporta�on. A toll‐free number is 
provided on the tankers to ensure immediate ac�on. 

4.   Does the en�ty display product informa�on on the product over and above what is mandated 
as per local laws? (Yes/No/Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your en�ty carry 
out any survey with regard to consumer sa�sfac�on rela�ng to the major products / services of 
the en�ty, significant loca�ons of opera�on of the en�ty or the en�ty as a whole? (Yes/No) 

The product informa�on is specified as per regula�ons. The company has customer feedback in 
place. 

on behalf of the Board of Directors 

K. KARUNAKAR RAO   C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director (Fin. &Comml.,) Execu�ve Director (Technical)

Place : Hyderabad
thDate  : 8 August, 2025

(DIN: 02031367) (DIN: 09266926)

Sd/‐ Sd/‐
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To

The Members, 

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TGV SRAAC LIMITED (“the Company”), 
stwhich comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss including 

Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant 
accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in 

st
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31  March, 2025, its profit including other 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
st

our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31  March, 2025. These ma�ers 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers. There are no key audit 
ma�ers to report for the year under audit.
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Informa�on other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon:

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other informa�on. The 
other informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Company's annual report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other informa�on, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial posi�on, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accoun�ng Standards specified under sec�on 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015 as  amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng 
frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making 
judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on 
of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless the Board of Directors either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial repor�ng 
process.
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Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scep�cism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override 
of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the opera�ng effec�veness 
of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on 
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the 
Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on. 

 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the 
planned scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended    

st
31  March, 2025 and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's 
report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.    As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub‐sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of the Act, we give in the 
“Annexure A” a statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.     As required by sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examina�on of those books;, except for the ma�ers stated in the 

paragraph(i)(vi) below on repor�ng under Rule 11(g);

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are 

in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards specified under sec�on 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e) on the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors of the Company as 
st 

on31 March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
st 

disqualified as on 31 March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 

164(2) of the  Act;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these 

financial statements of the Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer 

to our separate report in “Annexure B” to this report .Our report expresses an unmodified 

opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company's internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements; 
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g) with respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with 

the requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to 
us, the remunera�on paid/ provided by the Company to its directors for the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

h) the observa�on rela�ng to the maintenance of accounts and other ma�ers connected 

therewith are as stated in the paragraph(b) above on repor�ng under Sec�on 143(3) (b) and 

paragraph(i)(vi) below on repor�ng under Rule 11(g);

i) with respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to 

the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us:
st

i.     The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons as on 31  March, 2025 on its 

financial posi�on in its financial statements–Refer Note 26 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long‐term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.   there were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on 

and Protec�on Fund by the company. 

iv)  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the Note 42 to the Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or en�ty (ies), 

including foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the Note 42 to the Financial Statements, no funds have been received by 

the Company from any persons or en��es, including foreign en��es (“Funding 

Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

en��es iden�fied in any manner what soever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ul�mate Beneficiaries; and
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c)  Based on audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to 
believe that the representa�ons under above sub‐clause (a) and (b)contain any 
material misstatement;

v)   As stated in Note 10(a) to the Financial Statements:

Dividend Declared and Paid:

a) The dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the company during the 
year is in accordance with sec�on 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Dividend Proposed for the Year:

b) The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed dividend for the year, which is subject 
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng.  The dividend 
proposed is in accordance with sec�on 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi)  Based on our examina�on, which included test checks, the company has used an accoun�ng 
st

so�ware for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31  March, 2025 
which has a feature of recording audit trail(edit log) facility and the same has operated 
through out the year for all relevant transac�ons recorded in the so�ware at the applica�on 
level. However, the company has not enabled the audit trail (edit log) feature at data base level 
in the accoun�ng so�ware, as described in Note 43 to the financial statements. Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with in respect of the accoun�ng so�ware.

Addi�onally, the audit trial of prior years has been preserved by the Company as per the 
statutory requirements for record reten�on to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the 
respec�ve years.

Place of Signature: Hyderabad 

Date  :  27.05.2025.  

UDIN: 25026450BMOYHH9646

For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No. 000515 S

(B. DAIVADHEENAM REDDY)

Partner

Membership No.026450

Sd/‐
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Statement on the ma�ers specified in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the informa�on and 
explana�ons given to us during the course of our audit, we report that

 )    a)  in respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and intangible 
assets:

A)  the Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve 
details and situa�on of property, plant and equipment; and relevant details of right of use 
assets.

B) the Company does not have any intangible assets and hence repor�ng under Clause 
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

b)     the Company has a program of physical verifica�on of property, plant and equipment and right of 
use assets so to cover all the assets over the period of  three years, which, in our opinion, is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically 
verified by the management during the year. According to the informa�on and explana�ons 
given to us, no material discrepancies were no�ced on such verifica�on;

c)    according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, the �tle deeds of all immovable proper�es as disclosed in note 3 to 
the financial statements (other than proper�es where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee ) are held in the name of the Company 
except the �tle to the property of 12.17 acres of land situated in Bellary amoun�ng to Rs. 15.29 
Lakhs acquired by the Company from Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB), 
which is in the process of being transferred in the Company's name;

d)     according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year;

e)      according to informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the 
records of the Company, there are no proceedings ini�ated or pending against the Company for 
holding any benami property under the Prohibi�on of Benami Property Transac�ons Act, 1988 
and rules made thereunder;
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(Referred to in paragraph1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 

sec�on of our report of even date for the year ended March 31,2025.)

i



ii)   in respect of Company's inventory:

a)  the inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable  intervals during 
the year , except for goods in transit. In our opinion, the frequency of verifica�on is reasonable 
and the coverage and the procedure of such verifica�on by the management is appropriate. No 
material discrepancies in aggregate for each class of inventory were no�ced on such physical 
verifica�on of inventory. There are no inventories lying with third par�es as at year‐end;

b)  according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on 
of the records of the Company, as disclosed in note 42 to the Financial Statements, the 
Company has been sanc�oned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The company does not have such 
sanc�oned working capital limits from financial ins�tu�ons. Based on the records examined by 
us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks  are in agreement 
with the books of account of the Company with some insignificant variances;

iii)      according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, during the year the Company has not 
made any investment, granted loans, provided guarantee or security to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other par�es covered in the register maintained under 
Sec�on 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company;

iv)    in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the compliance 
with the provisions of Sec�ons 185 does not arise and the Company has complied with Sec�on 
186 of the Act in respect of investments made , as applicable;

v)      the Company has not accepted deposits from public and does not have any unclaimed deposits 
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (v) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company;

vi)  we have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub‐sec�on (1) of Sec�on 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the 
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained.

We have, however, not made a detailed examina�on of the cost records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete;

vii)    according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a)  the Company is regular in deposi�ng with appropriate authori�es undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income‐tax, Goods and Services Tax 
(GST), Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable;

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income‐tax, Goods and Services Tax (GST), Customs Duty, Cess and other material 

st statutory dues outstanding as at 31 March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable;

b) The following are the details of statutory dues  referred to in sub‐clause (a) above, which have 
stnot been deposited as at 31  March, 2025 on account of disputes:
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Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount 
(Rs. in lakhs)

Period to
which the

amount relates

Forum where 

dispute is pending

AP VAT Act, 2005

Karnataka Tax on
Entry of Goods 
Act, 1979

Andhra Pradesh 

Entry Tax Act, 2001

Indian Customs 
Act, 1962

Indian Customs 
Act, 1962

Indian Customs 
Act, 1962

Employees Provident
Fund and 
Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952

Interest on delay 
payment of deferred 
sales tax

Entry tax on purchase 
of machinery items 
and interest
Entry tax on purchase 
of electrical 
equipments

Customs Duty 
claimed on raw 
materials

An�–dumping duty 
on import of Barium 
Carbonate

Differen�al duty on 
classifica�on of goods 
disputed (Lauric Acid)

PF delay charges/
damages for belated
payments

154.29*

1.78*

63.77*

1,036.16*

32.69

10.70

10.52

15.34

2005‐06 & 
2006‐07

2006‐07
2007‐08
2009‐10

2014‐15
2015‐16
2016‐17
2017‐18

2000‐2006

2010‐11

2014‐15

2014‐15

May, 2002 to 
Dec, 2007

High Court of 
Andhra Pradesh, 
Amarava�
Dy. Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes, 
Bellary

High Court of 
Andhra Pradesh,
Amarava�

Commissioner of 
Customs, Chennai

Joint Commissioner 
of Customs, Chennai

Customs, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, Chennai

Asst. Commissioner 
Customs, Chennai
Employees Provident 
Fund Appellate 
Tribunal, New Delhi.

The Income tax 
Act, 1961

The Central Goods 
and Services Tax 
Act, 2017

Addi�on made under 
sec�on 69A of Income 
Tax Act,1961

availment of transi�onal 
credit on input supplies 
/ services and capital goods

36.01

25.21

Assessment 
Year 2016‐17

2017‐18

CIT (Appeals)
Na�onal faceless 
assessment centre

Joint Commissioner 
of Central Tax 
(Appeals) Guntur.

*Net of amounts paid under protest.
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viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transac�on, previously unrecorded in the 
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company;

ix)    a) according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year; 

b)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or 
government or any government authority;

c)  The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unu�lised term 
loans at the beginning of the year and hence, repor�ng under clause3 (ix) (c) of the Order is not 
applicable.

d)  according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on an overall examina�on of the 
financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short‐term basis have not  been used for 
long‐term purposes during the year by the Company;

e)  according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on an overall examina�on of the 
financial Statements of the Company, the Company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies (as defined under Companies Act, 2013). Accordingly,  repor�ng under 
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable;

f)   according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and procedures performed by us, 
we report that the Company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as 
defined under Companies Act, 2013). Accordingly, repor�ng under  clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order 
is not applicable;

x)   a)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not raised any 
money during the year by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments). Accordingly, repor�ng under  clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable;

       b)   According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly or op�onally conver�ble debentures during the 
year. Accordingly, repor�ng under  clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable;

xi) a) based on examina�on of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
informa�on and explana�ons given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in 
Standards on Audi�ng, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been 
no�ced or reported during the course of the audit;
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     b)   According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no report under sub‐sec�on 
(12) of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by  us during the year  in 
Form ADT‐4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government;

c)  A s represented  to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year;

xii)       the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(xii) (a), (b) and 
(c)of the Order is not applicable.

xiii)        in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company is 
in compliance with Sec�on 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transac�ons with 
the related par�es and the details of related party transac�ons have been disclosed in the 
Note 31 to the  financial statements, as required by the applicable accoun�ng standards;

xiv)  a)   based on the informa�on and explana�ons provided to us and our audit procedures, in our 
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 
of its business;

      b)  we have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued �ll date of the audit 
report, for the period under audit;

xv)          in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, during the year 
the Company has not entered into any non‐cash transac�ons with its directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence provisions of Sec�on 192 of the Act, are not 
applicable to the company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company;

xvi)   a) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company is not required to be 
registered under Sec�on 45‐IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, repor�ng 
under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

         b) the Company has not conducted any Non‐Banking Financial or Housing Finance ac�vi�es 
without obtaining a valid Cer�ficate of Registra�on (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as 
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

        c) the Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regula�ons made by 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company;

        d) there is no Core investment Company as a part of the Group. Accordingly, repor�ng under 
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii)    the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately         
preceding financial year;
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xviii)   there has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 
(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company ;

xix)     According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ra�os disclosed in Note.41 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of 
realisa�on of financial assets and payment of financial liabili�es, other informa�on 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence suppor�ng the 
assump�ons, nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of 
mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our repor�ng is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due;

xx)  a) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, in respect of 
Projects other than ongoing Projects, there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) that are required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule 
VII to the Companies Act,2013  in compliance with  second proviso to sub‐sec�on (5) of the 
sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(xx)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company;

     b)  In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there are no 
unspent amounts under sub‐sec�on (5) of sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant 
to any ongoing projects , that are required to be transferred to special account in compliance 
with provisions of sub‐sec�on (6) of sec�on 135 of the Companies Act,2013. Accordingly, 
repor�ng under  clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 Place of Signature: Hyderabad 

 Date :  27.05.2025.  

UDIN: 25026450BMOYHH9646

For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No. 000515 S

(B. DAIVADHEENAM REDDY)

Partner

Membership No.026450

Sd/‐
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(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' sec�on 
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of 
Sub‐sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TGV SRAAC 
stLtd (“the Company”) as of 31  March, 2025 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements 

of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors and the Company's management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal 
control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's polices, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and 
detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the 
�mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls with reference 
to these financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Audi�ng as specified under Sec�on143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their opera�ng 
effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design 
and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng 
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the company;    
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of 
management and directors of the company; and (3)provide reasonable assurance regarding 
preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any 
evalua�on of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 

st
opera�ng effec�vely as at 31  March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial repor�ng 
criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the 
Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 Place of Signature: Hyderabad 

 Date:  27.05.2025.  

UDIN:25026450BMOYHH9646

For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No. 000515 S

(B. DAIVADHEENAM REDDY)

Partner

Membership No.026450

Sd/‐
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Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2025

Par�culars Note
No

 As at 
31st March, 2025 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

(` in lakhs)

3
27
3
4

5(a)
5(b)

6

7

8(a)
8(b)
8(  )
8(d)

9

          125,158.62
               1,756.38               

1,202.26                      
6.27 

             3,520.29               
4,855.95               
1,312.57           

137,812.34 

            14,134.35

25,055.65
3,317.27
6,297.54
9,112.65
1,031.35

58,948.81 

TOTAL ASSETS

               103,614.54 
1,219.74

16,825.90
6.27 

3,315.79
4,146.59
1,748.40

130,877.23 

                 12,565.97

18,803.13
1,105.76
3,134.62

10,352.73
2,329.11

48,291.32 

          196,761.15                179,168.55 

10,713.26
107,112.07
117,825.33 

6,586.83
1,954.18
9,609.44
9,136.65

27,287.10 

26,488.84

1,041.61

8,718.38
480.93

11,207.88
3,498.38

195.74
16.96

51,648.72 

10,713.26 
98,866.41

109,579.67

7,947.80
1,439.42
8,278.47
8,210.36

25,876.05 

                 22,150.95 

692.83

4,063.74
398.13

11,049.22
5,109.99

138.88
109.09

43,712.83 

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

            78,935.82 

          196,761.15 

                 69,588.88 

               179,168.55 

General informa�on
Summary of significant accoun�ng policies
See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

1
2

As per our a�ached report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co., 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Regn No.000515 S

CA B.DAIVADHEENAM REDDY 
Partner  
Membership No.026450                        
UDIN: 25026450BMOYHH9646
Place: Hyderabad
Date : 27th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TGV SRAAC LIMITED

(CIN : L24110AP1981PLC003077)

CA K KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.) & CEO

C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director  (Technical)

CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY
CGM & Company Secretary

CA C. RAJESH KHANNA
Sr. Vice President (Fin. & Accts) & CFO 

ASSETS
Non‐current assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment
Right‐of‐use assets
Capital work‐in‐progress
Investment proper�es
Financial assets
    ‐ Investments 
    ‐ Other financial assets
Other non‐current assets
Total Non‐current assets
Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 
   ‐ Trade receivables 
   ‐ Cash and cash equivalents 
   ‐ Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 
   ‐ Other financial assets
Other current assets 
Total Current assets

10(a)
10(b)

11(a)
28

11(b)
12

11(  )
11(d)

27
11(e)

13
14
15

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
    Equity Share capital     
    Other equity
    Total Equity 
Liabili�es
Non‐current liabili�es 
     Financial liabili�es
    ‐Borrowings 
     ‐Lease liability 
     ‐Other financial liabili�es
     Deferred tax liabili�es (Net)
Total Non‐current liabili�es
Current liabili�es 
Financial liabili�es 
   ‐ Borrowings 
   ‐ Trade and other payables 
      (A) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and 
      (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
            and small enterprises 
   ‐ Lease liability 
   ‐ Other financial liabili�es
Other current liabili�es 
Provisions 
Current tax liability (Net)
Total Current liabili�es

c

(DIN : 02031367) (DIN: 09266926)

c
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Par�culars Note
No

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

 Year ended 
31st  March, 2024 

I  Revenue from opera�ons
II  Other income
III Total revenue (I + II)
IV Expenses
  Cost of materials consumed 
  Purchase of stock‐in‐trade
  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and     
  stock‐in‐trade
  Employee benefit expenses
  Finance costs
  Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expenses 
  Power and fuel expenses
  Other expenses
  Total expenses (IV)
V  Profit/ (loss) before excep�onal items and tax (III‐IV)
VI Excep�onal items
VII Profit/ (loss) before tax (V‐VI)
  Current tax
  Deferred tax
VIII Tax expense
IX Profit/ (loss) for the period from con�nuing opera�ons (VII‐VIII)
X  Profit/ (loss) from discon�nuing opera�ons
XI  Tax expense of discon�nuing opera�ons
XII Profit/ (loss) from discon�nuing opera�ons (a�er tax) (X‐XI)
XIII Profit/ (loss) for the period (IX+XII)
XIV Other comprehensive income
  Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 
  loss in subsequent periods:
  Re‐measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
  Tax effect
  Net gains/(losses) on FVTOCI equity securi�es
  Tax effect
XV Total comprehensive income for the period (XIII+XIV)
XVI Earnings per equity share (for con�nuing opera�ons)
  a) Basic 
  b) Diluted 
XVII Earnings per equity share (for discon�nuing opera�ons)
  a) Basic 
  b) Diluted 
XVIII Earnings per equity share 
  (for con�nuing & discon�nuing opera�ons)
  a) Basic 
  b) Diluted

16
17

18(a)

18(b)
19
20
3

21

22
22

32

23

24

24

174,904.06 
1,417.53

176,321.59
 

51,624.07
‐

419.47
7,333.92
2,553.90
8,807.52

62,776.84
30,251.00

163,766.72
12,554.87

‐
12,554.87

2,428.04
891.08

3,319.12
9,235.75 

(31.91)
(8.03)

(23.88)
9,211.87 

                        

(64.60)
16.26

204.50
(51.47)

9,316.56 

                           8.62
8.62 

                          
(0.02)
(0.02)

                        

8.60
8.60

154,595.64
1,819.75

156,415.39

49,618.96
2.66

(204.44)
6,923.30
2,368.72
8,349.84

59,478.05
25,502.09

152,039.18
4,376.21
3,990.17
8,366.38
1,758.99

508.58
2,267.56
6,098.82

(35.71)
(8.99)

(26.72)
6,072.10

(39.69)
9.99

220.73
(55.55)

6,207.58

5.70
5.70

(0.02)
(0.02)

   5.68
5.68

General informa�on
Summary of significant accoun�ng policies
See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

1
2

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2025 (` in lakhs)
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Cash flow statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2025                                                                                

Par�culars
Year ended

 31st March, 2025
Year Ended

 31st March, 2024

(` in lakhs)

12,554.87
(31.91)

12,522.95 

8,807.52
(701.63)

111.53
39.51
(7.44)

1,754.36
253.36
360.99 

(332.17)
‐

(143.87)
22,665.11 

8,366.38
(35.71)

8,330.68 

5,003.43
136.20

(1,611.61)
1,330.97

(7.74)
(6,363.97)
(1,568.38)

1,342.04
1,297.76
(624.59)

435.83
22,035.04
(2,512.13)
19,522.90

(1,721.51)
(1,087.56)

549.90
(1,225.39)

5.08
3,860.94
1,399.17
(992.16)

325.90
(900.29)
(291.27)

18,324.70
(1,912.08)
16,412.63

(14,184.37)
(179.02)

599.67
7.44 

(116.43)
(3,131.26)

(17,003.97)

(24,629.09)
271.60
664.22

9.86
204.02

1,213.47
(22,265.92)

12.37
(1,754.36)
(1,070.90)
(1,442.60)

4,361.21
(413.13)
(307.42)

11.91
(2,292.66)
(1,070.90)

861.43
7,842.41
(402.74)

 4,949.45 

2,211.51
1,105.76
3,317.27

(903.84)
2,009.60
1,105.76 

                            4.89

2,397.80
914.58

3,317.27

                              3.38 

382.06
720.32

1,105.76 

8,349.84
(617.45)

‐
34.70
(9.86)

2,292.66
234.33
233.90

(178.80)
1.59

(269.69)
18,401.89 

c

Note : The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” setout Ind AS ‐ 7 “ Statement of Cash Flows”
Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped / rearranged to confirm to the current years’s presenta�on, wherever necessary.

Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es
Profit before tax from con�nuing opera�ons
Profit/(loss) before tax from discon�nued opera�ons
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
 Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expenses
 Interest income
 Allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables
 Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss
 Dividend income on investments made
 Interest expenses
 Interset on lease liability
 Interest expense due to amor�sa�on of financial liability & deferred sales tax 
 recognised, deferred power charges
 Income due to deferred power charges, sales tax recognised & capital subsidy recognised
 NSC investment wri�en off
 Profit on sale of asset
Opera�ng profit before working capital changes
Working capital adjustments:
 (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
 (Decrease)/Increase in current financial liabili�es
 (Decrease)/Increase in other current liabili�es
 (Decrease)/Increase in non‐current financial liabili�es
 (Decrease)/Increase in short term provisions
 (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories
 (Increase)/Decrease in other current financial assets
 (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
 (Increase)/Decrease in non‐current financial assets
 (Increase)/Decrease in non‐current assets
Cash generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es
 Direct taxes paid (net)
Net cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es (A)
Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es
 Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, ROU assets including CWIP, Investment property 
 Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment, investment property
 Interest received
 Dividend received
 Deposits matured/(placed) during the year
 Redemp�on/(Investment) of margin money deposit
Net cash flow from/ (used in) inves�ng ac�vi�es (B)
Cash flows from financing ac�vi�es
 Repayment of preference shares
 Interest paid
 Dividend paid
 (Repayment)/Proceeds of long term borrowings
 (Repayment)/Proceeds from short term borrowings
 Payment of lease liability
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing ac�vi�es (  )

Total cash and cash equivalents

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
 ‐ in Current Account
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
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Balance at 31st March, 2023

Transfer from retained earnings

Transfer from OCI

Profit for the year

Transfer to general reserve

Equity instruments through other comprehensive

 income

Gains/(losses) on arising from actuarial gain/loss on

 gratuity

Transfer to retained earnings

Deferred tax recognised pertaining to previous years

Dividend paid during the year

Balance at 31st March, 2024

b. Other Equity

Par�culars

Other 
reserve 

(see note 
10(b))

Notes
Securi�es 
premium 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 

FVOCI ‐ 
equity 

instruments

OCI ‐ 
Actuarial 

gain / loss 
on gratuity

Total other 
equity

7,333.22

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

7,333.22
‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

7,333.22

47,704.84

               ‐

(29.70) 

6,072.10

(1,000.00)

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

103.93

(1,070.90)

51,780.27

‐

(48.34)

9,211.87

(1,500.00)

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

(1,070.90)

58,372.90 

1,500.00

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

46,000.07

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

153.03

‐

‐

‐

‐

(4,594.13)

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

(48.34)

48.34

‐

‐

1,500.00

(48.34)

9,211.87

(1,500.00)

‐

153.03

(48.34)

48.34

(1,070.90)

107,112.07

43,500.07

1,000.00

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

44,500.07

(4,593.18)

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

165.18

‐

‐

‐

(319.16)

‐

(4,747.16)

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

     (29.70)

29.70

‐

‐

‐

93,944.96

1,000.00

(29.70)

6,072.10

(1,000.00)

‐

165.18

‐

(29.70)

29.70

(215.23)

(1,070.90)

98,866.41

Statement of changes in equity  

a. Equity share capital Note Amount

(` in lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2023
Changes in equity share capital during the year 
As at 31st March, 2024
Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at 31st March, 2025

       10,713.26
‐

10,713.26
‐ 

10,713.26 

10(b)(ii) 

10(b)(iii)  

10(b)(iii)  

10(b)(iii) 

10(b)(iv)

10(b)(iv)

10(b)(iv)

10(b)(iii)

10(b)(iii) 

10(b)(ii)

10(b)(iii)

10(b)(iii)

10(b)(iii)

10(b)(iv)

10(b)(iv)

10(b)(iv)

10(b)(iii) 

Transfer from retained earnings

Transfer from OCI

Profit for the year

Transfer to general reserve

Equity instruments through other comprehensive

 income

Gains/(losses) on arising from actuarial gain/loss on

 gratuity

Transfer to retained earnings

Dividend paid during the year

Balance at 31st March, 2025

(` in lakhs)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
Note 1 : General Informa�on

TGV SRAAC LIMITED (formerly known as Sree Rayalaseema Alkalies and Allied Chemicals Limited) 
th

incorporated on 24  June, 1981 is the flagship company of the TGV Group. It is the leading producer 
of Chlor‐Alkali products, Chloromethane and also manufactures Castor Deriva�ves and Fa�y Acids.

The Company is a public limited company domiciled in India. The equity shares of the Company are 
listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Director's on                  
th27  May, 2025.

Note 2: Significant Accoun�ng Policies

A.    Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind 
AS) as no�fied under the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian 
Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2017, Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019.

B. Basis of prepara�on and presenta�on of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted 
Accoun�ng Principles on accrual basis of accoun�ng and the historical cost conven�on basis except 
for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each repor�ng period, 
as explained in the accoun�ng policies below.

C. Current versus non‐current classifica�on

The Company presents assets and liabili�es in the balance sheet based on current/ non‐current 
classifica�on. An asset is treated as current when it is:

 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal opera�ng cycle.

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

 Expected to be realised within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to se�le a liability for        
atleast twelve months a�er the repor�ng period.

All other assets are classified as non‐current.

A liability is current when:

 It is expected to be se�led in normal opera�ng cycle

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

 It is due to be se�led within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period, or

 There is no uncondi�onal right to defer the se�lement of the liability for at least twelve 
months a�er the repor�ng period
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D.  Use of es�mates and judgements

The prepara�on of the financial statements requires that the Management to make es�mates and 

assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es, disclosure of con�ngent 

liabili�es as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 

expenses during the repor�ng period. The recogni�on, measurement, classifica�on or disclosure of 

an item or informa�on in the financial statements is made relying on these es�mates.

The es�mates and judgements used in the prepara�on of the financial statements are con�nuously 

evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assump�ons and 

factors (including expecta�ons of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under 

the exis�ng circumstances. Actual results could differ from those es�mates.

Any revision to accoun�ng es�mates is recognised prospec�vely in current and future periods. The 

cri�cal accoun�ng judgements and key es�mates followed by the Company for prepara�on of 

financial statements is described in Note 2(W).

E. Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. Other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical 

cost less accumulated deprecia�on. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly a�ributable 

to the acquisi�on of the items.

Advances paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance 

Sheet date is classified as capital advances under Other Non‐Current Assets and the cost of the assets 

not put to use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work‐in‐progress'. Subsequent 

expenditures rela�ng to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that 

future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 

be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated deprecia�on are eliminated from 

the financial statements upon sale or re�rement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of 

the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

F.  Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their es�mated useful lives as 

specified in Schedule II to the Companies act, 2013 using the straight‐line method in respect of plant 

and machinery and buildings and in respect of other assets on wri�en down value method. 

Deprecia�on is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and 

proper�es under construc�on) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight‐line 

method. 
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The es�mated useful lives, residual values and deprecia�on method are reviewed at the end of each 
repor�ng period, with the effect of any changes in es�mate accounted for on a prospec�ve basis. The 
useful life as prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act have been followed except in respect 
of the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under 
based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the es�mated usage of the 
asset, the opera�ng condi�on of the asset, past history of replacement, an�cipated technological 
changes, manufacturers warran�es and maintenance support, etc:

 Con�nuous process plant – 18 years

 Thermal power plant – 13 years

 Chlorine cylinders – 5 years

 Membranes – 5 years

 Soap plant – 15 years

G. Investment proper�es

Investment proper�es are measured ini�ally at cost, including transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al 
recogni�on, investment proper�es are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost‐based measurement, the fair value 
of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual 
evalua�on of the technical experts.

Investment proper�es are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised 
in profit or loss in the period of derecogni�on.

H.  Non‐current assets held for sale/ distribu�on to owners and discon�nued opera�ons

The Company classifies non‐current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/ distribu�on to 
owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale/ distribu�on rather than 
through con�nuing use. Ac�ons required to complete the sale/ distribu�on should indicate that it is 
unlikely that significant changes to the sale/ distribu�on will be made or that the decision to sell/ 
distribute will be withdrawn. Management must be commi�ed to the sale/distribu�on expected 
within one year from the date of classifica�on.

For these purposes, sale transac�ons include exchanges of non‐current assets for other non‐current 
assets when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale/ distribu�on 
classifica�on is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediate sale/ 
distribu�on in its present condi�on, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for 
sales/distribu�on of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale/ distribu�on is highly probable; and it 
will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale/ distribu�on of the asset or disposal 
group to be highly probable when:
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 The appropriate level of management is commi�ed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal 
group),

 An ac�ve programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been ini�ated,

 The asset (or disposal group) is being ac�vely marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in 
rela�on to its current fair value,

 The sale is expected to qualify for recogni�on as a completed sale within one year from the 
date of classifica�on and

 Ac�ons required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the 
plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non‐current assets held for sale/for distribu�on to owners and disposal groups are measured at the 
lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell/ distribute. Assets and liabili�es 
classified as held for sale/distribu�on are presented separately in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/ distribu�on to 
owners are not depreciated or amor�sed.

A disposal group qualifies as discon�nued opera�on if it is a component of an en�ty that either has 
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

 Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of opera�ons,

 Is part of a single co‐ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or 
geographical area of opera�ons

 Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discon�nued opera�ons are excluded from the results of con�nuing opera�ons and are presented as 
a single amount as profit or loss a�er tax from discon�nued opera�ons in the statement of profit and 
loss.

Addi�onal disclosures are provided in Note 33. All other notes to the financial statements mainly 
include amounts for con�nuing opera�ons, unless otherwise men�oned.

I.  Impairment of Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment tes�ng, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the 
value‐in‐use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows 
that are largely independent of those from other assets. 

In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash genera�ng unit to which the asset 
belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds 
the es�mated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of 
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Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the es�mates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided 
that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any 
accumulated amor�za�on or deprecia�on) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in 
prior years.

J.  Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one en�ty and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another en�ty.

 Financial assets

Ini�al recogni�on and measurement

All financial assets are recognised ini�ally at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transac�on costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the 
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

 Financial assets at amor�sed cost

 Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amor�sed cost

A 'Financial asset' is measured at the amor�sed cost if both the following condi�ons are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold assets for collec�ng 
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. A�er ini�al measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amor�sed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisi�on and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amor�sa�on is included in finance income in the 
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category 
generally applies to trade receivables. For more informa�on on receivables, refer to Note 8.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading and con�ngent considera�on recognised by an acquirer in a business combina�on to 
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company 
may make an irrevocable elec�on to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in 
the fair value.
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The Company makes such elec�on on an instrument by‐instrument basis. The classifica�on is made 
on ini�al recogni�on and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumula�ve 
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the P&L.

Derecogni�on

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obliga�on to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass‐
through' arrangement; and either

(a) the Company has transferred substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the 
asset but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.

The Company follows “Simplified approach” for recogni�on of impairment loss allowance on trade 
receivables. 

The applica�on of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on life�me ECLs at each repor�ng date, right 
from its ini�al recogni�on.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12‐
month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from ini�al recogni�on in which 
case those are measured at life�me ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is 
required to adjust the loss allowance at the repor�ng date to the amount that is required to be 
recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

As a prac�cal expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss 
allowance on por�olio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically 
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward‐
looking es�mates. At every repor�ng date, the historical observed default rates are updated and 
changes in the forward‐looking es�mates are analysed.
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ 
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head 'other 
expenses' in the P&L.

 Financial liabili�es

Ini�al recogni�on and measurement

All financial liabili�es are recognised ini�ally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly a�ributable transac�on costs.

The Company's financial liabili�es include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdra�s.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabili�es depends on their classifica�on, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. A�er ini�al recogni�on, interest‐bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabili�es are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amor�sa�on process.

Amor�sed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisi�on and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amor�sa�on is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. 

Derecogni�on

A financial liability is derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an exis�ng financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substan�ally different terms, or the terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally modified, such an 
exchange or modifica�on is treated as the derecogni�on of the original liability and the recogni�on of 
a new liability. The difference in the respec�ve carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss.

K.  Investment in associates

An associate is an en�ty over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the 
power to par�cipate in the financial and opera�ng policy decisions of the investee, but is not control 
or joint control over those policies.

Such investments in which the Company has no significant influence are accounted under Ind AS 109 
at fair value and the Company may make an irrevocable elec�on to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. 

The Company makes such elec�on on an instrument by‐instrument basis. The classifica�on is made 
on ini�al recogni�on and is irrevocable.
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumula�ve 
gain or loss within equity.

L.  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value a�er providing for obsolescence. 
Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the 
es�mated selling price for inventories less all es�mated costs of comple�on and costs necessary to 
make the sale. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs 
including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to their respec�ve present loca�on 
and condi�on.

M.  Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short‐term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

N.  Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 Current Tax: 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'Profit 
Before Tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deduc�ble in other years and items that are never taxable or deduc�ble. The 
Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted 
by the end of the repor�ng period.

 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabili�es in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computa�on of 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabili�es are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deduc�ble temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deduc�ble temporary 
differences can be u�lised. Such deferred tax assets and liabili�es are not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from the ini�al recogni�on (other than in a business combina�on) of assets and 
liabili�es in a transac�on that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accoun�ng profit. In addi�on, 
deferred tax liabili�es are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the ini�al 
recogni�on of goodwill.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each repor�ng period and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabili�es and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 

period in which the liability is se�led or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have 

been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the end of the repor�ng period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabili�es and assets reflects the tax consequences that would 

follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the repor�ng period, to recover 

or se�le the carrying amount of its assets and liabili�es.

 Current and Deferred Tax for the Year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and 

deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respec�vely.

O. Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance 

that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all a�ached condi�ons.

Grants related to revenue items are presented as part of profit or loss under general heading such as 

other income or they are deducted in repor�ng the related expenses. Government grants rela�ng to 

the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non‐current liabili�es as deferred 

income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight‐line basis over the expected lives of the related 

assets and presented within other income.

Government grants that are receivable as compensa�on for expenses or losses already incurred or 

for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the company with no future related costs are 

recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below‐market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, 

measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on 

prevailing market interest rates.

P.  Provisions, Con�ngent liabili�es and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to se�le the obliga�on, and a 

reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on.

If the effect of the �me value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre‐tax 

rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Con�ngent liability is disclosed in the case of;
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 A present obliga�on arising from past events, when it is not probable that an ou�low of 
resources will not be required to se�le the obliga�on.

 Apresent obliga�on arising from past events, when no reliable es�mate is possible

 A possible obliga�on arising from past events, unless the probability of ou�low of resources is 
remote

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to par�es for 
comple�on of assets. Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es, con�ngent assets and commitments are 
reviewed at each repor�ng period.

Con�ngent asset

Wherever there is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non‐occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the en�ty. A con�ngent asset is disclosed when the inflow of economic benefit is 
probable.

Q.  Revenue Recogni�on
stEffec�ve 1  April, 2018 the Company has applied Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when 
revenue is to be recognised.

Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue. The impact of the adop�on of the standard on the financial 
statements of the Company is insignificant.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products being sold is transferred to our 
customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obliga�ons.

The Performance Obliga�ons in our contracts are fulfilled at the �me of dispatch, delivery or upon 
formal customer acceptance depending on customer terms.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the considera�on received or receivable, a�er deduc�on of any 
trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or du�es collected on behalf of the government such 
as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to es�mate the provision for such 
discounts and rebates.

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur.

Our customers have the contractual right to return goods only when authorised by the Company. An 
es�mate is made of goods that will be returned and a liability is recognised for this amount using a 
best es�mate based on accumulated experience.

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with the 
customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obliga�ons.

Interest income is recognized using the effec�ve interest rate (EIR) method.

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
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R.  Leases 
th

Ind AS 116 'Leases' was no�fied on 30  March, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 'Leases', including 
stappendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 1  April, 2019. Ind 

AS 116 sets out the principles for the recogni�on, measurement, presenta�on and disclosure of 
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on‐Balance Sheet model similar to 
the accoun�ng for finance leases under Ind AS 17.

The standard includes two recogni�on exemp�ons for lessees – leases of 'low‐value' assets (e.g., 
personal computers) and short‐term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the 
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the 
lease liability) and an asset represen�ng the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term 
(i.e., the right‐of‐use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on 
the lease liability and the deprecia�on expense on the right‐of‐use asset.

Lease is 'a contract or part of a contract that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) 
for a period of �me in exchange for considera�on'. An underlying asset has been defined to mean an

asset that is the subject of lease, for  which the right to use that asset has been provided by a lessor or

lessee.

Measurement of lease liability

On the date of transi�on lease liability is measured at present value of lease payments that are not 
paid as at the date of transi�on. 

A�er the transi�on date lease liability is measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest 
method.

Subsequently the company measures the lease liability by increasing the carrying the amount to 
reflect the interest on the lease liability; reducing the carrying amount of reflect the lease payments 
made; and re‐measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifica�ons or to 
reflect revised in‐substance fixed lease payments.

The Company uses the incremental borrowing rate which is the rate of interest that a lessee would 
have to pay over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of 
similar value of the right‐to‐use asset in a similar economic environment.

Right‐of‐use asset (ROU)

This is measured as lease liability adding any ini�al direct costs, prepaid lease payments, cost to 
dismantle or restore less lease incen�ves.

A�er the commencement date, the Company measures the ROU at cost:

 Less any accumulated deprecia�on and any accumulate impairment losses; and 

 Adjusted for any re‐measurement of the lease liability on subsequent to lease 
commencement date
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A Company applies the deprecia�on requirement in Ind AS 16 while deprecia�ng ROU asset. The said 
asset is depreciated over a period of lease term unless in case where ownership of underlying asset is 
transferred. In such case, the asset is depreciated over the useful life of underlying asset. Also, 
impairment requirements as per Ind AS 36 is applied by the Company.

S.  Foreign Currencies

(i)   Func�onal Currency:

The func�onal currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are 
presented in Indian rupees (rounded off to lakhs).

(ii)   Transac�ons and transla�ons:

In preparing the financial statements, transac�ons in currencies other than the Company's 
func�onal currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at 
the dates of the transac�ons. At the end of each repor�ng period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Non‐monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non‐
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which 
they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings rela�ng to assets 
under construc�on for future produc�ve use, which are included in the cost of those assets 
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency 
borrowings.

T.  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substan�al period of �me to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, un�l such �me as the assets are 
substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connec�on with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

U.  Employee Benefits

Short term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as 
short‐term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of Bonus, 
Ex‐gra�a, Leave Travel Allowance, Reimbursement of Medical Expenses, Personal Accident Policy, 
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Deposit Linked Insurance Policy are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the 
related services.

Post‐Employment Benefits:

(i )  Defined Contribu�on Plan:

The Company's contribu�on paid / payable during the year to Provident Fund, 
Superannua�on Fund and other welfare funds are considered as defined contribu�on plans.

The Contribu�on paid / payable under these plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the services. 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans:

The Gratuity Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corpora�on of India through a Trust is 
considered as defined benefit plan. The present value of the obliga�on is determined based on 
actuarial valua�on using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obliga�on under the defined benefit 
plan to recognise the obliga�on on net basis.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or se�lement of any defined benefit plan are recognised 
when the curtailment or se�lement occurs.

(iii) Long term Employee Benefits:

The obliga�on for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences, long 
service awards, etc. is recognised in the same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as 
men�oned in (b) (ii) above except that the actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

V.  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit or loss a�ributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. The Company has made preferen�al allotment of Share Warrants conver�ble into equity 
shares. The warrants that are yet to be converted are treated as dilu�ve shares.

W.  Es�mates and assump�ons 

The prepara�on of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
es�mates and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabili�es, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es. 

Uncertainty about these assump�ons and es�mates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabili�es affected in future periods.
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Revenue recogni�on: 

The Company applies judgement to determine whether each product or services promised to a 
customer are capable of being dis�nct, and are dis�nct in the context of the contract, if not, the 
promised product or services are combined and accounted as a single performance obliga�on. The 
Company allocates the arrangement considera�on to separately iden�fiable performance obliga�on 
deliverables based on their rela�ve stand‐alone selling price. Because the financial repor�ng of these 
contracts depends on es�mates that are assessed con�nually during the term of these contracts, 
recognized revenue and profit are subject to revisions as the contract progresses to comple�on.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment at the end of 
each repor�ng period. This reassessment may result in change in deprecia�on expense in future 
periods. 

Allowance for expected credit losses:

Note 2(J) describes the use of prac�cal expedient by compu�ng the expected credit loss allowance for 
trade receivables based on provision matrix. The expected credit allowance is based on the aging of 
the days receivables which are past due and the rates derived based on past history of defaults in the 
provision matrix.

Fair value of investments:

The Company has invested in the equity instruments of various companies. However, the percentage 
of shareholding of the Company in such investee companies is very low and hence, it has not been 
provided with future projec�ons including projected profit and loss account by those investee 
companies. Hence, the valua�on exercise carried out by the Company with the help of available 
historical annual reports and other informa�on in the public domain. 

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be u�lised. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the 
likely �ming and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Con�ngent liability judgement:

Note 26 describes claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt. Con�ngencies may arise 
from the ordinary course of business in rela�on to claims against the Company, including legal, 
contractor and other claims. By their nature, con�ngencies will be resolved only when one or more 
uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and poten�al 
quantum of con�ngencies inherently involve the exercise of significant judgement and the use of 
es�mates regarding the outcome of future events.
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X.  NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) no�fies new standards or amendments to the exis�ng 
standards under Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules as issued from �me to �me. For the 

styear ended 31  March, 2025, MCA has no�fied Ind AS – 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to 
stInd AS 116 – Leases, rela�ng to sale and leaseback transac�ons, applicable to the Group w.e.f. 1  

April, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evalua�on has 
determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

April, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evalua�on has 
determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
Note 4: Investment property

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Addi�ons
Disposals
Closing gross carrying amount
Accumulated deprecia�on
Opening accumulated deprecia�on
Deprecia�on charge
Closing accumulated deprecia�on
Net carrying amount

6.27
‐ 
‐

6.27

‐
‐
‐

6.27 

7.05
‐

0.78
6.27 

‐
‐
‐

6.27 

Fair value  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Investment proper�es                    40.50                    40.50 

Es�ma�on of fair value  

 The Company obtains independent valua�ons for its investment proper�es at least annually. The best evidence 
of fair value is current prices in an ac�ve market for similar proper�es. Where such informa�on is not available, the 
Company considers informa�on from a variety of sources including :

 Current prices in an ac�ve market for proper�es of different nature or recent prices of similar proper�es in less 
ac�ve markets, adjusted to reflect those differences

 The main input used is the price per square metre as per state government's registra�on and stamps 
department rate for the property. All resul�ng fair value es�mates for investment proper�es are included in level 2.

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Investment in Other Companies
Investment in equity instruments at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (fully paid)
Quoted
2,44,749 (March 31, 2024 : 2,44,749) Equity Shares of 
Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐Strength Hypo Ltd
839 (March 31, 2024 : 839) Equity Shares of Indian Bank
Unquoted
98,62,400 (March 31, 2024 : 98,62,400) Equity Shares of 
Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd (APGPCL)
20,91,578 (March 31, 2024 : 20,91,578) Equity Shares of 
Brilliant Bio‐Pharma Pvt Ltd.

              
1,205.14 

                     4.55 
 

9.86

2,300.74
3,520.29 
3,520.29

Note 5: Financial assets
5 (a) Non‐current Investments (` in lakhs)

1,203.92
4.37 

9.86

2,097.64
3,315.79
3,315.79 

Total equity investments
Total non‐current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of un‐quoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

1,209.69 
2,310.60

‐

1,208.29
2,107.50

‐

(` in lakhs)
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Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Security Deposit with Southern Power Distribu�on Company of AP Ltd
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity
Rent advance
Total

5(b) Other non‐current financial assets (` in lakhs)

4,697.38
148.91

9.66
4,855.95 

4,072.38
64.14
10.07

4,146.59

Par�culars

Par�culars

 As at 31st March, 2025 

 As at 31st March, 2025 

 As at 31st March, 2024 

 As at 31st March, 2024 

Capital Advances
Amount paid under protest
Advances to related par�es
Total

Raw materials
Work‐in‐progress
Finished goods
Stores and spares, Chemicals, fuel and packing materials 
Scrap and other disposals
Goods in transit :
Finished goods
Raw materials
Stores and spares
Total

Note 6: Other non‐current assets

Note 7: Inventories

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

1,307.57
5.00

‐
1,312.57 

5,980.68
412.85

1,006.98
5,024.65

29.74 

364.97
690.07
624.41

14,134.35

1,333.40
5.00

410.00
1,748.40

4,502.98
437.47

1,368.54
5,813.91

96.00 

                        332.00
‐

15.07
12,565.97

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Unsecured‐considered good*
Unsecured‐considered doub�ul
Less: Bad debts wri�en off/Provision for ECL

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and
doub�ul debts a�er write off of bad debts)**
Total trade receivables

Note 8 (a): Trade receivables (` in lakhs)

25,055.65
231.49

(126.80)
25,160.34 

               (104.69)
25,055.65 

18,803.13
124.37
(4.40)

18,923.10
            

   (119.97)
18,803.13

(*Refer note 31(b) for related party trade receivables).

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

165 Annual Report 2024-25

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025



No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with 
any other person.

No interest is charged on Trade Receivables for delay in payment beyond credit period from the due date of the 
Invoice.

The Company has used a prac�cal expedient by compu�ng the expected credit loss allowance for Trade Receivables 
based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for 
forward looking informa�on. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are 
due and the rates are given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the Repor�ng Period is as 
follows :

Aging:  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

From due date to 30 days
31‐60 days past due
61‐90 days past due
91‐180 days past due
more than 180 days past due

0.25%
0.50%
1.00%
5.00%

10.00%

0.25%
0.50%
1.00%
5.00%

10.00%

Aging of receivables

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Below due date
From due date to 30 days
31‐60 days past due
61‐90 days past due
91‐180 days past due
more than 180 days past due
Total trade receivables (before impairment allowance)

(` in lakhs)

15,359.32
5,732.64
2,188.93

752.94
815.25
311.26

25,160.34

7,393.91
5,317.11
3,060.11
1,981.42

909.93
260.62

18,923.10

13.29
15.30
19.81
45.50
26.06

119.97

14.33
10.94

7.53
40.76
31.13

104.69

 ECL  ECL 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Balance at the beginning of the year
Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance on trade receivables
calculated at life�me expected credit losses
Bad debts wri�en off
Balance at the end of the year

Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance (ECL) :
(` in lakhs)

119.97

111.52
126.80
104.69

115.57

4.40
‐ 

119.97

**The allowance for expected credit losses for the year includes addi�onal provision for doub�ul debts apart 
from provision made based on above matrix.
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Par�culars

Par�culars

Less than 
6 months

6 months 
‐ 1 Year

1‐2 
years

2‐3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

( )  Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 
      significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables – considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 
      increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 
     significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables – considered good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables – which have significant 
      increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired

Ageing Schedule

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

9,489.76
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

Below
Due Date

15,359.32
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

Below
Due Date

7,393.91
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

292.07 
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

1.18 
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

9.17 
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

8.84
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

25,160.34 
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐

Outstanding for folowing periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(` in lakhs)

Less than 
6 months

6 months 
‐ 1 Year

1‐2 
years

2‐3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

11,268.57

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐

74.87

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐

149.58 

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐

29.99 

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐

6.18 

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐

 18,923.10 

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐

(` in lakhs)

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Balances with banks in current account 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand
Total

(` in lakhs)

2,397.80
914.58

4.89
3,317.27

382.06
720.32

3.38
1,105.76

Note 8(b): Cash and cash equivalents

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Deposits with maturity of more than three months but 
less than 12 months
Margin money with banks
Total

(` in lakhs)

1,285.53

5,012.01

6,297.54

Note 8(c): Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

1,253.87

1,880.75

3,134.62

i
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Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Tender/Security/Telephone Deposits
Sales tax, Power and export incen�ves receivable
Interest receivable on deposits
Advances to related par�es
Claims receivables from power distribu�on companies
Total

(` in lakhs)
Note 8(d): Other financial assets

363.63
7,398.51

195.61
107.00

1,047.90
9,112.65

348.40
8,788.79

93.65
136.44
985.45

10,352.73

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Advances to related par�es
Advance to Suppliers
Advance to Employees
Advance to Contractors & Transporters
Prepaid Insurance and other Expenses
Advance Excise Du�es/CENVAT/VAT/Service tax 
Other Advances
Total

Note 9: Other current assets
(` in lakhs)

‐
163.55

89.79
263.63
327.13

1.07
186.18

1,031.35

58.49
1,346.94

123.57
228.06
195.39

1.60
375.06

2,329.11

Break up of financial assets carried at amor�sed cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income

Par�culars As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

Financial assets carried at amor�sed cost
‐ Trade receivables 
‐ Cash and cash equivalents 
‐ Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 
‐ Other financial assets
                                                                                          (A)

(` in lakhs)

4,855.95
4,855.95

Non‐Current

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

Current

4,146.59
4,146.59

25,055.65
3,317.27
6,297.54
9,112.65

43,783.11

18,803.13
1,105.76
3,134.62

10,352.73
33,396.24

Financial assets carried at fair value through other 
comprehensive income
 ‐ Investments 3,520.29

3,520.29

8,376.25

3,315.79

3,315.79 ‐

‐

‐

‐

(B)

Total financial assets                                                 (A+B) 7,462.39 43,783.12 33,396.25
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Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

(a) Authorised Share Capital :
13,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/‐ each
(as at 31st march 2024‐ 13,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/‐ each)
(b) Issued:
10,72,69,886 Equity shares of Rs.10/‐ each issued 
(as at 31st march 2024‐ 10,72,69,886 Equity Shares of Rs.10/‐ each)
(c) Subscribed and fully paid
10,70,89,800 Equity shares of Rs.10/‐ each fully paid
(as at 31st march 2024‐10,70,89,800 Equity Shares of Rs.10/‐ each)
(d) Subscribed & Not Fully Paid (forefeited)
1,80,086 Equity shares of Rs.10/‐ each
(as at 31st march 2024‐ 1,80,086 Equity shares of Rs.10/‐ each) 

Note 10: Equity share capital and other equity

10(a) Equity share capital

13,000.00 13,000.00

        10,726.99 10,726.99

        10,708.98         10,708.98 

4.28 4.28 

10,713.26 10,713.26 Total 

Reconcilia�on of the number of equity shares outstanding

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

At the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Less: Bought back during the year 
At the end of the year 

(Shares in Numbers)

10,70,89,800
‐

    10,70,89,800

10,70,89,800
 ‐

   10,70,89,800 

(` in lakhs)

Terms/ rights a�ached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is en�tled to one vote per share.  

In the event of liquida�on of the company, the holders of equity shares will be en�tled to receive remaining 
assets of the company, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts. The distribu�on will be in propor�on to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Name of the shareholder
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Brilliant Industries Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐Strength Hypo Limited
TGV Projects & Investments Private Limited
Sri. T.G. Venkatesh
Total

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

2,65,17,999
2,09,23,621
1,19,33,107

53,90,613
6,47,65,340

24.76
19.54
11.14

5.03
60.47

24.76
19.18
10.92

5.03
59.89

2,65,14,230
2,05,44,496
1,16,94,248

53,90,613
6,41,43,587
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Name of the shareholder
No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year

Brilliant Industries Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐Strength Hypo Limited
TGV Projects & Investments Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Dutch Kassenbouw Private Limited
Gowri Gopal Hospitals Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Galaxy Projects Private Limited
TGV Securi�es Private Limited
T G Venkatesh
T G Rajyalakshmi
T G Bharath
Jyothsna S Mysore
Boda Mourya

Disclosures of Shareholding of Promoters ‐ Shares held by the Promoters as at 31st March, 2025

2,65,14,230
2,05,44,496
1,16,94,248

18,81,109
10,05,375

54,662
14,150

53,90,613
3,22,384
1,29,744

13,361
92,800

3,769
3,79,125
2,38,859

32,469
18,400

‐
180

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

24.76
19.54
11.14

1.76
0.96
0.05
0.01
5.03
0.30
0.12
0.01

                0.09

2,65,17,999
2,09,23,621
1,19,33,107

19,13,578
10,23,775

54,662
14,330

53,90,613
3,22,384
1,29,744

13,361
92,800

Change during 
the year

No.of shares at 
the end of the year

% of 
Total Share

Name of the shareholder
No.of shares at the 

beginning of the year

Brilliant Industries Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐Strength Hypo Limited
TGV Projects & Investments Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Dutch Kassenbouw Private Limited
Gowri Gopal Hospitals Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Galaxy Projects Private Limited
TGV Securi�es Private Limited
T G Venkatesh
T G Rajyalakshmi
T G Bharath
Jyothsna S Mysore
Boda Mourya

Disclosures of Shareholding of Promoters ‐ Shares held by the Promoters as at 31st March, 2024

2,65,14,230
2,05,44,496
1,16,94,248

18,81,109
10,05,375

54,662
14,150

53,90,613
3,22,384
1,29,744

13,361
92,800

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

24.76
19.18
10.92

1.76
0.94
0.05
0.01
5.03
0.30
0.12
0.01

                0.09

2,65,14,230
2,05,44,496
1,16,94,248

18,81,109
10,05,375

54,662
14,150

53,90,613
3,22,384
1,29,744

13,361
92,800

Change during 
the year

No.of shares at 
the end of the year

% of 
Total Share

 As per records of the Company including its register of share holders/members and other declara�ons 
received from share holders regarding beneficial interest, the above share holding represents legal ownership 
of shares as at balance sheet date.

 The Company has allo�ed 50,86,765 equity shares of Rs. 10/‐ each on 14th March, 2020 at a premium 
of Rs. 27.01 to promoters group by conversion out of 1,52,73,682 share warrants allo�ed on 27th January, 2019 
on preferen�al basis.

 The Company has  allo�ed 53,54,490 equity shares of Rs.10/‐ each on 20th May, 2020 at a premium of 
Rs. 27.01 to promoters group by conversion out of 1,52,73,682 share warrants allo�ed on 27th January, 2019 on 
preferen�al basis.
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Dividends declared and Paid :

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

During the FY 2024‐25: The shareholders of the Company at its 42nd 
Annual General Mee�ng held on 28th September, 2024 approved 
payment of dividend of Rs. 1/‐ per share of face value of Rs. 10/‐ (10%) 
for the year ended 31st March, 2024, and dividend was also paid 
during the year FY 2023‐24 at face value of Rs. 10/‐ (10%).

         (1,070.90)         (1,070.90)

The board of directors at its mee�ng held on 27th May, 2025 has proposed dividend of Rs. 1070.90 lakhs as at 
Rs.1/‐ per share of face value Rs. 10 (10%) for the financial year ending 31st March, 2025 subject to approval of 
members at the ensuing annual general mee�ng to be held on 28th september, 2025 and is not recognised as a 
liability as at balance sheet date.

Dividends proposed

(` in lakhs)

10(b) Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

(i) Share premium

Par�culars

Par�culars

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

 As at 31st 
March, 2024 

 As at 31st 
March, 2024 

(i) Share premium
(ii) General reserve
(iii) Retained earnings
(iv) Reserve for other comprehensive income items
Total

Opening balance

Issue of equity shares by exercise of share warrants

Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

7,333.22
46,000.07
58,372.90
(4,594.12)

107,112.07

7,333.22

‐

7,333.22

7,333.22

‐

7,333.22

7,333.22
44,500.07
51,780.27
(4,747.15)
98,866.41

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Opening balance

Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss

Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

44,500.07

1,500.00

46,000.07

43,500.07

1,000.00

44,500.07

(ii) General Reserve
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Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Opening balance

Deferred tax recognised pertaining to previous years

Net profit for the period

Transfer to General Reserve

Transfer from Reserve for other comprehensive Income

Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares

Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

51,780.27

‐

9,211.87

(1,500.00)

(48.34)

(1,070.90)

58,372.90

47,704.84

103.93

6,072.10

(1,000.00)

(29.70)

(1,070.90)

51,780.27

(iii) Retained earnings

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Change in fair value of FVOCI ‐ equity instruments (Net of taxes)

 ‐ Opening balance  

‐  Deferred tax recognised pertaining to previous years  

‐ Net gains/(losses) on FVTOCI equity securi�es during the year  

‐ Closing balance  

Other Comprehensive income arising from actuarial

 gain/loss on defined benefit obliga�on (Net of taxes) 

 ‐ Opening balance  

‐ Gains/(losses) on arising from actuarial gain/loss on gratuity  

‐ Transfer to retained earnings  

‐ Closing balance  

Total Closing balance 

(` in lakhs)

(4,747.15)

‐

153.03

(4,594.12)

                      ‐

(48.34)

48.34

‐ 

(4,594.12)

(4,593.17)

(319.16)

165.18

(4,747.15)

                       ‐

(29.70)

29.70

‐

(4,747.15)

(iv) Reserve for items of Other Comprehensive income

Nature and purpose of  reserves

Securi�es premium reserve

Securi�es premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is u�lised in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Fair value of Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securi�es in 
other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve 
within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity 
securi�es are derecognised.

General Reserve

The General Reserve is used from �me to �me to transfer profits from Retained Earnings for appropria�on 
purpose. As General Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of Equity to another and is not an 
item of other comprehensive income, items included in the General reserve will not be reclasified subsequently 
to profit or loss.
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Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

 Non‐current borrowings  

Secured  

Term Loans  

From Banks *   

LC payable to banks for capital good recieved  

Total 

(` in lakhs)

2,712.45

3,874.38

6,586.83

5,093.73

2,854.07

7,947.80

 Note 11(a): Long Term Borrowings 

There is no default as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March 2024, in repayment of loans and interest payments on 
Term Loans.

Terms of repayment

* Indian Bank Term Loan (Rs. 10000 Lakhs sanc�oned for Chloromethanes expansion is repayable in 20 
quarterly instalment from June 2022 at interest rate of 1 Year MCLR+0.70%).

Security

Term loans

The above Term Loan from Banks i.e., Indian Bank is secured by first pari passu charge on all fixed assets of the 
company including fixed assets of Chlorometahnes expansion project (excluding specific LC charges) and 
personal guarantee of Shri T.G.Venkatesh.

Le�er of credit

Le�ers of credit for capital goods secured by exclusive charge on specific asset procured and guaranteed by    
Shri T.G.Venkatesh.

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Fuel power purchase/true‐up charges payable measured at amor�sed cost  

Deferred liability on power charges  

Liabili�es for future outcome of disputed dues considering present obliga�on 

and probable future ou�lows:  

Customs duty payable recognised  

Fuel surcharge adjustment(FSA) and Electricity duty payable  

Surcharges/Interest payable on power charges, excise

duty, sales tax and other dues .

 Total 

(` in lakhs)

1,366.29

133.15 

            1,097.12

551.44

6,461.44

9,609.44

 289.66

44.70 

            1,097.12

551.44

6,295.55

8,278.47

 Note 11(b): Other non‐current financial liabili�es 
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Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

 Secured  

From banks  

Working capital demand loans  

Current maturi�es of long term debt from banks

Cash Credits   

Le�ers of Credit issued by Banks to Creditors

(Payable to Banks on due dates of Le�ers of Credit)  

Total 

(` in lakhs)

250.00

2,400.00

3,346.70

20,492.14

26,488.84

‐

2,000.00

4,523.76

15,627.19

22,150.95

 Note 11 (c) Current borrowings 

There is no default as at 31st March, 2025, 31st March 2024, in repayment of loans and interest payments on 

Working capital Loans, Le�ers of Credit issued and Bills discounted with Banks and others.

 Security 

a) Short Term Loans from Banks:

The above Working Capital Demand Loans and Cash Credits are with various banks at interest rate of MCLR plus 

Spread. Spread varies from 0.20% to 1.10%.

The Working Capital Demand Loans, Cash Credits and Bills discounted by Banks are secured by 1st pari passu 

charge by way of hypotheca�on of inventories and receivable of the Company and further secured by 2nd pari 

passu charge on land, building and Plant and machinery and guaranteed by Shri T.G.Venkatesh.

b) Le�ers of Credit from Banks:

The above Le�er of credit facility availed from Banks were secured by 1st pari passu by way of hypotheca�on of 

inventories and receivable of the Company and further secured by 2nd pari passu charge on land, building and 

Plant and machinery and Le�ers of credit for capital goods secured by exclusive charge on specific asset 

procured and guaranteed by Shri T.G. Venkatesh.

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

 For Suppliers*  

For Services*  

Total 

(` in lakhs)

            7,729.02

2,030.97

9,759.99

            1,041.61

8,718.38

3,000.63

1,755.94

4,756.57

692.83

4,063.74

 Note 11(d): Trade payables 

 Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises             

Dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 

 *(Refer Note 35 for details of Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”) and  Refer Note 31(b) for related party trade payables. 
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Ageing Schedules  
As at 31st March, 2025 

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Secured  
Interest accrued but not due on term loans  
UnSecured  
Un‐claimed preference shares redemp�on warrants  
Others  
Employees salaries, bonus and PF/ ESI recoveries and contribu�ons to 
superannua�on fund  
Payable for capital goods  
Reten�on money  
Trade deposits from dealers/customers  
Power charges and other expenses payable  
Deferred liability on power charges  
Total 

(` in lakhs)

55.94

157.45 

707.37
409.45
259.92

‐
9,046.36

571.39
11,207.88

61.01 

145.08

689.62
892.95
277.28
300.00

8,504.48
178.80

11,049.22

 Note 11(e): Other curent financial liabili�es 

There were no current maturi�es of finance lease obliga�ons, interest accrued and due on borrowings, unpaid dividends, 
unpaid matured debentures or deposits and interest accrued thereon, income received in advance and applica�on money 
received for allotment of securi�es and due for refund.

1,041.61

8,718.38

‐

‐

9,759.99

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

 < 1 Year  1‐2 Years 

(  ) Micro and Small Enterprises

(ii) Others  

(iii) Disputed dues‐MSE  

(iv) Disputed dues Others   

Total

1,041.61

8,718.38

‐

‐

9,759.99

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

(` in lakhs)

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 2‐3 Years  > 3 Years  
TotalPar�culars

 As at 31st March, 2024 

(ii) Others  

(iii) Disputed dues‐MSE  

(iv) Disputed dues Others   

Total

681.38

4,063.74

11.45

‐

4,756.57

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

11.45

‐

11.45

(` in lakhs)

 2‐3 Years  > 3 Years  
Total

681.38

4,063.74

‐

‐

4,745.12

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

 < 1 Year  1‐2 Years 
Par�culars

i

(  ) Micro and Small Enterprisesi

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
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Par�culars

Par�culars

Par�culars

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

 As at 31st 
March, 2024 

 As at 31st 
March, 2024 

 As at 31st 
March, 2024 

The balance comprises temporary differences a�ributable to:  

Deferred tax liabili�es  

Property, plant and equipment  

Ind AS 116‐ROU 

Less:  

Deferred tax assets  

Allowable  U/s 43B of IT Act in future years  

Borrowing costs measured at amor�sed cost  

Power True‐up charges payable measured at amor�sed cost  

Provision for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)  

Right‐of‐use assets  

FFPCA Charges  

FVTOCI equity securi�es   

Employee benefits ‐ Gratuity  

Net deferred tax liability 

Opening balance as at the beginning of the year  

Recognised in statement of profit and loss during the period  

Recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) during the period on 

defined benefit gratuity plan  

Recognised in retained earnings (refer note 2(W))  

FVTOCI  on equity securi�es   

Closing balance as at end of the year 

 Statutory dues towards GST,TDS etc.,  

Advances from customers  

Total 

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

12,090.14

442.04 

          (1,083.72)

4.43

(9.91)

(26.35)

(612.87)

(23.02)

(1,545.13)

(98.97)

9,136.65

8,210.36

891.08

(16.26)

‐

51.47

9,136.65

1,258.57

2,239.81

3,498.38 

7,440.99

508.58

(9.99)

215.23

55.55

8,210.36

            1,778.15

3,331.84

5,109.99

11,182.84                

306.98 

(1,086.25)

9.15

(30.39)

(30.19)

(462.47)

‐

(1,596.59)

(82.72)

8,210.36

 Note 12: Deferred tax liability 

 Reconcilia�on of net deferred tax liabili�es 

 Note 13: Other current liabili�es 

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 
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Par�culars

Par�culars

 As at 31st 
March, 2024 

As at 31st 
March, 2024

As at 31st 
March, 2024

Current tax liability  

Provision for income tax  

Current tax asset  

Tax deducted at source  

Advance tax  

Closing balance 

Financial liabili�es carried at amor�sed cost 

  ‐ Borrowings 

  ‐ Lease liabili�es 

  ‐ Trade and other payables 

  ‐ Other financial liabili�es 

     Total financial liabili�es

(` in lakhs)

2,425.16 

               188.20

2,220.00

16.96

26,488.84

480.93

9,760.00

11,207.88

47,937.65      

6,586.83

1,954.18 

‐

9,609.44

18,150.45

1,761.29 

               

152.20

1,500.00

109.09

22,150.95

398.13

4,756.57

11,049.22

38,354.88

7,947.80

1,439.42 

‐

8,278.47

17,665.68

 Note 15: Current tax liability (Net) 

Break up of financial liabili�es carried at amor�sed cost

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March,  2025

Par�culars

Sale of products

Other opera�ng revenue

   Export incen�ves

   Freight/handing charges Receipts

Total

(` in lakhs)

1,73,906.32 

154.57

843.17

1,74,904.06

1,53,462.22 

115.07

1,018.35

1,54,595.64

Note 16: Revenue from opera�ons

 Year ended 
31st  March, 2024 

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

(` in lakhs)

Non‐Current Current

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Provision for Leave obliga�ons  

Provision for Gratuity  

Total 

(` in lakhs)

                 31.87

163.87

195.74

                 14.20

124.68

138.88

 Note 14: Provisions 
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Par�culars

Par�culars
 Year ended 

31st  March, 2024 

 Year ended 
31st  March, 2024 

Consump�on of raw materials 

Consump�on of chemicals

Consump�on of packing materials

Total

Opening Stock

Finished goods

Stock‐in‐process

Scrap & disposables

Total Opening Stock

Closing Stock

Finished goods

Stock‐in‐process

Scrap & disposables

Total Closing Stock

Total changes in inventories of work‐in‐progress, stock‐in‐trade and 

finished goods

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

47,339.98

2,548.88

1,735.21

51,624.07

1,700.53

437.47

96.00

2,234.00

1,371.95

412.85

29.74

1,814.54

419.47 

45,449.38

2,397.81

1,771.77 

49,618.96

1,403.05

528.94

97.57 

2,029.56

1,700.53

437.47

96.00

2,234.00

(204.44)

Note 18(a): Cost of  materials consumed

Note 18(b): Changes in inventories of finished goods, work‐in‐progress 

and stock‐in‐trade

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

Par�culars

Interest on bank and other deposits and customers

Dividend income

Net gain on foreign exchange  

Rent receipts 

Creditors wri�en back

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Other receipts

Amor�sa�on of deferred power cost

Total

(` in lakhs)

701.63

7.44

7.24

14.30

30.70

143.87

180.18

332.17

1,417.53

617.45

9.86

‐

13.79

103.69

269.69

626.47

178.80

1,819.75

Note 17: Other income

 Year ended 
31st  March, 2024 

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 
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Par�culars
 Year ended 

31st  March, 2024 

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and allowances

Contribu�on to ESI & Provident Fund

 Contribu�on to Gratuity & Superannua�on schemes

Staff welfare expenses

Total

(` in lakhs)

6,045.45

188.57

171.19

928.71

7,333.92

5,851.30

185.35

145.84

740.81

6,923.30

Note 19: Employee Benefit Expense

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

Par�culars
 Year ended 

31st  March, 2024 

Interest expenses

       On Term loans

       On Working capital loans/Cash credits/NBFC loan

       On Purchase/ Sale bills discoun�ng 

       Interest on Trade deposits

       On Others

Other borrowing cost

       Working capital renewal and loan processing charges

       Interest on lease liability

       Interest on deferred power charges payable

Total

(` in lakhs)

607.08

385.27

790.81

23.27

15.59 

136.25

253.36

342.27

2,553.90

757.93

320.21

654.04

5.18

3.83 

                   183.49

234.33

209.71

2,368.72

Note 20: Finance cost

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 
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Par�culars
 Year ended 

31st  March, 2024 

Consump�on of stores and spares

Rent including lease Rents

Insurance 

Repairs & Maintenance  

    a) Buildings  

    b) Plant  & Machinery  

    c) Others

Rates & Taxes 

Processing charges

Traveling and conveyance 

Prin�ng and sta�onery 

Postage, Telegrams and Telephones

Directors si�ng fee

Directors travelling

Remunera�on to Auditors

     Audit Fee                 

     Tax Audit Fee           

     Cost Audit Fee 

Freight inward & material handling charges

Freight outward & ocean freight

Commission on sales

Other selling expenses

Adver�sement

Fee and expenses

Bank charges

Service charges

Legal expenses

Research and Development /Lab expenses

Water charges

Provision for Bad Debts/Expected credit loss

Net Loss(Gain) on exchange fluctua�ons 

Other expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 

Dona�ons

Amounts charge off

Total

(` in lakhs)

2,774.25

382.61

209.59

914.20

3,337.00

915.73

12.96

4.58

523.21

47.77

35.97

1.86

3.65

 

28.00

5.00

2.00

1,398.94

14,167.00

565.48

326.99

25.22

108.37

452.10

2,196.79

105.23

11.47

456.10

111.53

‐

662.89

297.57

123.79 

43.15

30,251.00

2,975.36

339.46

399.70 

743.40

3,076.63

905.94

13.14

1.03

607.88

46.75

33.36

2.04

2.65

 

20.00

6.00

1.75

1,371.18

10,098.80

188.22

251.88

45.61

142.19

164.00

2,124.08

81.04

13.49

450.99

4.40

76.35

625.81

551.75

52.46

84.75

25,502.09

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

Note 21: Other Expenses
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Par�culars

Par�culars

 Year ended 
31st  March, 2024 

 Year ended 
31st  March, 2024 

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 

Amount of opening unspent CSR 

Amount of expenditure incurred

Shor�all / (Excess) at the end of the year

Nature of CSR ac�vi�es:

      Provision of drinking water

      Social projects

      Eradica�on of poverty

      Empowerment of women & educa�on

      Health related

      Educa�on to public

      Helping poor & old age

      CSR on going projects undertaken by dona�on to approved agencies

      Buildings for women empowerment

      Buildings for feeding needy people

Total CSR expenses

a) Income tax expense

Current tax on profits for the year (Net of tax on Discon�nuing opera�ons)

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Total current tax expenses

Deferred tax 

Decrease/(Increase) in deferred tax assets

(Decrease)/Increase in deferred tax liabili�es

Total Deferred tax expense/(benefit)

Income tax expenses

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

486.28

‐

297.57

(59.49)

14.24

32.88

2.76

‐

98.80

9.11

10.78

 

129.00

‐

297.57

2,420.00

‐

2,420.00 

                     (16.21)

907.29

891.08

3,311.08

464.43

‐

551.75

(248.19)

45.97

60.15

3.73

21.49

228.41

‐

‐

   

                   142.00

50.00 

                   551.75

1,750.00

‐

1,750.00

(19.29)

527.87

508.58

2,258.58

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses

Note 22: Tax Expenses

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

181 Annual Report 2024-25

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025



Par�culars
 Year ended 

31st  March, 2024 

Profit/(loss) before tax from con�nuing opera�ons
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discon�nuing opera�ons
Total profit/(loss) before taxes
Increase/decrease in net profit before taxes on account of:
     Exempt income
     Deprecia�on as per books (including discon�nuing opera�ons)
     Deprecia�on as per income tax act, 1961
     Expenses not allowed under income tax act, 1961
     Ind AS adjustments
     Income considered separetely/Dona�ons
Profit/(Loss) under income from business
Applicable tax rate under normal Provisions
Tax under normal provisions of Income tax act, 1961 (A)
Interest provided for 
Tax under normal provisions of Income tax act, 1961 (A)

(` in lakhs)

12,554.87
(31.91)

12,522.95 

‐
8,807.52

(12,048.19)
597.18

(130.95)
(165.51)
9,583.00

25.17%
2,411.85

8.15
2,420.00

8,366.38
(35.71)

8,330.68

‐
8,349.84

(10,227.10)
622.40

(113.30)
(13.79)

6,948.72
25.17%

1,748.85
1.15

1,750.00

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

Par�culars
 Year ended 

31st  March, 2024 

Re‐measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan

Tax effect on gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan

Net gains/(losses) on FVTOCI equity securi�es

Tax effect on FVTOCI equity securi�es

Total

(` in lakhs)

(64.60)

16.26

204.50

(51.47)

104.69

(39.69)

9.99

220.73

(55.55)

135.48

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

Note 23: Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Par�culars
 Year ended 

31st  March, 2024 

EPS from con�nuing opera�ons   
Net Profit A�er Tax available for Equity Shareholders   
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10/‐ each   
Basic Earning per Share   
Diluted Earning per Share
EPS from discon�nuing opera�ons   
Net Profit A�er Tax available for Equity Shareholders   
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10/‐ each   
Basic Earning per Share   Diluted Earning per Share
Diluted Earning per Share
EPS from con�nuing & discon�nuing opera�ons   
Net Profit A�er Tax available for Equity Shareholders   
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10/‐ each   
Basic Earning per Share   
Diluted Earning per Share

(` in lakhs)

9,235.75
10,70,89,800

8.62
8.62

(23.88)
10,70,89,800

(0.02)
(0.02)

9,211.87
10,70,89,800

8.60
8.60

6,098.82
10,70,89,800

5.70
5.70 

        
           (26.72)
10,70,89,800

(0.02)
(0.02)

                6,072.10
10,70,89,800

5.68
5.68

 Year ended 
31st March, 2025 

Note 24: Earning per share (EPS)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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A)  Defined Contribu�on Plans
The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannua�on Fund contribu�ons which are defined contribu�on plans, for 

qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs 

to fund the benefits. The Company recognized Rs. 182.52 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.179.66 Lakhs) for Provident Fund 

contribu�ons and Rs. 71.56 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.59.97 Lakhs) for Superannua�on Fund contribu�ons in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss. The contribu�on payable to these plans by the Company is at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.  

B)  Defined Benefit Plan
The Company's obliga�on towards the Gratuity Fund is a defined benefit plan and is funded with Life Insurance Corpora�on 

of India. The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefits scheme and the amount recognized in 

financial statement as per Actuarial Valua�on:

25.  Employee Benefits:                                                    

Par�culars
As at 31st

March, 2025
As at 31st 

March, 2024

(` in lakhs)

1. Changes in present value of Obliga�ons
    Present value at the beginning of the year
    Interest cost
    Current Service Cost
    Benefits paid
    Actuarial (gain)/loss on obliga�ons
    Present value at the end of the year

1184.51
85.88
83.72

(86.13)
75.17

1343.15

1084.96
81.37
75.07

(100.63)
43.74

1184.51

2. Changes in fair value of planned assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Contribu�ons
Benefits paid  
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

1059.83
71.53

123.47
(86.13)

10.58
1179.28

1005.78
72.92
77.70

(100.63)
4.06

1059.83

3. Amount recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of obliga�ons as at the end of year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of year
Net Liability/(Asset) recognized in balance sheet

1343.15
1179.28

163.87

1184.51
1059.83

124.68

4. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
    Current service cost
    Interest cost
    Expected return on plan assets
    Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss

83.72
85.88

(71.53)
98.07

75.07
81.37

(72.92)
83.52

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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Par�culars
As at 31st

March, 2025
As at 31st 

March, 2024

5. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obliga�ons
Actuarial (gain)/loss – plan assets
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year

75.17
(10.58)

64.59

43.74
(4.06)
39.68

6. Assump�ons
Discount rate  
Salary escala�on
Expected rate of return

6.75%
7.00%
6.75%

7.25%
7.00%
7.25%

Significant actuarial assump�ons for the determina�on of the defined benefit obliga�on are discount rate and expected 

salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensi�vity analysis presented below 

may not be representa�ve of the actual change in the defined benefit obliga�on as it is unlikely that the change in the 

assump�on would occur in isola�on of one another as some of the assump�ons may be correlated. The result of the 

sensi�vity analysis are given below:

Sensi�vity analysis :

Period
As at 31st

March, 2025
As at 31st 

March, 2024

1343.15 Lakhs @ 
Salary Increase Rate: 7%, 
and discount rate: 6.75%

1184.51 Lakhs @ salary 
increase rate: 7% and 
discount rate: 7.25%

Defined benefit obliga�on (base)

Liability with x% increase in discount rate 1263.50; x=1.00% 1113.14; x=1.00%

Liability with x% decrease in discount rate 1432.65; x=1.00% 1264.55; x=1.00%

Liability with x% increase in salary growth rate 1431.55; x=1.00% 1263.95; x=1.00%

Liability with x% decrease in salary growth rate 1263.00; x=1.00% 1112.32; x=1.00%

Liability with x% increase in withdrawal rate 1341.54; x=1.00% 1185.09; x=1.00%

1344.90; x=1.00% 1183.85; x=1.00%Liability with x% decrease in withdrawal rate

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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26.  Con�ngent Liabili�es and Commitments:

   (to the extent not provided for)

Par�culars

a) Le�ers of Credits opened with Banks

b) Unexpired Bank guarantees (net of margin money paid)

c) Capital Commitments: 
    Es�mated amount of contracts remaining to be
    executed on Capital Account (Net of advances)

d) Claims against the company not acknowledged as 

    debts and not provided for being disputed 

    and pending in appeals/ assessments in respect of:

T he Fuel Surcharge Adjustment (FSA) charges for the 
year 2008‐09 and 2009‐10 levied by APCPDCL was 
contested by the Industrial units including the company 
before Hon'ble High Court of AP and received favorable 
order for 2008‐09 and the ma�er was referred to 
Supreme Court and the same is pending.

ii)  Demand raised by APCPDCL, Kurnool categoriza�on of 

quota ma�ers and ma�er is pending before High Court 

of Andhra Pradesh.

iii) Claim from M/s APTRANSCO towards transmission 

charges of Rs. 204.72 lakhs of Wind Mills power 

genera�on (Rs. 75 lakhs paid).

iv)  Demand in respect of Electricity Duty raised during the 

period April, 2023 to August, 2023 by APSPDCL 

contested by the company and the ma�er is pending 

before High Court of Andhra Pradesh.

As at 31st
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

1366.44

532.01

8803.45

1,523.80

197.70

129.72

1644.00

25.21

1972.54

502.67

9400.78

197.70

129.72

1644.00

1,523.80

25.21

v)   During the year 2023‐24 demand raised for availment of 
transi�onal credit on input supplies / services and 
capital goods was contested in appeal by the Company 
before Joint Commissioner of Central Tax (Appeals) 
Guntur. 

i

(₹in lakhs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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viii) a) Claims of surcharge on pending legal disputed cases 
with APSPDCL on various issues. 

 b) During the current year APSPDCL has rec�fied the 
mistake of double billing for the units supplied by AP 
Gas Power Corpora�on Limited and accordingly the 
surcharge has been revised.

Par�culars
As at 31st

March, 2025
As at 31st 

March, 2024

vi)  During the earlier year 2020‐21 APSPDCL raised bills for 
the power supplied by AP Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., 
being transmi�ed the power trea�ng as their power. 
During the current year APSPDCL rec�fied the mistake of 
double billing for the units supplied by AP Gas Power 
Corpora�on Ltd., and   withdrawn the demand. 

vii) During the earlier year 2021‐22 and 2022‐23 APSPDCL 
raised bills for the power supplied by AP Gas Power 
Corpora�on Ltd., being transmi�ed the power trea�ng as 
their power. During the current year APSPDCL rec�fied 
the mistake of double billing for the units supplied by AP 
Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., and withdrawn the demand. 

0.00

1306.73

0.00

0.00

140.95

0.00

36.01

(140.95)

2846.01

7826.30

1111.23

4102.96

140.95

8.84

36.01

(140.95)

ix) (a) Claim made by one MSME supplier for addi�onal 
compensa�on for supply / service rendered to the 
company for Rs. 18.63 Lakhs and interest at applicable 
rate with compound interest.

(b)The company deposited under protest (including 
interest)  Before the High Court of Chennai.

x)  Demand u/s 270A of Income Tax Act for the assessment year 
2017‐18, contested in Appeal before CIT, Appeals (Faceless). 
The disputed demand was se�led during the year 2024‐25 
under the DIRECT TAX VIVAD SE VISHWAS SCHEME, 2024. 

xi)  Addi�on made for the Assessment Year 2016‐17 under 
sec�on 69A of Income Tax Act,1961 the realisa�on of 
sales made to party as income from other sources, the 
company contested in Appeal before CIT (Appeals) and 
Penalty u/s 271(1)(c) also contested.

(₹in lakhs)
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e) The company has undertaken to fulfill the Export Obliga�on as specified in License (EPCG) and Advance 

License sanc�oned for import of capital goods and raw materials availing customs duty exemp�on and the 

following are details of export obliga�on

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Sl.No.
Export 

Obliga�on 
in US $ 

Export 
Obliga�on 

in Rs. in Lakhs

Specified 
period to fulfil 

the export 
obliga�on

Specified 
period to fulfil 

the export 
obliga�on

Export 
Obliga�on 

in  US $ 

Export 
Obliga�on in 
Rs. in Lakhs

1

2

3

4

5

Total

455254

160872

3251285

430864

810000

5108275

325.96

117.51

2672.55

359.56

693.36

4168.94

26.03.2027

04.06.2027

29.08.2029

12.12.2030

27.09.2026

1435268

455254

160872

3251285

900000 

6202679

1047.75

325.96

117.51

2672.55

120.00

4283.77

14.12.2026

26.03.2027

04.06.2027

29.08.2029

20.01.2025

27. Leases:
The Company records the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the 

incremental borrowing rate and the ROU asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since 

the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date 

of ini�al applica�on. 

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended 31st March, 2025 are as follows:

The break‐up of current and non‐current lease liabili�es as at 31st March, 2025 is as follows

Par�culars

Par�culars

Balance as at 1st April, 2024

Addi�ons

Less: Deprecia�on

Balance as at 31st March, 2025

Non–Current lease liabili�es

Current lease liabili�es

Total

Land

Land

Buildings

Buildings

110.05

0.00

5.00

105.05

116.87

16.00

132.87

1109.69

757.33

215.70

1651.32

1837.30

464.93

2302.23

1219.74

757.33

220.70

1756.37

1954.17

480.93

2435.10

As on 
31.03.2025

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As on 
31.03.2024

As at 31st 
March, 2024

1315.92

125.05

221.23

1219.74

1439.42

398.13

  1837.55

(₹in lakhs)

(₹in lakhs)
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The movement in lease liabili�es during the year ended 31st March, 2025 is as follows:

Par�culars

Balance as at 1st April 2024

Addi�ons

Finance cost during the year

Payment of lease

Balance as at 31st March, 2025

Land Buildings

134.11

‐

14.76

16.00

132.87

1703.44

757.33

238.59

397.13

2302.23

1837.55

757.33

253.35

413.13

2435.10

Total
31.03.2025

Total
31.03.2024

1880.91

121.05

  234.33

398.74

1837.55

(₹in lakhs)

The details of the contractual maturi�es of lease liabili�es as at 31st March, 2025 on an undiscounted basis are 
as follows:

Par�culars

(i) Less than one year

(ii) One to five years

(iii) More than five years

Land Buildings

16.00

80.00

252.00

464.93

1426.26

2278.71

480.93

1506.26

2530.71

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

398.13

1486.75

1022.39

(₹in lakhs)

28. Borrowing / Bank Charges:

L.C charges capitalized during the year Rs.621.59 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 55.83 Lakhs).
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(` in lakhs)

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

Par�culars

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Segment Revenue 
a) Chemicals
b) Oils & Fats   
TOTAL
Less: Inter segment revenue
Net Sales/Income from Opera�ons
Segment Results Profit/(Loss) Before tax and interest:
a) Chemicals
b) Oils & Fats   
TOTAL
Less: I) a) Interest Expenses
              b) Interest Income          
          II) Loss from discon�nuing opera�ons 
               of power Plant
Total Profit before Tax 
Segment Assets
a) Chemicals
b) Oils & Fats
c) Others 
d) Power Plant (Discon�nued opera�ons)
TOTAL
Segment Liabili�es
a) Chemicals
b) Oils & Fats
c) Others 
d) Power Plant (Discon�nued opera�ons)   
TOTAL
Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense
a) Chemicals
b) Oils & Fats
c) Power Plant (Discon�nued Opera�ons) 
TOTAL
Addi�onal informa�on by geographic
Revenue by Geographical Market
India
Outside India
TOTAL

1,71,375.70
5581.01 

1,76,956,71
(2,052.64)

1,74,904.07

14,862.20
(455.08)

14,407.12
2,553.89
(701.63)

31.91

12,522.95

1,83,099.36
2,013.96

10,817.78
830.03

1,96,761.13

73,744.14
538.04

4,653.63
‐

78,935.81

8,629.56
177.96

‐
8,807.52

1,64,805.25
10,098.81

1,74,904.06

1,51,843.53
4,898.82 

1,56,742,.35
(2,146.71)

1,54,595.64

10,449.47
(331.81)

10,117.66
2,368.73
(617.45)

35.71

8,330.67

1,65,307.08
2,585.57

10,446.30
829.60

1,79,168.55

64,983.48
11.60

4,593.80
‐

69,588.88

8,145.56
204.28

‐ 
8,349.84

1,44,644.46
9,951.18

1,54,595.64

29. Segment Repor�ng: 
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Par�culars TotalFVTOCI

Financial assets

Investments 

     Equity instruments 

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets

Total Financial assets

Financial liabili�es

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabili�es

Total Financial liabili�es

(` in lakhs)

‐

25,055.65

3,317.27

6,297.54

13,968.61

48,639.06

33,075.67

9,759.99

20,817.33

63,652.98

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

3,520.29

25,055.65

3,317.27

6,297.54

13,968.61

52,159.35

33,075.67

9,759.99

20,817.33

63,652.98

3,520.29

‐

‐

‐

‐

3,520.29

Note 30: Fair value measurements

a) Financial instruments by category

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2025 is as follows :

Amor�sed 
cost

FVTPL

Revenue from major customers
The Company is not reliant on revenues from transac�ons with any single external customer and does not 

receive 10% or more of its revenues from transac�ons with any single external customer.

Par�culars TotalFVTOCI

Financial assets

Investments 

     Equity instruments 

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets

Total Financial assets

Financial liabili�es

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabili�es

Total Financial liabili�es

(` in lakhs)

‐

18,803.13

1,105.76

3,134.62

14,499.33

37,542.84

30,098.75

4,756.57

19,327.69

54,183.01

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

3,315.79

18,803.13

1,105.76

3,134.62

14,499.33

40,858.63

30,098.75

4,756.57

19,327.69

54,183.01

3,315.79

‐

‐

‐

‐

3,315.79

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 is as follows :

Amor�sed 
cost

FVTPL

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Par�culars TotalLevel 2

Financial Assets

Financial instruments at FVTOCI

Investments in Quoted equity instruments

Equity shares of Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐Strength Hypo Ltd.

Equity shares of Indian Bank

Investments in Un‐Quoted Equity Instruments

Equity shares of Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd*

Equity shares of Brilliant Bio‐Pharma Pvt Ltd**

Total Financial assets

‐

‐   

9.86

2,300.74

2,310.60

1,205.14

4.55 

‐

‐

1,209.69

1,205.14

4.55 

9.86

2,300.74

3,520.29

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

b) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabili�es.

Quan�ta�ve disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March, 2025:

Level 3Level 1

Fair value measurement using

*During the previous year 2022‐23, the opera�ons of APGPCL were suspended due to various opera�onal 

reasons. Thus, the investments in APGPCL shares were measured at Rs. 0.10 per share for the year ended     

31st March, 2025.

** The company has valued the shares of Brilliant Bio‐Pharma Pvt Ltd, using net asset value method by valuing 

the fixed assets and investments at market value.

Par�culars TotalLevel 2

Financial Assets

Financial instruments at FVTOCI

Investments in Quoted Equity Instruments

Equity shares of Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐Strength Hypo Ltd.

Equity shares of Indian Bank

Investments in Un‐Quoted Equity Instruments

Equity shares of Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd*

Equity shares of Brilliant Bio‐Pharma Pvt Ltd.**

Total Financial assets

‐

‐

9.86

2,097.64

2,107.51

 1,203.92

4.37 

         

      ‐

‐

1,208.29

1,203.92

4.37 

            9.86

2,097.64

3,315.79

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

Level 3Level 1

Quan�ta�ve disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March 2024:

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)Fair value measurement using

*During the previous year 2022‐23, the opera�ons of APGPCL were suspended due to various opera�onal 

reasons. Thus, the investments in APGPCL shares were measured at Rs. 0.10 per share for the year ended      

31st March,2024.

** The company has valued the shares of Brilliant Bio‐Pharma Pvt Ltd using net asset value method by valuing 

the fixed assets and investments at market value.
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Par�culars
 As at 

31st March, 2024 

Opening balance

Purchases

Total gains/losses in other comprehensive income

Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

2,107.50 

‐   

203.09 

2,310.59

2,085.62 

‐

21.88

2,107.50

 As at 
31st March, 2025 

Reconcilia�on of Level 3 fair value measurements

Investment in unquoted shares irrevocably designated as FVTOCI

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed 

equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity 

instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the 

repor�ng period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market (for example, traded 

bonds, over‐the‐counter deriva�ves) is determined using valua�on techniques for which the lowest level input 

that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. If all significant inputs 

required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 

included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securi�es included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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31. Related Party Disclosures:

a)  Names of related par�es and descrip�on of rela�onship :

Name of related party   

Sree Rayalaseema Hi‐Strength Hypo Limited

SRHH Limited

TGV Projects and Investments Private Limited

Brilliant Bio Pharma Private Limited

Sree Maruthi Marine Industries Limited 

Sree Maruthi Agro Tech Private Limited 

Gowri Gopal Hospitals Private Limited

Sree Rayalaseema Galaxy Projects Private Limited

Nectar Laboratories Private Limited

S.K.Salts Private Limited

M.V. Salts & Chemicals Private Limited

Brilliant Industries Private Limited 

Sree Rayalaseema Dutch Kassenbouw Private Limited

Roopa Industries Limited

Priyadarshini Salt Works Private Limited

JSM Interna�onal Limited

TGV Securi�es Private Limited

TGV Industries Private Limited

Gowri Gopal Intensive Care Unit LLP

TGV Metals and Chemicals Private Limited

Shri. C. Srinivasa Babu, E.D. (Tech.,)

Shri. K.Karunakar Rao – C.E.O. & E.D. (F&C)

Shri. N. Jeswanth Reddy – E.D. (Tech.,)

Shri. C. Rajesh Khanna – C.F.O.

Shri. V. Radhakrishna Murthy – Company Secretary

Shri. C. Srinivasa Babu, Execu�ve Director

Shri. K.Karunakar Rao, Execu�ve Director

Shri. N. Jeswanth Reddy, Execu�ve Director

Ms. Sridevi Mada�, Independent Director

Ms. Hima Bindu Sagala, Independent Director

Ms. Geeta Ramesh Serwani, Independent Director

Sri T.G. Venkatesh, 

Smt. T.G. Rajyalakshmi

Sri T.G. Bharath

Smt Jyothsna S Mysore

Smt Boda Mourya

Descrip�on of rela�onship

Enterprises where significant influence
of key managerial personnel
or their rela�ves exists 

Key Managerial Personnel

Directors

Close members of key managerial 
personnel’s family

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

193 Annual Report 2024-25



b)  Summary of transac�ons with the above related par�es is given below:

(` in lakhs)

The material transac�ons with above related par�es are carried at arm's length price and in the ordinary 
course of business: 

Name of the party
Nature of 

Transac�on
For the year 

ended 31.03.2025
For the year 

ended 31.03.24
Balance outstanding

 as on 31.03.25
Balance outstanding 

as on 31.03.24

Enterprises where significant influence of key managerial personnel or their rela�ves exists:

Sales

Purchases

Services availed

Lease Rentals Paid

Rents Received

Sale of Fixed Assets

Dividend received

Dividend paid

Investment in Equity

9533.37

1840.92

22.32

16.00

6.87

Nil

7.34

205.45

Nil

10203.40

5667.15

132.75

36.00

6.67

193.60

9.79

205.45

Nil

497.42 (Dr)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

24.48 (Dr)

1553.73 (Cr)

Nil

 Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

24.48 (Dr)

Sree Rayalaseema 
Hi‐ Strength Hypo 
Limited

SRHH Limited Dividend paid

Dividend paid

Sales

Investment in Equity

0.76

Nil

Nil

Nil

1.93 (Cr)

1987.00 (Dr)

2.96 (Cr)

1987.00 (Dr)

0.15

18.81

0.15

18.81

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Roopa Industries Limited Sales 27.84 51.13 Nil 13.27 (Dr)

Gowri Gopal Hospitals 
Private Limited

Sree Rayalaseema Dutch 

Brilliant Bio Pharma 
Private Limited

Kassenbouw Private Limited

Purchases

Services availed

Dividend paid

2.46

17.22

10.05

1.71

45.82

10.05

0.60 (Cr)

0.75 (Cr)

Nil

‐

1.92 (Cr)

Nil

Sree Rayalaseema 
Galaxy Projects 
Private Limited

Sales

Purchases

Dividend paid

13.81

114.63

0.55

16.23

108.67

0.55

Nil

10.32 (Cr)

Nil

Nil

5.94 (Cr)

Nil

Dividend paid 265.14 265.14 Nil

36.21 (Cr)

Nil
Brilliant Industries 
Private Limited

Purchases

Purchases

115.17

358.55

186.32

385.74

5.04 (Cr) 110.81 (Cr)

35.53 (Cr)

Sree Maruthi Marine 
Industries Limited

TGV Industries Private Ltd.,

NilPurchases 4.70 10.58 9.35 (Dr)
Sree Maruthi Agro Tech 
Private Limited

NilNilPurchases 7.11 49.13 (Dr)
Priyadarshini Salt Works 
Private Limited
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(` in lakhs)

Name of the party
Nature of 

Transac�on
For the year 

ended 31.03.2025
For the year 

ended 31.03.24
Balance outstanding

 as on 31.03.25
Balance outstanding 

as on 31.03.24

Enterprises where significant influence of key managerial personnel or their rela�ves exists:

Advisory Charges

Lease Rentals Paid

Advance for Land Purchase

Rent advance paid

Dividend paid

Lease Rentals Paid

Rent deposit

Dividend paid

323.27

Nil

116.94

307.88

Nil

116.94

0.20 (Cr)

Nil

Nil

0.71 (Cr)

29.44 (Dr)

Nil

1361.51

58.86

Nil

Nil

53.91

1224.22

58.87

410.00

Nil

53.91

118.25 (Cr)

4.41 (Cr)

Nil

107.00 (Dr)

Nil

103.31 (Cr)

5.30 (Cr)

410.00 (Dr)

107.00 (Dr)

Nil

Sri T.G. Venkatesh

TGV Projects and 
Investments 
Private Limited

The Mourya Inn Services availed 215.19 226.15 22.87 (Cr) 83.64 (Cr)

Shri. C. Rajesh Khanna, CFO

Smt Sri Devi Mada�

Smt Hima Bindu Sagala

Smt Geetha Ramesh Serwani

Remunera�on

Si�ng Fees

22.22

0.69

21.58

0.73

0.76 (Cr)

Nil

0.97 (Cr)

Nil

Si�ng Fees

Si�ng Fees

0.62

0.56

0.69

0.63

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Rent Paid

Dividend paid

18.00

3.22

2.74

3.22

13.73 (Cr)

Nil

0.21 (Cr)

Nil

Shri K. Karunakar Rao, 
ED (F&C)

Remunera�on

Dividend paid

33.61

0.02

33.61

0.02

2.25 (Cr)

‐

2.00 (Cr)

‐

Remunera�on

Dividend paid

11.27

0.00

11.62

0.00

0.70 (Cr)

‐

0.68 (Cr)

‐

Services availed 7.45 6.54 2.33 (Cr) Nil
Gowri Gopal Intensive 
Care Unit

Dividend   Paid 0.14 0.14 NilNil
TGV Securi�es 
Private Limited

Remunera�on

Remunera�on

33.75

64.79

32.26

64.60

1.80 (Cr)

1.45 (Cr)

2.04 (Cr)

4.71 (Cr)

Shri. N. Jesvanth Reddy, 
ED (Tech)

Shri C. Srinivasa Babu, 
ED (Tech)

Shri. V. Radha Krishna Murthy, 
Company Secretary

Smt. T.G. Rajyalakshmi

Sri. T.G. Bharath

Smt. Boda Mourya

Smt. Jyothsna Mysore

Smt. K.Naga Nirmala Rao

Rela�ves of KMPs

Dividend paid

Dividend paid

Dividend paid

Dividend paid

Car Lease Rent

1.30

0.93

0.13

0.01

4.84

1.30

0.93

0.13

0.01

4.84

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

0.40 (Cr)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

0.40 (Cr)

Rela�ves of Promoters and Key Managerial Personnel

Note: Cr. indicates Credit balance & Dr. indicates Debit balance
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Par�culars
As at 

31st March, 2024

Total Debt

*Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Total debt to Total equity ra�o

(` in lakhs)

33,131.60

10,713.26

107,112.07

117,825.33

0.28 

30,159.76

10,713.26

98,866.41

109,579.67

0.28 

As at 
31st March, 2025

Capital management

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objec�ve is to maintain a strong credit ra�ng healthy 
capital ra�os and establish a capital structure that would maximise the return to stakeholders through op�mum 
mix of debt and equity.

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion, repayment of principal and interest 
on its borrowings. The principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to con�nue to be, 
cash generated from its opera�ons supplemented by funding from bank borrowings. 

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportuni�es to diversify its debt profile, 
reduce interest cost and align maturity profile of its debt commensurate with life of the assets, and closely 
monitors its judicious alloca�on amongst compe�ng capital expansion projects and strategic acquisi�ons, to 
capture market opportuni�es at minimum risk.

Note 32: Capital Management & Risk management

Gearing ra�o
The Company monitors its capital using gearing ra�o, The Company’s startegy is to maintain gearing ra�o   

below 1, which is total debt divided to total equity as given below:

*Total Debt is defined as secured long‐term including current maturi�es of borrowings.

Financial risk management and objec�ves and policies

This note explains the sources of risk which the en�ty is exposed to and how the en�ty manages the risk and the 

impact in the financial statements.

A Special Team with Senior Execu�ves having exposure in various fields has been formed to assist Execu�ve 

Director and CEO in 

(a) Overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework, and 

(b) Overseeing that all the risks that the organisa�on faces such as market risk(including currency risk, interest 

rate risk and other price risk), Credit risk and liquidity risk have been iden�fied and assessed and there is an 

adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. 

The Execu�ve Director and CEO, monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertain�es that can impact 

the Company and its ability to achieve strategic objec�ves. The Company’s management systems, 

organisa�onal structures, processes, standards, code of conduct and behaviors together form the 

Management and business of the Company.
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The Company is exposed to market risk through changes in foreign currency exchange rates and changes in 
interest rates. Financial assets/liabili�es affected by this risk are borrowings, le�er of credits and trade 
receivables.

The Company’s investments in listed and non‐listed equity securi�es are suscep�ble to price risk arising from 
uncertaini�es about future value of the investment secu��es. The Company’s non‐current investment in equity 
shares are strategic investments and hence are considered as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income. 
The company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

A.Market risk

The Company operates interna�onally and is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency 
transac�ons, primarily with respect to the US$, EUR, JPY. Foreign exchange risk arises from import as well as 
exports of goods. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. 

The special team as men�oned above analysis the op�ons for hedging. Based on the analysis the management 
takes decision regarding hedging of foreign currency exposures. Currently, the Company has not hedged any of 
the foreign currency transac�ons in the veiw of the natural hedging. The natural hedging is sufficient to manage 
the current foreign currency risk management.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary 
liabili�es are restated at the end of each quarter. The same at the end of the repor�ng period are as follows :

Foreign Currency risk management

Par�culars

Receivables for export

Payables for imports

     LC's issued to creditors/direct supplies

     LC's issued to creditors

(FC in lakhs)

USD

USD

EURO

              2.93 

            

97.52

0.78 

As at 31st March, 2025
Currency Amount in FC

USD

USD

EURO

0.74 

100.46

0.61 

As at 31st March, 2024
Currency Amount in FC

The Company is mainly exposed to US Dollor, EUR, JPY, CHF.

The following tables demonstrate the sensi�vity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR, JPY exchange 
rates, with all other variables held constant. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other 
currencies is not material.

Foreign Currency Sensi�vity Analysis

Par�culars

USD Sensi�vity

Impact due to increase by 5%

Impact due to decrease by 5%

EURO Sensi�vity

Impact due to increase by 5%

Impact due to decrease by 5%

(FC in lakhs)
As at 31st 

March, 2025

(404.76)

404.76

(3.60)

3.60

(415.67)

415.67

(2.76)

2.76

As at 31st 
March, 2024

Impact on profit before tax
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Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 

rates relates primarily to the Company's borrowing with floa�ng base interest rates. Based on the interest rate 

sensi�vity the Company decides on the management of interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Risk Management

The following table demonstrates the sensi�vity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that 

por�on of loans and borrowing affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax 

is affected through the impact on floa�ng base rate borrowing, as follows:

Interest Rate Sensi�vity:

Par�culars

Increase/decrease in base points

50 base points higher

50 base points lower

(FC in lakhs)

42.30

(42.30)

As at 31st 
March, 2025

58.09

(58.09)

As at 31st 
March, 2024

Impact on profit before tax

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counter party will default on its contractual obliga�ons resul�ng in financial 

loss to the Company. The Company is opera�ng through network of dealers based at different loca�ons. Regular 

monitoring of the receivables is undertaken by the marke�ng department and in case the limits are exceeded, 

steps will be taken by the marke�ng departments and a�er discussing with the management the Company will 

decide whether to stop or not further supplies to the concerned dealer �ll the amount outstanding is recovered. 

For the export made by the Company, the sales are backed by ECGC Coverage or advance receipts. The internal 

risk management commi�ee of the Company meets regularly to discuss the dealers and credit risks, measures 

taken to address them and the status and level of risk a�er the measures taken.

Export sales are fully secured through ECGC Coverage or against advance receipts. (refer Note No.8(a) for Trade 

Receivables outstanding).

B. Credit risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securi�es and the 

availability of funding through an adequate amount of commi�ed credit facili�es to meet obliga�ons when due 

and to close out market posi�ons. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company maintains 

flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under commi�ed credit lines.

Ul�mate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an 

appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short‐term, medium‐

term and long‐term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by 

maintaining adequate reserves, banking facili�es and reserve borrowing facili�es, by con�nuously monitoring 

forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabili�es.

C. Liquidity risk
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The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es as at 

repor�ng date:

(I) Financing arrangements

(₹ in lakhs)

Par�culars

As at 31st March, 2025

Bank borrowings

Total non‐current financial liabili�es

Current borrowings

Trade payables

Other current financial liabili�es

Total current financial liabili�es

Total

5 + years

6,586.83

6,586.83

26,488.84

9,760.00

11,207.88 

47,456.72

54,043.55

Total

‐

‐

26,488.84

9,760.00

11,207.88

47,456.72

47,456.72

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

< 1 yearOn demand

6,586.83

6,586.83

‐

‐

‐

‐

6,586.83

1 ‐ 5 years

As at 31st March, 2024

Bank borrowings

Total non‐current financial liabili�es

Current borrowings

Trade payables

Other current financial liabili�es

Total current financial liabili�es

Total

7,947.80

7,947.80

22,150.95

4,756.57

11,049.22

37,956.75

45,904.54

‐

‐

22,150.95

4,756.57

11,049.22

37,956.75

37,956.75

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

7,947.80

7,947.80

‐

‐

‐

‐

7,947.80

The following table shows summary of the sources of risk which the en�ty is exposed to and how the en�ty 

manages the risk and the impact in the financial statements:

Exposure arising from

Foreign currency transac�ons

Borrowings with floa�ng interest rates

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, 

Financial instruments, financial assets 

measured at amor�sed cost.

Borrowings and Financial liabili�es

Management

Market risk ‐ foreign 

Market risk ‐ interest rate

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Risk Measurement

Cash flow forecas�ng

Sensi�vity analysis

Aging analysis

Credit ra�ngs

Rolling cash flow forecasts

Natural hedging

Credit ra�ngs 

Diversifica�on of bank deposits, 

credit limits and le�ers of credit

Availability of commi�ed credit

 lines and borrowing facili�es

Descrip�on: 

The Power Purchase Agreement with Karnataka Electricity Board (Power Distribu�on Companies) pertaining to 

Bellary power plant was expired on 31st August, 2012 and the agreement was not renewed and genera�on of 

power was stopped from September, 2012. The company has discon�nued the opera�ons of this segment from 

the year 2013‐14 and exploring the possibili�es for disposal of its Plant.

33. Discon�nued Opera�ons
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The results of discon�nued opera�ons are presented below:

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

31.91

‐

31.91

(8.03)

23.88

823.61

6.42

830.03

‐

830.03

‐

(31.91)

(0.43)

(32.34)

‐

35.71

‐

35.71

(8.99)

26.72

823.61

5.99 

829.60

‐

829.60

‐

(35.71)

5.19

(30.52)

Par�culars

(Profit)on sale of Assets

Expenses

Deprecia�on

Loss from discon�nued opera�ons for the year before tax

Tax (expense)/income

Loss from discon�nued opera�ons for the year a�er tax

Assets

Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabili�es

Net Assets

Cash flow as follows

Opera�ng ac�vi�es 

   Sale of fixed assets

   Expenses    

   Change in working capital

Net cash (ou�low)

(₹ in lakhs)

34. Income and expenditure in foreign currency and Foreign Currency Exposures Earnings in Foreign Currency

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

Par�culars

 ) FOB value of exports

ii) Received payment from vendor in view of  
decrease a�er procurement of raw materials

(₹ in lakhs)

9268.07

0.47

7290.27

431.01

i

‐
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Expenditure in Foreign Currency

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

16.72

‐

304.33

114.72

435.77

12.24

2.51

30.49

341.12 

386.36

Par�culars

 ) Travelling  

ii) Fees and charges 

iii) Commission paid 

iv) Bank Interest & charges

Total

(₹ in lakhs)

Foreign Currency Exposures

Par�culars

Receivables for export

Payables for imports towards 
LC's/direct supplies:

Recognised
amount (Rs.)

Recognised
amount (Rs.)

Amount in
FC (in lakhs)

Amount in
FC (in lakhs)

250.53

8345.60

71.86

$ 2.93

$ 97.52

EURO 0.78

62.00

8375.36

55.06

$ 0.74

$ 100.46

EURO 0.61

(₹in lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Value of Imports (Calculated on C.I.F basis):

As at 31st 
March, 2025

As at 31st 
March, 2024

8000.85

1431.56

526.93

9959.34

15670.36

1081.24

7979.82 

24731.42

Par�culars

 i)   Raw Materials

ii) Chemicals & Spares & Stores

iii) Capital Goods / Services

Total

(₹ in lakhs)

35. Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and in accordance with the 

no�fica�on issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, certain disclosures are required to be made rela�ng 

to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the said Act.  The company is in the process of 

compiling the relevant informa�on from its suppliers about their coverage under the said Act and hence 

required disclosures made to the extent available.  

i
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The following are outstanding balances as at 31.03.2025:

Par�culars
As at 31st

March, 2025
As at 31st 

March, 2024

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 
end of the accoun�ng year  and are within agreed period 
not due for payment

1331.93 1274.00*

(₹ in lakhs)

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of sec�on 
16, along with the amounts of payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accoun�ng 
year

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the end of each accoun�ng year; and 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, un�l such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deduc�ble 
expenditure under sec�on 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

*Includes Rs. 11.45 lakhs under dispute with High court of Madras.

36. Con�ngent assets:

(a) Legal cases filed or issued lawyer no�ces by the company for recovery of dues/advances and pending in 

Courts for disposal:

Par�culars
As at 31st

March, 2025
As at 31st 

March, 2024

Against Debtors, Contractors and Suppliers
311.31 777.56

(₹ in lakhs)
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Year Ended
 31st March, 2025

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Revenue by offerings

(₹ in lakhs)

Sl. No.

A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

MANUFACTURED GOODS

Caus�c Soda Lye & Flakes

Liquid Chlorine

Hydrochloric Acid

Hydrogen Gas

Bleach Liquor

Caus�c Potash Lye &Flakes

Potassium Carbonate

Hydrogenated Castor Oil

12 Hydroxy Stearic Acid

Refined Glycerine

Stearic Acid

Soap Noodles

Toilet Soaps

Methylene Chloride

 Chloroform

Carbon Tetra Chloride

Others less than 1% of Total Turnover 

Less: Cash Discounts / Shortages

TOTAL

Less: Indirect taxes

Net Revenue from products

123026.37

2234.39

1488.98

883.39

2183.17

29373.75

1471.98

233.71

186.69

52.26

4980.25

399.46

83.42

26075.56

6187.51

648.11

 3208.23

‐70.01

202647.22

28740.89

173906.33

1,04,264.90

2,360.06

1,611.18

936.54

2,197.94

29,919.17

2,477.72

161.92

604.29

57.05

4,102.23

552.08

24.28

21,529.61

6,343.86

489.19

1,716.41

‐73.08

1,79,275.35

 25,813.13

1,53,462.22

The Company represents revenue net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
37. Revenue from contracts with customers:

The Company produces Chloro‐Alkali & Chloromethane products and also Castor Deriva�ves and Fa�y Acids.  
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the considera�on we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is transferred to our customer 
and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obliga�ons.

The Performance Obliga�ons in our contracts are fulfilled at the �me of dispatch, delivery or upon formal 
customer acceptance depending on customer terms.

Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with the customers as the 
service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obliga�ons.

Interest income is recognized using the effec�ve interest rate (EIR) method.

Dividend income on investments is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.
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Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

173906.33

976.74

1,53,462.22

1133.43

Revenue by contract type

Fixed �me frame

Time and material

(₹ in lakhs)

A. Disaggregate Revenue Informa�on

The disaggregated revenue from contracts with the customers for the year ended 31stMarch, 2025 

by offerings and contract type.                                                                                   

B. Remaining Performance Obliga�ons

The remaining performance obliga�on disclosure provides the aggregate amount of transac�on price yet to be 

recognized as at the end of the repor�ng period and an explana�on as to when the Company expects to 

recognize these amounts in revenue.

Applying the prac�cal expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining 

performance obliga�on related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly 

with the value to the customer of en�ty's performance completed to date.

The aggregate amount of transac�on price allocated to remaining performance obliga�ons as per the 

requirements of Ind AS 115 is Rs. 10414.00  Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 7568.53 Lakhs) out of which, 

approximately 100% (Previous year 100%) is expected to be recognized as revenues within one year.

Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

17391.08

342.82

3845.02

13878.53

11875.45

7.09

47339.99

16288.25

666.66

3096.36

16055.97

9338.23

3.91 

45449.38

DESCREPTION OF MATERIAL

SALT

CASTOR OIL

ACID OILS & OTHER OILS

POTASSIUM CHLORIDE

METHANOL

OTHERS

TOTAL

(₹ in lakhs)
38. Cost of raw materials consumed:

Sl No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

i) Salt

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous

ii) Potassium chloride         

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous

iii) Castor Oil     

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous

iv) Palm fa�y acid dis�llate         

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous

v)  Palm Kernel oil/Dis�lled 

     fa�y acid         

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous

vi) Crude Glycerine         

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous 

vii) Methanol         

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous 

viii) Other Raw  Materials         

       ‐Imported         

       ‐Indigenous      

Total:         

       ‐Imported                

       ‐Indigenous

39. Raw material consumed

PARTICULARS Year ended 31st March, 2025 Year ended 31st March, 2024

Qty.,

MT/KL

Qty.,

MT/KL

Rs. in 

lakhs

Rs. in

lakhs
% %

‐

436428

28077

15483

‐

264

‐

3844

406

410

‐

2

‐

38087

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

391333

31842

10142

‐

540

‐

4319

‐

97

‐

54

‐

32036

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

16288.25

12201.70

3854.27

‐

666.66

‐

2984.43

‐

82.47

‐

29.46

‐

9338.23

‐

3.91

12201.70

33247.68

45449.38

‐

100

75.99

24.01

‐

100

‐

100

‐

100

‐

100

‐

100

‐

100

26.85

73.15

100.00

‐

17391.08

8953.72

4924.81

‐

342.82

‐

3207.07

318.73

317.26

‐

1.96

‐

11875.45

‐

7.09

9272.45

38067.53

47339.98

‐

100

64.51

35.49

‐

100

‐

100

50.19

49.81

‐

100

‐

100

‐

100

19.59

80.41

100.00

40. Value of Chemicals, Packing and Stores consumed (other than used for repairs)

Par�culars

a) Imported

b) Indigenous

Total

Rs. in 
lakhs

Rs. in 
lakhs

% %

602.96

6455.38

7058.34

8.54

91.46

100.00

764.09

6380.86 

7144.95

10.69

89.31

100.00

Year ended 31st March, 2025 Year ended 31st March, 2024
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Note 41: Ra�o Analysis

Current ratio

Debt equity ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on equity

Inventory Turnover Ratio

Trade receivables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio

Return on capital employed

Return on Investment

Reasons for variance

This variance is due to increase
 in profit a�er tax in current year 
compared to previous year.

Increase in working capital 
and sales has resulted in 
such variance

This is due to increase in 
net profit in current year 
compared to previous year.

Higher profits during year
resulted in increase of ra�o.

Higher profits during year 
resulted in increase of ra�o.

Note:
1) Total Debt = Long term Borrowings (including current maturi�es of long term borrowings), Sales tax deferrment 

loan (current and non‐current), short term borrowings and Interest accrued on debts.
2) Earning for Debt Service = Net profit a�er taxes + Non‐cash opera�ng expenses like deprecia�on and other 

amor�za�ons + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of fixed assets etc.
3) Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments.
4) Avg. Shareholder’s Equity = Average of Opening Total Equity and Closing Total Equity
5) Avg. Inventory = Average of Opening Inventory and Closing Inventory
6) Avg. Trade Receivable = Average of Opening Trade Receivables and Closing Trade Receivables
7) Avg. Trade Payables = Average of Opening Trade Payables and Closing Trade Payables
8) Working capital shall be calculated as current assets minus current liabili�es
9) Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth (excluding revalua�on reserve) + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability
10) Average Total Assets = Average of Opening Total Assets and Closing      Total Assets
11) Avgerage Total equity = Average of Opening Equity Share capital + Other equity and Closing Equity share capital + 

Other equity.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars

Current assets

Total debt

Earnings available 

for debt service

Net profits after taxes

Net sales

Net sales

Net purchases

Net sales

Net profit

Earning before 

interest and taxes

Profit for the year

Numerator

Current liabilities

Shareholders equity

Debt service

Average shareholder’s 

equity

Average inventory 

Avg. accounts receivable 

Average trade payables

Working capital

Net sales

Capital employed

Average total equity

1.14

0.28

4.77

8.10%

13.03

7.93

12.98

23.82

5.30%

9.42%

8.10%

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2024

1.10

0.28

3.95

5.67%

11.57

7.40

12.55

33.52

3.96%

7.24%

5.67%

Variance

3.31%

2.17%

20.75%

42.89%

12.59%

7.17%

3.42%

‐28.93%

33.76%

30.15%

42.89%

Denominator
For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2025

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

206 Annual Report 2024-25



42. Addi�onal Regulatory Informa�on:

(1)  The Company has not granted any loans or Advances in the nature of Loans to Promoters, Directors, KMPs 

and other related par�es. 

(2)  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been ini�ated or pending 

against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 

1988 and rules made there under.

(3)   The Company has no transac�on which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 

or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961(such as search or 

survey or any relevant provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961).

(4)   The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including 

foreign en��es (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

       (a)   Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by  

or on behalf of the company (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or

        (b)   Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

(5)  The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es 

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the Company shall:

        (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or    

on behalf of the Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or

        (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

(6)  The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Ins�tu�ons or RBI or other 

lenders.

(7)   The Company has borrowings from Banks or Financial Ins�tu�ons on the basis of security of Current Assets. 

Quarterly returns or Statement of Current Assets filed by the company with Banks or Financial Ins�tu�ons 

are in agreement with the Books of Accounts with some insignificant variances.

(8)   There are no charges or sa�sfac�on of charges yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the 

statutory period.

(9)  The company has no transac�ons and no rela�onship with companies struck off under Sec�on 248 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 or Sec�on 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

(10) The company has no subsidiaries.

(11) There are no Schemes of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of Sec�ons 230 to 

237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(12) The Company has not invested or traded in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during  the Financial year 

2024‐25 and previous year 2023‐24.
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43. Audit Trail: 

The Company has used accoun�ng so�ware for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

transac�ons recorded in the accoun�ng so�ware at the applica�on level. However, the company has not 

enabled the audit trail (edit log) feature at database level in the accoun�ng so�ware. Further, no instance 

of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the accoun�ng so�ware.  Addi�onally, 

the audit trail of prior year(s) has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for 

record reten�on to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respec�ve years.

 44. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest decimal of lakhs as required under Schedule III.

45. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the   

current year's classifica�on / disclosure.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TGV SRAAC LIMITED

(CIN : L24110AP1981PLC003077)

As per our a�ached report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co., 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Regn No.000515 S

CA B.DAIVADHEENAM REDDY 
Partner  
Membership No.026450                        
UDIN: 25026450BMOYHH9646

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 27th May, 2025

CA K KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.) & CEO

C. SRINIVASA BABU
Execu�ve Director  (Technical)

CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY
CGM & Company Secretary

CA C. RAJESH KHANNA
Sr. Vice President (Fin. & Accts) & CFO 
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G R O U P

TGV�SRAAC�LIMITED
If undelivered, please return to :

(CIN : L24110AP1981PLC003077)
# 6-2-1012, 2nd Floor, TGV Mansion Khairatabad, Hyderabad - 500 004, Telangana

T : +91 40 2331 3842, E-mail : sralkalies@tgvmail.net,  website : www.tgvgroup.com
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